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24

29 28

28 29 31

Global Logistic Properties Limited

(Ming Z. Mei, Chief Executive Officer)

048623
32 01
50

50 Raffles Place, #32-01 Singapore Land Tower,

Singapore 048623
03 6212 5500
03 6212 5500
S$

2017 31
UFJ 81.36
us
2017 31 UFJ
110.42
31
2016 2017 2015 31 2016 31

31
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GLP
50
S.E.A. J.P_Morgan S.E.A. Limited
30
30
a b

i %

20

a
i \%

The Monetary Authority of Singapore
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CDP The Central
Depository (Pte) Limited

a b
a 15
b
Alibaba Group Treasury
Limited

Chow Tai Fook Nominee Limited
Jovina Investments
Limited ING
ING Clarion Real Estate Securities, LLC
Lion Global Investors Limited
Owl Creek Asset
Management, L.P.
Vervain Equity Investment Limited
View Far Management Limited

GDP

GIC GIC Private Limited

GIC
GIC (Realty) Private Limited

GIC GIC Real
Estate Private Limited

GLP ABC GLP
Associate Benefits Co., Ltd.

GLPH
Global Logistic Properties Holdings Limited

IFRS

Citigroup Global Markets Singapore Pte. Ltd. J.P.
(S.E.A)D)
China
International Capital Corporation Hong Kong Securities Limited
DBS Bank Ltd.
UBS AG, Singapore Branch
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Japan Logistic Properties 1 Private Limited

Japan Logistic Properties 2 Pte. Ltd.

Japan Logistic Properties 3 Pte. Ltd.

J.P. (S.E.A.)

Nomura Securities Singapore Pte. Ltd.

SMG
2010
27

20
234,648,000

2010 24
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Recosia ChinaPte Ltd

Recosia Pte Ltd

Reco Benefit Private
Limited

Reco Heir Private Limited

Reco
Logistics Management Private Limited

Reco Platinum Pte Ltd

2005
related corporation

JLP1 JLP2 RLM GLPH SMG GLPH

2010 24

289

Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited

183,035,676

Singapore Code on Take-Overs and Mergers

Schwartz-Mei Group Limited
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Accounting

and Corporate Regulatory Authority

50
10
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CDP
CDP

CDP

30

15
2017

10

10
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75
21
14
14
72
CDP
_ O
(i)
O
(i)
(iid)
Central Provident Fund CPF CPF
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CDP CDP

30
30 50
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216
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85
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91

101 D
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iv

81

Vi

54
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68
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124

125

126

127

131

10
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183

2004
22
22
2003
i
ii
15
Inland Revenue Authority
17
29
25,000 10,000 2017 50

2018 20

10
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39
FRS39
FRS39

0.2

CDP

2008 15

GST
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Allen and
Gledhill LLP
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31
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
..................... 649,043 632,769 713,242 784,511 886,820
........................... (104,794) (114,248) (138,510) (157,041) (156,810)
................................. (119,403) (136,739) (169,935) (235,805) (255,055)
424,846 381,782 404,797 391,665 474,955
..................... 164,852 125,978 71,426 240,771 283,120
....................................... 589,698 507,760 476,223 632,436 758,075
........................ (66,725) (79,222) (47,933) (101, 355) (223,600)
.................. 9,167 4,992 (54,233) 55,001 16,151
.................................... 532,140 433,530 374,057 586,172 550,626
......... 309,560 433,252 488,178 720,403 796,973
................................. 841,700 866,782 862,235 1,306,575 1,347,599
.................................... (126,421) (142,063) (194, 265) (309, 768) (295,704)
............... 715,279 724,719 667,970 996,807 1,051,895
36,010 4,473
.................................... 715,279 724,719 667,970 1,032,817 1,056,368
.............................. 684,281 685,150 486,199 719,083 793,718
.............................. 30,998 39,569 181,771 313,734 262,650
.................................... 715,279 724,719 667,970 1,032,817 1,056,368
.......................................... 13.99 13.71 9.41 14.43 16.32
.................................... 13.95 13.67 9.38 14.38 16.22
.......................................... 9.41 13.68 16.26
.................................... 9.38 13.63 16.16
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2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
........................ 9,133,111 10,164,715 11,331,778 13,024,178 14,702,578
................................. 1,060,285 1,163,752 1,544,017 1,953,686 2,482,103
.................. 1,008,035 1,102,834 1,199,390 1,684,216 1,906,570
11,201,431 12,431,301 14,075,185 16,662,080 19,091,251
........................ 2,341,914 1,910,138 3,387,120 6,466,982 2,668,504
.............................. 13,543,345 14,341,439 17,462,305 23,129,062 21,759,755
8,398,279 8,757,755 8,755,434 8,887,781 8,711,376
........................... 796,859 1,365,587 4,006,987 4,272,327 4,503,514
.............................. 9,195,138 10,123,342 12,762,421 13,160,108 13,214,890
.............................. 2,822,455 2,503,677 2,476,453 3,749,529 4,294,708
.................. 792,679 890,274 1,019,386 1,207,569 1,373,576
3,615,134 3,393,951 3,495,839 4,957,098 5,668,284
........................... 117,671 157,633 371,256 1,020,908 1,304,710
563,051 644,864 810,887 1,025,798 1,060,983
.................. 52,351 21,649 21,902 2,965,150 510,888
733,073 824,146 1,204,045 5,011,856 2,876,581
.............................. 4,348,207 4,218,097 4,699,884 9,968,954 8,544,865
.................. 13,543,345 14,341,439 17,462,305 23,129,062 21,759,755
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China Logistics Private Limited
2010 15
Global Logistics Pte. Limited

2010 10 18

GLPH

Schwartz Mei Schwartz
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2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
432,282 291,054 444,410 366,792 357,465
51,698 5,221
432,282 291,054 444,410 418,490 362,686
954,414  (824,296) (3,408,926)  (285,164) 138,377
(4,652,024)  (743,325)
954,414  (824,296) (3,408,926) (4,937,188)  (604,948)
(1,005,384) 83,110 2,917,536 1,520,412 (9,829)
2,768,527 445,466
(1,005,384) 83,110 2,917,536 4,288,939 435,637
381,312 (450,132) (46,980)  (229,759) 193,375
1,616,112 1,974,970 1,500,737 1,445,675 1,024,563
(39,967)  (24,101) (8,082) (26,659) (43,695)
1,957,457 1,500,737 1,445,675 1,189,257 1,174,243
Reco
2007 28
2010 17

Global Logistics Properties Limited

Jeffrey H. Schwartz
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CLH
Limited
2008
67 33

2009 2009
33

2009

JLP1 JLP2 JLP3

2002

80 20

2009 2009 20

70

2009

2009 SMG
GLPH GLPH
GLPH 100 SMG
50 Jeffrey H. Schwartz Ming Z. Mei

SMG
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2010 27
a
GLPH 50 GLPH
c GLPH SMG GLPH
d
e
GLPH GLPH
JLP1 JLP2 JLP3
JLPI JLP1
406,017,253
JLP1 JLP1 2010 30
JLP1
JLP1
21,685,800,000
JLP2 JLP2
781,415,550
JLP2 JLP2 2010
30 JLP2
JLP2
27,471,400,000
JLP3 JLP3 1.00
JLP3 2010
30 JLP3

JLP3

14,742,500,000

GLPH
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GLPH

RLM GLPH

GL
GLPH

GLPH

GLPH

GLPH

189,853,251

G

15,791,298
GLPH

GLP ABC
GLPH

SMG
GLPH

GLPH

JLP1  JLP2
RPBH

15

2008

2010
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50
189,853,251
GLPH SMG
2009 25
GLPH
PH
15,791,298
RLM GLPH GLP ABC
GLPH
GLPH GLPH
SMG SMG
GLPH SMG
2009 25
GLPH
LPH SMG GLPH
SMG SMG
SMG GLPH SMG
GLPH
GLPH
GLPH
JLP3 RPBH 2010
588.8 RPBH 417.6
298,726,784
2010 15
917.7
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2010 30
2010 2010 15
100.8 2010
63,899,700,000
12 31
31
2011

o 9

(o]
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2012 12
GLP J-REIT 2012 12 21 GLP J-REIT
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15.75
GLP J-REIT GLP J-REIT 2013
2012 11 14 Canada Pension Plan Investment Board
Government of Singapore Investment Corporation
2012 11 30
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2016 2017 31
100 JV
31
2016 2017
.................................... 643 751
.................................... 123 127
.............................. 69 66
.................................... 144 157
............... 34 34
................................. 1,013 1,135
31
2016 2017
..................... 135.5 159
............ 175 216
138 155
.................. 127 153
........................... 215 225
........................... 222.5 227
................................. 1,013 1,135
2017 30

40

Jv 40

35

38
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A H N 2003 SARS 2008
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25 36.92

2016 2017 31
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2016 31 777 2017 31
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531 10 586
2017 31
179 15 205

2017 31 GLP US Il GLP US Income Partners
11 59 30

77

2017 31

8.6 25 10.7
VAT
157
2017 31 236 255
2016 GLP US Il GLP US Income Partners 1l
2017 31 241 18 283
EBIT PATMI

EBIT 2017 31 15

16 GLP US
I GLP US Income Partners | 2016 45
PATMI 2017 31 719 10
794 EBIT GLP
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43%
42%
i1
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FENTLEL,

2016 31 231 2017 31 218
130 2017 31 147
20 2017 31 25
GLP US

Il GLP US Income Partners 11 9.85

GLP J-REIT 13.6 CMST Development Co., Ltd.
15.5

Shenzhen Chiwan Petroleum Supply Base Co., Ltd.

19.9
Shanghai Lingang Holdings Co., Ltd. 0.9
12
GLP US 11 100
10 2017 31 11
10 2017 31
12
480 2017 31 560
2017
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(172,094)
1,708
55,212
(13,910)
(6,051)

2017 537
GLP J-REIT CMST Development Co., Ltd

Shenzhen Chiwan Petroleum Supply Base Co., Ltd. Shanghai

Lingang Holdings Co., Ltd.

52.2

40
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20
2025 3.875 10
51 2027
10
3.12
2017 31

80
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2017 31

2012

2,104,571.85

1,242,064
an )

2013
31

2013 8,385,602,081.618
4,757,509,470
31 (682,253 )

2013

4,915,332.736

2,616,064
(400 )

2014
31

2014 8,390,517,414.354
4,760,125,534
31 (682,652 )

2014 204,636,694.46
74,278,292
(16,649 )

2014

11,469,142.1824

5,503,730
(933 )

2015
31

2015 8,606,623,250.9964
4,839,907,556
31 (700,235 )

2015

12,551,829.8632

4,457,666
(1,021 )

2016
31

2016 8,619,175,080.86
4,844,365,222
31 (701,256 )

2016

2017 © )

31

2017 8,619,175,080.86
4,844,365,222
31 (701,256 )

2017 31
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2007158322 2007 28
15
Properties Pte. Ltd. 2010
2.00
2.00
2010 10 18
4,506,689,664

8,619,175,080.86
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2010 24
366,071,352

31 4,844,365,222
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2010

Global Logistic

2017 31
1 |DBS 2,322,436,585 47.941
) 766,351,404 15.819
3 | HSBC 249,715,577 5.155
4 | DBSN 244,707,869 5.051
5 240,246,456 4.959
6 178,512,723 3.685
7 157,356,032 3.248
8 156,960,288 3.24
9 136,623,584 2.82
10 | BNP 49,917,982 1.03
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281,838,971.40
2017 22

(36)
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2013 31 2014 31 2015 31 2016 31 2017 31
S$ 2.81 3.13 2.94 2.84 2.80
229 255 239 231 228
S$ 1.935 2.57 2.41 1.595 1.73
157 209 196 130 141
2010 10 18
2016 2016 2016 2017 2017 2017
10 11 12
S$ 1.87 2.10 2.28 2.65 2.78 2.80
152 171 186 216 226 228
S$ 1.78 1.79 2.06 2.24 2.58 2.67
145 146 168 182 210 217
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10
2017 30
Dr. Seek Ngee 2010 24 2014 17
Huat 385,200
67 2016 29
GLP 400,000 @
Brookfield Asset Management Inc.,
Canada

Chongbang Holdings (International) Ltd.
Frasers
Centrepoint Limited
Pontiac Land Pte Ltd.
National University of

Singapore
Institute of Real Estate Studies
ULl
2011 GIC
GIC GIC
GIC
GIC

Jones Lang Wootton
Jones Lang LaSalle

Fundacao Dom Cabral

Pension Real Estate Association

Property Council of
Australia Property Index Committte 2009
Singapore Government Economic
Strategy Committee

2007

Singapore Public Administration Gold Medal
2011 Distinguished Alumni Service Award
2015 Outstanding Service Award
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Ming Z. Mei 2010 24

45 2014 17 45,754,331
GLP

6,750,000 @
2003

Owens Corning

G
e

Pacific Alliance China Land Limited

Beijing Capital Agribusiness Co., Ltd.
Shenzhen

Chiwan Petroleum Supply Base Co., Ltd.

2009
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Steven Lim 2010 24 254,700
Kok Hoong 2015 29
20 GLP
30
2002 2003
Ernst & Young Singapore 1971
Arthur Andersen 1990 2002
2000 2002
ASEAN

Sabana Real Estate Investment Limited

Sabana Shari’ ah Compliant

REIT)
Genting Singapore PLC
YTL
REIT YTL Starhill Global REIT

Management Limited

Hoe Leong Corporation Ltd
Amtek Engineering Ltd.
Parkway Trust Management
Limited Parkway Life
REIT
Viz Branz Holdings Limited
Institute of Singapore Chartered
Accountants Institute of

Chartered Accountants in Australia 1971
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Dr. Dipak 2010 24 254,700
Chand Jain 2015 29
60 GLP
Sasin
Graduate Institute of Business Administration 2011
2013
INSEAD
2001 2009
1996 2001
Sandy
and Morton Goldman Professor in Entrepreneurial Studies
1986
1989
Sasin Graduate Institute
of Business Administration 1980
1983 Gauhati University
Indian Conglomerate Reliance Industries
Limited Deere &
Company Northern Trust
Company
People Energy
1986
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Paul Cheng 2010 24 254,700
Ming Fun 2016 29
80 GLP
CHG CHG Capital Growth
Fund

Esprit Holdings Ltd.

Pacific Alliance China Land Limited
Chow Tai Fook

Jewellery Group Limited

2005 2007
The Link Management Ltd. 1992 1998
Inchcape Pacific Ltd.
1996 1998
N.M. Rothschild & Sons (Hong
Kong) Ltd
1988 1991 1995 1998
Legislative Council 1994 1997
1992 1994
2009 Hong Kong Institute of
Directors
1958 1961
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Fang Fenglei
65

2014
2016 29
GLP HOPU
HOPU Investments 2004

Goldman Sachs Gao Hua Securities Company Limited

China
International Capital Corporation Limited
BOC BOC
International Holdings Limited ICEA
ICEA
Finance Holdings Co., Ltd., China
2013 13
Phoenix

Satellite Television Holdings Limited

Central China Real Estate Limited

China Mengniu Dairy Company Limited

74,421,492

(©)
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75

2010 24
2016
GLP
2001 2005
2000
Company
1970
1964

29

1996

Ford Motor
1964

254,700
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Luciano
Lewandowski

58

2013 11 14
2016 29
GLP
AGBI AGBI Real Assets ( AGBI ))
AGBI 17
Prosperitas
2006 2012
GP GP Investmentos
GP 11 2003
GP 11

Rio Bravo Investimentos

UBF Swiss Re
Agribusiness
Participacoes Ltda.
Calaari Participacoes Ltda.
Schedar Empr. E
Participacoes Ltda.
Fazenda lItauna S.A.
Troyca Holdings Ltda.
1980

175,700
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Lim Swe Guan 2012 14 214,700
63 2015 29
GLP

Asia Pacific Real Estate

Association ( APREA 1997 GIC
GIC
2011 18 1995 11
SUNCORP
Investments
1986
Jones Lang Wootton
1987 10
1989 1985
1986
Knight Frank, Cheong Hock Chye & Bailieu
GPT GPT Group
Sunway Berhad CIMB-
CIMB-TrustCapital Advisors Singapore Pte.
Ltd. Silkroad

Property Partners
1979
1985

1991
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Tham Kui Seng 2010 24 254,700
59 2014 17
GLP
CapitalLand Limited
Chief Corporate Officer
2002 2008
The Straits Trading Company Limited
SembCorp Industries Ltd
Banyan Tree
Holdings Limited
Straits Real Estate Pte. Ltd.
Sembcorp Properties Pte. Ltd.
Avanda
Investment Management Pte. Ltd.
Singapore Land Authority
Temasek International Advisors Pte. Ltd.
Maxwell Chambers Pte. Ltd.
The Housing & Development Board
1979
1 Junestar Capital Limited
Dreamhouse Holdings Ltd
200,000 Dr. Seek
Ngree Huat Dr. Seek
Au Yeong Chai Yoke 50 Dr.
Seek Dr. Seek
2 Ming Z. Mei 6,750,000
6,750,000 6,750,000
Ming Z. Mei
Ming Z. Mei 45,754,331
(€] Fang Fenglei Hopu Hopu Logistics Fund L.P.

Khangai Company Limited
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Fang
Fang
74,278,292 Hopu Hopu Fund
Management Company Limited ( Hopu 11 Hopu Fund 11
Management Co., Ltd. ) 143,200
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14

Ming Z. Mei ............... 45 2708, Azia Center
1233 Luj iazui Ring Road
Pudong, Shanghai
China
..................... 47

Mauro Dias .................. 54 510 Pres. Juscelino Kubitschek Ave.
6hek Ave. 66ek Ave. 6hek Ave. 6nd Chief
Fin

Lee Hawley .................. 59 50 Raffles Place,
#32-01 Singapore Land Tower
Singapore 048623

Higashi 46 2708, Azia Center

Michihiro ............... 1233 Luj iazui Ring Road
Pudong, Shanghai
China

Victor Mok .................. 52 2708, Azia Center
1233 Lujiazui Ring Road
Pudong, Shanghai
China

Stephen Schutte ......... 50 50 Raffles Place,
#32-01 Singapore Land Tower
Singapore 048623

Charles Sullivan ......... 59 2 North Riverside Plaza, Suite 2350,
Chicago, IL 60606

Mark Tan ..................... 36 50 Raffles Place,
#32-01 Singapore Land Tower
Singapore 048623

........................ 49

Ralf Wessel ............... 45 50 Raffles Place,
#32-01 Singapore Land Tower
Singapore 048623
Heather Xie ............... 53 2708, Azia Center
1233 Luj iazui Ring Road
Pudong, Shanghai
China
AlanYang ..........c....... 35 100 Wilshire Boulevard, Suite 1760,
Santa Monica, CA 90401
Teresa Zhuge ............... 40 2708, Azia Center
1233 Luj iazui Ring Road
Pudong, Shanghai
China
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Ming Z. Mei SMG
6.8

47 GLP

Mauro Dias 54 GLP

VALE

Lee Hawley 59 GLP

HRT

Capital Management

Higashi Michihiro

Victor Mok 52 GLP
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oooooog
50
Ming Z. Mei
2014
Log-In Logistica Intermodal
1985 2007
FCA
2006 2007
National Association of Railways ANTF 2006
Medal Bardo de Maua
GLP
HRT Edge Limited
500 Doosn Group
PepsiCo Cerberusu
46 GLP 2006 GLP
GLP
CMSTD GLP
GLP
30 GLP DHL
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MBA
Stephen Schutte 50 GLP
IT IR
2011
GLP DCT
DCT Industrial Trust Inc.
Charles Sullivan 59 GLP
IndCorProperties GLP 2015 GLP IndCor
Mark Tan 36 GLP Tan
GLP
Shearman & Sterling LLP
Goldman Sachs Sullivan & Cromwell LLP
49 GLP 2012
GLP
1998
2002
Ralf Wessel 45 GLP 390
GLP
210
Equity Estate
Wessel 19
Heather Xie 53 GLP
GLP
GLP Xie

10 General Electric
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GE Xie
Alan Yang 35 GLP GLP
GLP
700
Teresa Zhuge 40 GLP Zhuge
GLP
GLP

SZITIC Commercial Properties
Morgan Stanley Properties China

Deloitte

2010 24 GLP
GLP
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RERTRAS
RERTEA 14
GRE
Ming Z. el

2012
2017 31 2017
Governance &
Transparency Index 2016 22 631 11

The Business Times
National University of Singapore Business School’ s Centre for Governance, Institutions and
Organization SIAS
2016

2016 10
Best Managed Board Award 3
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CEO €00
CFO
@

CEO COO CFO
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EXCO
EXCO
Steven Lim Kok Hoong Paul

Cheng Ming Fun Lim Swe Guan Tham Kui Seng

2017

12
Seek Ngee Huat

Dipak Chand Jain Steven Lim Kok Hoong

2017
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Seek Ngee Huat Fang
Fenglei Luciano Lewandowski Lim Swe Guan Tham Kui Seng
2017
Dipak Chand Jain
Paul Cheng Ming Fun
2017
Steven Lim Kok Hoong
Luciano Lewandowski Lim Swe Guan
2017
Seek Ngee Huat Steven Lim

Kok Hoong Tham Kui Seng Lim Swe Guan
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2017 32

2017

2017
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32

Dr. Seek Ngee Huat

30 32

Ming Z. Mei

Steven Lim Kok Hoong

28 32

Dr. Dipak Chand Jain

Paul Cheng Ming Fun

Fang Fenglei

Luciano Lewandowski

Lim Swe Guan

28 32

Tham Kui Seng

30 32

CEO

10

Board Paper

Dr. Seek Ngee Huat

Ming Z. Mei

Steven Lim Kok Hoong

Dr. Dipak Chand Jain

Paul Cheng Ming Fun

Fang Fenglei

99/350



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 DO000DO00000OononOO(E24841)
ooooodn

Luciano Lewandowski - - - _

Lim Swe Guan - -

Tham Kui Seng - - -

10
Ming Z. Mei Fang
Fenglei
Luciano Lewandowski 2013 11 14 Lewandowski
S.A. Prosperitas Investimentos S.A.
2012 11 14
2013 2014 GLP 2014
150 2016 18
GLP 2014
11 Luciano Lewandowski
Lewandowski 2016 18
Fang Fenglei 2014 Fang Fenglei

lowa China Offshore
Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited
Hopu Logistics Investment
Management Company Limited
Fang Fenglei
Seek Ngee Huat Steven Lim Kok Hoong Dipak Chand Jain Paul Cheng Ming
Fun Lim Swe Guan Than Kui Seng
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Dipak C. Jian
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CEO
CEO
Lim Swe Guan Ming Z. Mei Tham Kui Seng
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2017
2017 31
Dr. Seek Ngee Huat 2010 24 2016 29
Ming Z.Mei CEO 2010 24 2014 17
Steven Lim Kok Hoong 2010 24 2015 29
Dr. Dipak Chand Jain 2010 24 2015 29
Paul Cheng Ming Fun 2010 24 2016 29
Fang Fenglei 2014 2016 29
2010 24 2016 29
Luciano Lewandowski 2013 11 14 2016 29
Lim Swe Guan 2012 14 2015 29
Tham Kui Seng 2010 24 2014 17
2016

2017
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2017

Directors-in-Dialogue series

CEO CFO COO
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Accounting and Corporate
Regulatory Authority

@
Q)
©

GLP GLP GLP PSP GLP
GLP RSP GLP PSP GLP RSP
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Aon Hewitt
Group McLagan McLagan
CEO
CEO
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2017

GLP
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Ming Z. Mei

GLP RSP
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2018
500,000
50,000
45,000
25,000
30,000
15,000
1 1,500
120,000
2017
) @ ®) ®
Dr. Seek Ngee Huat 306,167 - - - 333,333 639,500
Ming Z. Mei® - 1,308,000 2,777,733 0 5,112,000 9,197,733
Steven Lim Kok Hoong 218,742 - - - 120,000 338,742
Dr. Dipak Chand Jain 120,500 - - - 120,000 240,500
Paul Cheng Ming Fun 115,500 - - - 120,000 235,500
Fang Fenglei® 78,500 - - - 120,000 198,500
113,000 - - - 120,000 233,000
Luciano Lewandowski 108,121 - - - 120,000 228,121
Lim Swe Guan 182,621 - - - 120,000 302,621
Tham Kui Seng 171,000 - - - 120,000 291,000
) 2017 Mei
100,000
) 2016 2017
() Mei
0] GLP GLP RSP
2017 2015 2016 31
2016 2016 15 Dr. Seek Ngee
Huat 2016 120,000 333,333 2017
15
(5) Mei GLP RSP GLP PSP 2016 15 Mei
2016 5,112,000 GLP RSP GLP PSP
Mei GLP RSP GLP PSP Mei GLP RSP
GLP PSP
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(6) Fang Fenglei Hopu Hopu Fund Management
Company Limited ( Hopu 1 Hopu Fund 11 Management Co., Ltd. )
GLP
Dr. Seek Ngee Huat 266,500 409,200 142,700 - 266,500
Ming Z. Mei 2,114,300 4,725,600 1,737,000 - 2,988,600
Steven Lim Kok Hoong 96,000 254,700 158,700 - 96,000
Dr. Dipak Chand Jain 96,000 254,700 158,700 - 96,000
Paul Cheng Ming Fun 96,000 254,700 158,700 - 96,000
Fang Fenglei 96,000 143,200 47,200 - 96,000
96,000 254,700 158,700 - 96,000
Luciano Lewandowski 96,000 175,700 79,700 - 96,000
Lim Swe Guan 96,000 214,700 118,700 - 96,000
Tham Kui Seng 96,000 254,700 158,700 - 96,000
3,148,800 6,941,900 2,918,800 4,023,100
(1) Dr. Seek Ngee Huat 2012 10 24,000
(2) Fang Fenglei 47,200 Hopu Hopu
Fund Management Company Limited ( Hopu 11 Hopu Fund 11

Management Co., Ltd. )
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GLP
Ming Z. Mei 4,930,000 9,998,700 1,986,000 - 8,012,700
(1) GLP PSP 2013 14
Ming Z. Mei GLP PSP
760,000
17
GLP PSP GLP RSP

GLP

CEO

CEO 2017
Co0 Stephen K. Schutte CFO Heather Xie

TREMFEER

@ (+] BH®
85 RaNS >t > 5« T
GLP
GLP GLP PSP GLP RSP

GLP RSP 50 GLP PSP 50

RSP PSP
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GLP

GLP RSP

GLP RSP

RSP
GLP RSP
GLP RSP
GLP PSP
GLP PSP GLP PSP
PSP

()

()

() EBITDA

PSP
PSP 200
GLP RSP GLP PSP
15 15
GLP RSP GLP PSP
Ming Z. Mei 2010 10 18 2014 Ming Z. Mei
2014 2018 31
2017 CEO ) 5,351,448

CEO
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oooooono
2017 250,000
(©)
®
2,500,000
2,750,000
Stephen K. Schutte 27 23 11 39 100
Heather Xie 32 25 9 34 100
@ 5,351,448
) CEO COO CFO
)
() 2017
() 2017 GLP RSP GLP PSP GLP RSP
GLP PSP
2017
C00 CFO ©O) (i)
24 CIC
C00 CFO 8,163,567 CIC Co00 CFO
5,884,558 CEO
CIC 1
2017
GLP PSP GLP RSP
GLP PSP GLP RSP
2017 CEO CEO
2017 50,000

GLP RSP GLP PSP

10
SGXNET

SGXNET
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CFO 2016
CEO  CFO
¢ 1
11
ERM

ERM
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CEO CFO

2017 31

JZ2270tER

=7 IERL IJ ?l?ﬂm 1
'..-I Py :T"iﬁ Rﬁm !mm
12
Steven Lim Kok Hoong 2002 2003
1990 2002
Paul Cheng Ming Fun Lim Swe Guan Tham Kui Seng

2017
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SGXNET

4,659,000 1,196,000

KPMG LLP
KPMG LLP

712 715

GLP

GLP

GLP E
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GLP CEO

13

GLP
CEO

KPMG LLP

Operating Manual

Institute of Internal Auditors 1A
11A
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11A
14
SGXNET
15
IR
IR
Investor Relations and Communications Departments IRC
IR
www . GLProp.com IR
E
IR
SGXNET
SGXNET www.GLProp.com

www.GLProp.com

www .GLProp.com
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16

CD
www.GLProp.com

50 181

CEO

SGXNET

Global Logistic Properties Limited Internal Compliance Code on Dealing in Securities by Relevant
Officers

289

()
)

118/350



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 DO000DO00000OononOO(E24841)
oOoOooodn

2017
10

- 111,000
GIC O 4,050,000

GLP
GIC

9,823,000

72,675,000

200,000
GLP US | 641,000

45,761,000

90,000

| 2,896,000

GLP 2,027,000

4,128,000

7,631,000

12,258,000

@

789,824,000

®)

54,949,000

O

(@) 2016 GIC GLP GIC GLP
77,212,000 GIC 2016
2016 31

@
2015 11 23
15.5 310,549,000
G3) 2015 29 30

*
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2016 31 KPMG LLP Tan Wah Yeow

2016 31 2017 31
1,137 477 1,123 593
3,476 43 3,446 603
4,613 520 4,569 1,196
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23

25
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ASC

38
131

( ( 23 103 )

193

2017 31 UFJ
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2017 31
( )
31 31
2017 2016 2017 2016
4 14,702,578 13,024,178
5 7,366,751 8,742,669
6 2,482,103 1,953,686
7 17,334 20,888
8 49,546 52,871 6,103 7,395
9 447,335 466,408
10 1,160,597 1,015,867
11 231,758 128,182
19,091,251 16,662,080 7,372,854 8,750,064
12 649,399 547,791 1,758,315 1,245,195
14 1,210,540 1,024,563 102,577 42,750
15 808,565 4,894,628
2,668,504 6,466,982 1,860,892 1,287,945
21,759,755 23,129,062 9,233,746 10,038,009
16 6,456,303 6,456,303 6,456,303 6,456,303
16 593,994 593,994
17 2,255,073 1,837,484 177,102 46,657
8,711,376 8,887,781 6,633,405 7,096,954
18 4,503,514 4,272,327
13,214,890 13,160,108 6,633,405 7,096,954
19 4,294,708 3,749,529 1,879,534 1,868,223
20 24,194 30,520 17,580 18,887
7 1,178,477 1,013,334
21 170,905 163,715 100 100
5,668,284 4,957,098 1,897,214 1,887,210
19 1,304,710 1,020,908 600,807 808,944
22 1,060,983 1,025,798 98,699 222,177
20 2,611 22,821 19,724
51,207 53,534 3,621 3,000
15 457,070 2,888,795
2,876,581 5,011,856 703,127 1,053,845
8,544,865 9,968,954 2,600,341 2,941,055
21,759,755 23,129,062 9,233,746 10,038,009
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( )
31 31
2017 2016 2017 2016
4 1,623,459 1,438,130
5 813,437 965, 366
6 274,074 215,726
7 1,914 2,306
8 5,471 5,838 674 817
9 49,395 51,501
10 128,153 112,172
11 25,591 14,154
2,108,056 1,839,827 814,111 966,182
12 71,707 60,487 194,153 137,494
14 133,668 113,132 11,327 4,720
15 89,282 540,465
294,656 714,084 205,480 142,215
2,402,712 2,553,911 1,019,590 1,108,397
16 712,905 712,905 712,905 712,905
16 65,589 65,589
17 249,005 202,895 19,556 5,152
961,910 981,389 732,461 783,646
18 497,278 471,750
1,459,188 1,453,139 732,461 783,646
19 474,222 414,023 207,538 206,289
20 2,672 3,370 1,941 2,086
7 130,127 111,892
21 18,871 18,077 11 11
625,892 547,363 209,490 208,386
19 144,066 112,729 66,341 89,324
22 117,154 113,269 10,898 24,533
20 288 2,520 2,178
5,654 5,911 400 331
15 50,470 318,981
317,632 553,409 77,639 116,366
943,524 1,100,772 287,130 324,751
2,402,712 2,553,911 1,019,590 1,108,397
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( )
31

2017 2016
24 879,587 777,473
25 7,233 7,038
(156,810) (157,041)
(255, 055) (235,805)
474,955 391,665
283,120 240,771
758,075 632,436
26 (223,600) (101,355)
27 16,151 55,001
550,626 586,172
796,973 720,403
27 1,347,599 1,306,575
28 (295,704) (309, 768)
1,051,895 996,807
15 4,473 36,010
1,056,368 1,032,817
793,718 719,083
18 262,650 313,734
1,056,368 1,032,817
29 16.32 14.43
29 16.22 14.38
29 16.26 13.68

29 16.16 13.63
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( )

31

2017 2016

24 97,124 85,849
25 799 777
(17,315) (17,340)
(28,163) (26,038)
52,445 43,248
31,262 26,586
83,707 69,834
26 (24,690) (11,192)
27 1,783 6,083
60,800 64,725
88,002 79,547
27 148,802 144,272
28 (32,652) (34,205)
116,150 110,067
15 494 3,976
116,644 114,044
87,642 79,401
18 29,002 34,643
116,644 114,044
29 1.80 1.59
29 1.79 1.59
29 1.80 1.51

29 1.78 1.51
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31

2016
2016
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17,513
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)
31

2017 2016
1,056,368 1,032,817
(458,903) (476,998)
10,709 (6,174)
56,269 147,480
63,598 (86,396)
(328,327) (422,088)
728,041 610,729
680,928 502,438
47,113 108,291
728,041 610,729




32
827

2016
2016

32
1,934
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)

31

2017 2016

116,644 114,044
(50,672) (52,670)
1,182 (682)
6,213 16,285
7,022 (9,540)
(36,254) (46,607)
80,390 67,437
75,188 55,479
5,202 11,957
80,390 67,437




2015

2017

31
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( )
6,446,957 594,852 (700,704) 2,803,308 (388,979) 8,755,434 4,006,987 12,762,421
719,083 719,083 313,734 1,032,817
(226,971) (226,971) (250,027) (476,998)
(6,174) (6,174) (6,174)
102,896 102,896 44,584 147,480
(81,219) (5,177) (86,396) (86,396)
(308,190) 91,545 (216,645) (205,443) (422,088)
(308,190) 719,083 91,545 502,438 108,291 610,729
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(¢ )
9,346 (9,346)
113,281 113,281
(29,524) (29,524) (29,524)
28,666 (28,666)
14,362 14,362 14,362
(164,641) (164,641) (164,641)
0.055
, (189,597) (189,597) (189,597)
(10,717) (10,717)
9,346 (858) (218,263)  (159,625) (369, 400) 102,564 (266,836)
(732) (732) 17 (1,449)
55,202 55,202
M 4 41
9,346 (858) (218,263)  (160,316) (370,091) 157,049 (213,042)
(1,437) 1,437
2016 31 6,456,303 503,994 (1,008,894) 3,302,601 (456,313) 8,887,781 4,272,327 13,160,108
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2015
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)
711,873 65,684 (77,372) 309,541 (42,951) 966,775 442,452 1,409,227
79,401 79,401 34,643 114,044

(25,062) (25,062) (27,608) (52,670)

(682) (682) (682)
11,362 11,362 4,923 16,285

(8,968) (572) (9,540) (9,540)

(34,030) 10,108 (23,922) (22,685) (46,607)
(34,030) 79,401 10,108 55,479 11,957 67,437
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1,032 (1,032)
12,508 12,508
(3,260) (3,260) (3,260)
3,165 (3,165)
1,586 1,586 1,586
(18,180) (18,180) (18,180)
0.055
(20,935) (20,935) (20,935)
/
(1,183) (1,183)
1,032 (95) (24,101) (17,626) (40,789) 11,325 (29,464)
(81) (81) (79) (160)
6,095 6,095
5 5 5
1,032 (95) (24,101) (17,702) (40,865) 17,341 (23,524)
(159) 159
2016 31 712,905 65,589 (111,402) 364,683 (50, 386) 981,389 471,750 1,453,139
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( )
6,456,303 593,994 (1,008,894) 3,302,691 (456,313) 8,887,781 4,272,327 13,160,108
793,718 793,718 262,650 1,056,368

(224,837) (224,837) (234,066) (458,903)
10,709 10,709 10,709
37,740 37,740 18,529 56,269
60,356 3,242 63,598 63,598

(164,481) 51,601 (112,790) (215,537) (328,327)
(164,481) 793,718 51,601 680,928 47,113 728,041
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(¢ )

96,615 96,615
(30, 389) (30,389) (30,389)

26,789 (26,789)

(590,394) 50,286 (540,108) (540,108)

16,694 16,694 16,694
(85,520) (85,520) (85,520)

0.06
(209,904) (209,904) (209,904)
/

(13,828) (13,828)
(593,994) (186,407) (68,826) (849,227) 82,787 (766,440)
6,716 6,716 (80,796) (74,080)
(14,822) (14,822) (7,959) (22,781)

18,205 18,205

171,837 171,837
(593,994) (186,407) (76,932) (857,333) 184,074 (673,259)

(5.802) 5,802
2017 31 6,456,303 (1,173,375) 3,904,200 (475,752) 8,711,376 4,503,514 13,214,890
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( )
712,905 65,589 (111,402) 364,683 (50, 386) 981,389 471,750 1,453,139
87,642 87,642 29,002 116,644

(24,827) (24,827) (25,846) (50,672)
1,182 1,182 1,182
4,167 4,167 2,046 6,213
6,665 358 7,022 7,022

(18,162) 5,708 (12,454) (23,800) (36,254)
(18,162) 87,642 5,708 75,188 5,202 80,390
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10,668 10,668
(3,356) (3.356) (3,356)

2,958 (2,958)

(65,191) 5,553 (59,639) (59,639)

1,843 1,843 1,843
(9,443) (9,443) (9,443)

0.06
(23,178) (23,178) (23,178)
/

(1,527) (1,527)
(65,589) (20,583) (7,600) (93,772) 9,141 (84,630)
742 742 (8,921) (8,180)
(1,637) (1,637) (879) (2,515)

2,010 2,010

18,974 18,974
(65,589) (20,583) (8,495) (94,667) 20,325 (74,341)

(641) 641
2017 31 712,905 (129,564) 431,102 (52,533) 961,910 497,278 1,459,188
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)

31

2017 2016

1,347,599 1,306,575
10,669 8,830
3,308 2,958
43 (34)
(13,074) (54,269)
291 (105)
(3.592) (999)
(283,120) (240,771)
(796,973) (720,403)
(232) 4,979
116 294
16,694 14,362
223,600 101,355
505,329 422,772
(127,380) (28,057)
21,196 3,615
399,145 398,330
(41,680) (31,538)
357,465 366,792
5,221 51,698
362,686 418,490
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31
2017 2016
30(a) (226,358) (217,848)
(681,182) (167,087)
378,504 313,649
(115,815) (371,940)
5,000
(992,878) (1,121,312)
30(b) 14
30(c) 1,843,489 1,578,096
(132,427) (289,561)
98,086 65,605
(129,640)
(10,156) (8,357)
3,112 324
20,802 23,222
30,800
110,926 24,102
(6,250)
(33,613) (21,332)
(12,465) (18,954)
(27,760) (23,959)
(32,768) (9,808)
(77,433) (53,933)
26,019
39,363 20,165
54,771
138,377 (285,164)
(743,325) (4,652,024)
(604,948) (4,937,188)
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31
2017 2016
(73,706) (1,449)
96,615 83,525
171,338
(22,475)
1,571,098 1,910,539
(1,045,638) (853,332)
293,952 1,075,210
(514,802) (166,964)
(337) (1,042)
(130,460) (96,671)
(209,904) (189,597)
(13,828) (10,717)
(30,389) (29,524)
(85,520) (164,641)
3,583
(41,831) (12,450)
(9,829) 1,520,412
445,466 2,768,527
435,637 4,288,939
193,375 (229,759)
1,024,563 1,445,675
(43,695) (26,659)
1,174,243 1,189,257
(13,535) (164,694)
49,832
14 1,210,540 1,024,563
29,756
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)

31

2017 2016

148,802 144,272
1,178 975
365 327
5 (O]
(1,444) (5,992)
32 12)
(397) (110)
(31,262) (26,586)
(88,002) (79,547)
(26) 550
13 32
1,843 1,586
24,690 11,192
55,798 46,682
(14,065) (3,098)
2,340 399
44,074 43,984
(4,602) (3,482)
39,471 40,501
577 5,708
40,048 46,210
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31
2017 2016
30(a) (24,994) (24,055)
(75,216) (18,450)
41,794 34,633
(12,788) (41,070)
552
(109,634) (123,815)
30(b) 2
30(c) 203,558 174,253
(14,623) (31,973)
10,831 7,244
(14,315)
(1,121) (923)
344 36
2,297 2,564
3,401
12,248 2,661
(690)
3.712) (2,355)
(1,376) (2,093)
(3,065) (2,646)
(3,618) (1,083)
(8,550) (5,955)
2,873
4,346 2,227
6,048
15,280 (31,488)
(82,078) (513,676)

(66,798) (545,164)

143/350



2016

31

144/350

EDINETOOOO
000000000000 DO000DO00000OononOO(E24841)

OooooOodd
( )
31
2017 2016

(8,139) (160)
10,668 9,223

18,919
(2,482)
173,481 210,962
(115,459) (94,225)
32,458 118,725
(56,844) (18,436)
@GN (115)
(14,405) (10,674)
(23,178) (20,935)
(1,527) (1,183)
(3,356) (3,260)
(9,443) (18,180)

396
(4,619) (1,375)
(1,085) 167,884
49,188 305,701
48,103 473,585
21,352 (25,370)
113,132 159,631
(4,825) (2,944)
129,660 131,318
(1,495) (18,186)

5,502
14 133,668 113,132

3,286



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 DO000DO00000OononOO(E24841)
oOoOooodn

2017 31

2017 26

048623

#32-01 50

2.1

FRS

2.2

2.3

2.4
FRS
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15
33

FRS

146/350



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 DO000DO00000OononOO(E24841)
oOoOooodn

2016

3.1

)
FRS 103

FRS
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3.2
)

)

)

)
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3.3
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3.7 3.2(i)

)
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3.4

40
50

)

3.14

)
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3.6

)
2010

2010

()

()

3.7
)

20

31
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CGU

CGU

CGU

CGU

CGU

CGU CGU

CGU
CGU

3.8

3.9
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3.10

3.1
)

)

)

()

3.12
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3.13

3.14

3.15
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3.17

3.18
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EPS
EPS
EPS
3.19
CODM
CODM
3.20
3.21

2017
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FRS 115
FRS 115
2018
FRS 115
FRS 18
FRS 11 FRS 113
FRS
115 FRS
118 FRS
31
FRS 115 2018
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FRS 109
FRS 109 FRS 39
FRS 39

FRS 109 2018

2018
IFRS
2014 29
SGX 2019
SG-1FRS
SG-1FRS
FRS109

SG-1FRS
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FRS 109

FRS 109

FRS 109

FRS 109

FRS 109

2018

ASC
31

SG-1FRS
SG-1FRS 15
FRS115

161/350



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 DO000DO00000OononOO(E24841)

oOoOooodn
FRS 116
FRS 116
12
ROU ROU
FRS116 FRS 17 2019
2017
FRS 17
2018 SG-1FRS
IFRS 16
FRS 116 SG-1FRS 116
FRS 116
FRS 17
FRS 104
FRS 15
FRS 27
FRS 116 2019
FRS 115
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2017 2016
13,024,178 11,331,778
1,648,730 1,546,588
(374,560) (315,016)
30(a) 256,102 392,218
26 6,986 9,722
796,973 720,403
(33,650) (152,224)
(622,181) (509,291)
31 14,702,578 13,024,178
11,651,111 10,535,518
357,675 169,901
1,253,305 1,287,713
1,440,487 1,031,046
14,702,578 13,024,178
2017 31 33,650 GLP US
15
2016 31
152,224 30(c)
20
2017 31 8,003,045 2016 6,431,920
19
6,986 2016
9,722
()
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DCF

(

)

31

2.4

14,702,578 2016 13,024,178
2017 2016
13,024,178 11,331,778
1,655,716 1,556,310
(374,560) (315,016)
256,102 392,218
(33,650) (152,224)
796,973 720,403
(622,181) (509,291)
14,702,578 13,024,178
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5.75  7.25
(2016 5.75 7.25 )
4.50  6.40
(2016  4.70  6.40 )

DCF

9.00  11.00
(2016 8.50  11.50 )
5.00 6.90
(2016  5.20 6.90 )

5.75  7.25
(2016 5.75  7.25 )
4.75  6.65
(2016 4.95 6.65 )

1

5.75  7.25
(2016 5.75 7.25 )

2017 2016
7,140,172 8,529,199
(94,370) (94,370)
7,045,802 8,434,829
320,949 307,840
7,366,751 8,742,669

94,370

36

165/350
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2017 2016
318,357 26,201
2,163,746 1,927,485
2,482,103 1,953,686
792,411 952,997
380,342 218,307
2016 2016
2017 2016

! (@)

GLP US 9.85 2
GLP 33.33 33.33
GLP 50.00 50.00

I
50.00
GLP 40.00 40.00
1
GLP 34.20 34.20
GLP 39.98 39.98
GLP US 10.35 10.35
GLP
2016 31 9.85
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100 FRS
6LP 6LP GLP US
6LP 6LP GLP US
2017
33.33 50.00 40.00 34.20 39.98 10.35 9.85
63,260 77,672 34,290 68,521 64,038 677,886 359,390 621,648 1,966,705
(24,867) (39,236) (12,488) (32,965) (39,205) (428,464) (306,558) (579,733)  (1,463,516)
36,171 191,564 59,461 59,585 (29,420) 540,725 198,393 72,981 1,129,460
4,724) (11,611) (20,565) (23,601) (4,558) (275,930) (87,954) (21,727) (450,670)
69,840 218,389 60,698 71,540 (9,145) 514,217 163,271 93,169 1,181,979
_ _ _ _ — — (11,099) (11,099)
69,840 218,389 60,698 71,540 (9,145) 514,217 163,271 82,070 1,170,880
4,567 2,988 54,000 51,334 53,021 — — (1,057) 164,853
74,407 221,377 114,698 122,874 43,876 514,217 163,271 81,013 1,335,733
2 2 2,287 2,877 4,496 555 1 2,159 12,379
(2,262) (3,923) — — — — (5,432) (11,617),
(6,949) (4,302) (14,739) (32,635) (32,177) (196,723) (165,619) (28,301) (481,445),
1,156,504 2,231,930 753,946 919,228 823,089 8,156,528 4,716,823 1,855,097 20,613,145
43,321 84,089 35,508 37,338 26,900 209,569 124,723 426,888 988,336
1,199,825 2,316,019 789,454 956,566 849,989 8,366,097 4,841,546 2,281,985 21,601,481
(594,634) (895,818) (156,263) (353,557) (287,857) (4,229,851)  (3,072,341) (524,096)  (10,114,417)
(24,674) (318,541) (25,192) (28,639) (20,039) (493,458) (228,746) (575,742)  (1,715,031)
(619,308) (1,214,359) (181,455) (382,196) (307,896) (4,723,309)  (3,301,087) (1,099,838)  (11,829,448)
36,675 57,834 19,434 24,397 9,375 183,747 106,751 145,921 584,134
( (3,419) (165,404) (15,785) (11,453) (13,984) (362,403) (162,464) (75,526) (810,438),
( (563,822) (836,235) (115,697) (286,744) (280,413) (4,201,355)  (3,062,493) (391,381)  (9,738,140)
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6LP 6LP
GLP 6LP GLP US
2016
33.33 50.00 50.00 40.00 34.20 39.98 10.35
57,344 49,319 12,638 22,166 62,262 62,813 676,324 49,029 991,895
(21,612) (27,782) (3,236) (17,969) (39,986) (37,633) (464,715) (31,854) (644,787)
106,270 241,186 10,489 1,713 3,689 (11,953) 155,928 49,936 557,258
(8,250) (14,454) (870) 56 (4,402) 721 (119,378) (19,719) (166,290)
133,752 248,269 19,021 5,966 21,563 13,954 248,159 47,392 738,076
(1,626) (8,603) — (72,021) (71,227) (70,157) — (4,094) (227,728)
132,126 239,666 19,021 (66,055) (49,664) (56,203) 248,159 43,298 510,348
8 11 2 3,185 2,079 3,230 74 384 8,973
(2,036) (3,365) (363) — — — (136) (5,900)
(6,509) (2,847) (213) (7,945) (30,936) (31,439) (214,886) (14,502) (309,277),
1,106,923 1,798,213 270,050 538,866 701,195 661,591 8,283,747 1,272,999 14,633,584
54,805 116,181 14,581 22,084 22,869 36,916 196,894 103,048 567,378
1,161,728 1,914,394 284,631 560,950 724,064 698,507 8,480,641 1,376,047 15,200,962
(329,055) (719,922) (6,746) (120,625) (284,685) (247,509)  (5,080,215) (391,845)  (7,180,602)
(232,846) (278,649) (141,543) (20,208) (25,668) (20,410) (131,968) (160,676)  (1,011,968)
(561,901) (998,571) (148,289) (140,833) (310,353) (267,919)  (5,212,183) (552,521)  (8,192,570)
47,742 98,475 12,850 12,587 12,184 20,970 167,521 53,255 425,584
( (213,112) (196,274) (137,751) (6,850) (8,838) (15,319) — (25,577) (603,721),
( (296,608) (674,435) — (106,764) (248,426) (244,476)  (4,934,419) (295,989) (6,801,117
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6LP 6LP 6LP GLP GLP
G6LP US G6LP US
2017
33.33 50.00 40.00 34.20 39.98 10.35 9.85
201,940 462,482 173,845 146,180 171,818 340,434 456,987 1,953,686
24,803 110,689 45,879 42,028 17,541 53,237 16,082 36,459 346,718
(9,654) (22,767) (14,261) (4,186) (57,004) (107,872)
( )
( )
(23,426) 4,698 19,310 4,463 15,181 14,115 34,341
30 (26,338) (26,338)
(@
30(a) 124,612 124,612
143,148 143,148
30(c) !
1,868 362 10,319 8,521 11,948 (19,210) 13,808
195,531 555,464 249,353 201,192 216,488 379,410 155,044 529,621 2,482,103
3,315
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ooooodo
6LP 6LP 6LP 6LP US
2016

33.33 50.00 50.00 40.00 34.20 39.98 10.35
157,533 204,872 56,986 187,007 164,846 188,624 290,903 293,246 1,544,017
44,042 119,833 9,511 (26,422) (16,987) (22,471) 25,692 21,177 154,375
(4,647) (2,766) (16,689) (24,102)

( )
L (25,880) (25,880)
( )
(6,474) 113,573 (2,027) 13,260 1,087 5,665 (6,063) 121,978 240,999
3,215 3,215
2 (7,008) (7,008)
3 10,044 10,044
36,547 36,547
11,486 24,204 3,700 (17,911) 21,479
201,940 462,482 68,170 173,845 146,180 171,818 340,434 388,817 1,953,686
30(a)
12 LLC 45.00
15
2015 10 GLP US 44.65 0.35
2015 31 GLP US 45.00
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ooooooo
30 31
(G) 28
2017
26,429 1,400 (1,419) — 2,663 — 29,073
771 — 34 — (805) — —
736 — 19 (294 — — 461
10,100 — ayn — 3,186 (69) 13,206
38,036 1,400 .37 94 5,044 (69) 42,740
(994,025) (6.304) 57,931 — (223,519) —  (1,165,917)
(18,025) — 1,129 (7,488) — — (24,384)
(18,432) — 620 — (1,884) 6,114 (13,582)
(1,030,482) (6,304) 59,680 (7,488) (225,403) 6,114  (1,203,883)
(992,446) (4,904) 58,303 (7.782) (220,359) 6,045  (1,161,143)
30 31
@) 28
2016
25,342 512 (1,394) — 1,969 26,429
1,035 — 41 — (305) 771
407 — 41 290 @ 736
5,625 — (128) — 4,603 10,100
32,409 512 (1,440) 290 6,265 38,036
(842,398) (5,111) 52,341 — (198,857) (994,025)
(584) — 72 (17,513) — (18,025)
(6,504) — 416 — (12,344) (18,432)
(849,486) (5,111) 52,829 (17,513) (211,201) (1,030,482)
(817,077) (4,599) 51,389 (17,223) (204,936) (992,446)
2017 2016
17,334 20,888
(1,178,477) (1,013,334)
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15,131 2016 16,689

2017 2016

334,624 264,366
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2015

2016

2017

2015

2016

2017

2015
2016
2017

31

31

31

31

31

31
31

30(a)
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72,009 2,414 74,423
239 239

5,699 2,658 8,357
(408) (408)
266 (266)

459 6 465
78,264 4,812 83,076
9,117 1,039 10,156
(3,469) (3,469)

5,856 (5,856)

(242) 5 (237)
89,526 89,526
22,248 22,248

8,830 8,830

(189) (189)

(684) (684)
30,205 30,205
10,669 10,669

(154) (154)

(740) (740)
39,980 39,980
49,761 2,414 52,175
48,059 4,812 52,871
49,546 49,546
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2015 7,133 2,384 9,517
584 2,158 2,742

234 (232)
2016 31 7,951 4,308 12,259
1,312 778 2,090

5,086 (5,086)
2017 31 14,349 14,349
2015 2,497 2,497
2,367 2,367
2016 31 4,864 4,864
3,382 3,382
2017 31 8,246 8,246
2015 4,636 2,384 7,020
2016 31 3,087 4,308 7,395
2017 31 6,103 6,103
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2015

2016

2017

2015

2016

2017

2015

2016
2017

2017

GLP
GLP

31

31

31

31

31

31
31
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oOoOooodn

455,367 40,604 7,100 503,071

30(a) 762 762
(17,944) (1,540) (269) (15) (19,768)

437,423 39,064 6,831 747 484,065

30(a) 217 217
(16,133) (1,357) (41) (17,531)

421,290 37,707 6,831 923 466,751

9,026 6,322 15,348

2,108 734 116 2,958
(420) (225) ) (649)

10,714 6,831 112 17,657

2,032 145 2,177
(408) (10) (418)

12,338 6,831 247 19,416

455,367 31,578 778 487,723

437,423 28,350 635 466,408

421,290 25,369 676 447,335

31 olell]
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
226,528 239,588 8.5 8.5 3.0 3.0
141,467 141,467 5.0 5.0 1.0 1.0
53,295 56,368 8.5 8.5 3.0 3.0
ACL
421,290 437,423
ACL
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OooooOodd
oell
DCF
ceu ceu
2017 2016
1,044,886 985,943
115,711 29,924
1,160,597 1,015,867
GLP 13.6 (2016  15.0 )
CMSTD
15.5 (2016  15.5 )
SCPSB
19.9 (2016  19.9 )
0.9 (2016 )
32 33
2017 31 2016

95,446 2016 30,677
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31

2017 2016
29,924 21
95,446 30,677
(5.000)

(4,659) 774)

115,711 29,924
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2017 2016
33,810 31,419
11,688 2,786
2,568 3,930
— 18,675 21,412
— 60,252 52,331
55,409 10,634
13 36,467 5,402

12,616
273 268
231,758 128,182
8,153 2016
5.39 8.00 2016

5.39 8.00 2025 2016 2024

178/350
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12
2017 2016 2017 2016
99,798 77,947
(288) (588)
99,510 77,359
— 87,720 104,077
— 1,668,599 1,137,568
— 83,000 75,150
— 7,765 3,837 283 300
— 15,179 12,820
— 16,269 19,145
954 6,394
14,212 21,462
21,716 36,370
54,145
— 70,786 53,655
— 2,913
232,794 282,978 1,756,602 1,241,945
13 53,474 4,479
112,292 51,568 220 187
57,177 43,183 358 2,045
(k) (13)
57,166 43,170 358 2,045
555,236 459,554 1,757,180 1,244,177
5,836
88,327 88,237 1,135 1,018
649,399 547,791 1,758,315 1,245,195
3.95 5.00 2016 2.82
5.00
2.00 2016 10.00
4.35 8.00

(2016  4.00 10.00 ) 12

179/350
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50,730

2016
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OooooOodd
12
53,655 4.90 10.00
12 7,50
84,091 2016 50,508
2016
50,871 2016 34,475
2016 28,725
2017 2016
403,725 (291) 285,577 (601)
55,314 49,338
54,403 56,718
37,817 ®) 66,574
4,276 1,948
555,535 (299) 460,155 (601)
1,757,180 1,244,177
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(b)
2017 2016
472,543 423,589
30 35,727 19,825
31 90 26,336 ®) 10,524
90 20,929 (291) 6,217 (601)
555,535 (299) 460,155 (601)
1,757,180 1,244,177
©)
2017 2016 2017 2016
601 498
« (232) 4,979
[C7)) (4,843)
(26) 33)

31 299 601
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OooooOodd
13
2017
2020
2017 2016
57,507 5,076
38,517 5,697
96,024 10,773
(6.083) (892)
89,941 9,881
2017 2016
12 53,474 4,479
11 36,467 5,402
89,941 9,881
14
2017 2016 2017 2016
283,099 22,993 95,132 45
877,609 1,001,570 7,445 42,705
49,832
1,210,540 1,024,563 102,577 42,750
0.01 2.52 2016  0.01 2.52 1.05 1.60 2016  0.02 0.85

12
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Ogoooood
15
2017 2016
808,565 4,894,628
(457,070) (2,888,795)
351,495 2,005,833
2016 12 15 12 90
GLP US 100
GLP US
33,650 GLP US
2017 31 GLP US
50
40
344,487
2016 31 12
90 GLP US 100
1,998,825 90.15 2016
4,473 2016 36,010
2017 31 12
LLC 45.00 2016  45.00
7,008 2016 7,008

183/350



16
C))

GLP
31

31

1,448,000

(®)

GLP
31

©
2012

2017

@

31

17

7,764

750,000
10,669
540,108
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2017 2016
4,844,366 4,839,908
4,458
4,844,366 4,844,366
(157,357) (100,680)
4,687,009 4,743,686
GLP PSP 2016
2017 2016
100,680
64,201 105,214
(7,524) (4,534)
157,357 100,680
750,000 587,490
5.50
2017
529,439
590,394
50,286
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2017 2016
5,599,418 4,770,437
(1,210,540) (1,024,563)
4,388,878 3,745,874
13,214,890 13,160,108

0.33

0.28
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2017 2016 2017 2016
88,569 89,783 (2,037) (3,127)
23,929 19,639 23,929 19,639

(31,197) (45,148) (10,566) (15,690)
374,477 336,737
(699,778) (699,778)
(231,752) (157,546) (231,752) (157,546)
(475,752) (456,313) (220,426) (156,724)

(1,173,375) (1,008,894)

3,904,200 3,302,691 397,528 203,381
2,255,073 1,837,484 177,102 46,657
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CLF Fund

LP
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NCI
NCI
2017 2016
46.86% 46.86%
44.12% 44 .12%
33.79% 33.79%
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OooooOodd
NCI FRS « )
36
ACL CLF
Fund ,LP
2017
55,656 56,440 588,276 224,463
37,764 83,048 580,688 24,059
(38,509) (77.172) (464,237)
(745) 5,876 116,451 24,059
NCI 5,851
(745) 5,876 110,600 24,059
NCI
17,696 36,641 163,133 45,180 262,650
(18,045) (34,048) (125,761) (37,683)  (215,537)
(349) 2,593 37,372 7,497 47,113
1,283,944 2,125,401 13,997,638 4,207,147
39,258 143,848 1,289,427 402,104
1,323,202 2,269,249 15,287,065 4,609,251
(451,952) (627,542)  (4,454,988)  (1,046,334)
(183,204) (198,843)  (1,376,503) (595,428)
(635, 156) (826,385)  (5,831,491)  (1,641,762)
NCI (1,715,873)
688,046 1,442,864 7,739,701 2,967,489
NCI 322,429 636,556 2,615,245 929,284 4,503,514
26,529 15,463 224,667
(3.154) (338,790)  (1,580,965)
(22,551) 226,171 1,251,454
NCI
824 (97,156) (104,844)
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ACL CLF
Fund ,LP
2016
64,279 33,978 532,057 141,050
40,893 109,163 681,598 182,774
(41,808) (80,401) (430,627)
(915) 28,762 250,971 182,774
NCI 33,070
(915) 28,762 217,901 182,774
NCI
19,163 48,160 187,737 58,674 313,734
(19,592) (35,472) (114,108) (36,271) (205, 443)
(429) 12,688 73,629 22,403 108,291
1,315,209 1,778,044 12,375,694 2,923,151
31,539 227,285 1,239,897 306,931
1,346,748 2,005,329 13,615,591 3,230,082
(476,189) (437,300)  (3,056,433) (524,518)
(181,767) (187,891)  (1,231,958) (477,410)
(657,956) (625,191)  (4,288,391)  (1,001,928)
NCI (1,692,594)
688,792 1,380,138 7,634,606 2,228,154
NCI 322,778 608,884 2,579,733 760,932 4,272,327
67,566 12,304 254,430
(2,741) (488,281)  (1,825,475)
NCI (56,100) 371,092 1,576,578
8,725 (104,885) 5,533
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2017 2016 2017 2016
1,666,888 1,187,467
531,702 693,839
711,164 700,134 711,078 700,134
1,384,954 1,168,089 1,168,456 1,168,089
4,294,708 3,749,529 1,879,534 1,868,223
123,904 87,738
175,659 7,894
468,340 516,332 64,000 400,000
408,944 408,944
536,807 536,807
1,304,710 1,020,908 600,807 808,944
@)
6,326,577 2016
4,818,401 ( )
0.14 5.93 2016
0.18 6.55 1.01 1.70 2016  0.83 1.34
2017 2016 2017 2016
592,244 604,070 64,000 400,000
1,411,670 1,073,881 356,973 351,640
966,382 813,720 354,105 348,494
2,378,052 1,887,601 711,078 700,134
2,970,296 2,491,671 775,078 1,100,134
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©
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2017 2016 2017 2016
1,771,234 1,223,291
423,984 168,246
775,078 1,100,134 775,078 1,100,134
2,970,296 2,491,671 775,078 1,100,134
1,676,468 2016
1.70 2016
2017 2016 2017 2016
175,659 7,894
531,702 642,658
51,181
531,702 693,839
707,361 701,733
2.70 3.88 2016 2.70 4.17
2017 2016 2017 2016
408,944 408,944
267,273 53,894 50,775 53,894
1,117,681 1,114,195 1,117,681 1,114,195
1,384,954 1,168,089 1,168,456 1,168,089
1,384,954 1,577,033 1,168,456 1,577,033
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@
536,807 750,000
16(c) 5.50 2017
20
2017 2016 2017 2016
7,013 4,496 7,013 4,496
17,181 26,024 10,567 14,391
24,194 30,520 17,580 18,887
—_ 19,724 —_ 19,724
2,611 3,007 — —
2,611 22,821 — 19,724
26,805 53,341 17,580 38,611
21
2017 2016 2017 2016
152,034 142,271 — —
12,209 12,913 — —
524 395 100 100
5,470 7,301 — —
668 745 — —

170,905 163,715 100 100
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2017 2016 2017 2016
8,082 4,391 — —
429,290 495,773 — —
84,328 82,260 20,202 20,961
31,688 32,241 — —
104,164 95,870 — —
— —_ 44,939 181,633
2,041 2,135 — —
1,815 1,218 — —
1,740 11,772 — —
31,592 35,753 — —
41,319 22,423 29,924 18,595
147,945 99,536 — —
63,488 23,071 — —
55,712 58,924 — —
57,779 60,431 3,634 988
1,060,983 1,025,798 98,699 222,177
4.00
18.00 2016 4.35 10.00
14,236 2016 16(c)
23
GLP
GLP GLP PSP GLP
GLP RSP GLP PSP GLP
GLP
Seek Ngee Huat Dipak Chand Jain Steven Lim Kok Hoong

HRCC

GLP PSP GLP RSP

193/350
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GLP RSP

GLP RSP

GLP RSP
GLP RSP
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GLP PSP GLP
HRCC
2017 2016
10,680 8,928
11,301 4,648
(2,697) (2,896)
19,284 10,680
2017 2016
0.71 0.91 101
14.67% 15.08% 13.10%
1.79 2.06 » 61
1.15% 1.39% 1.32%
3.10% 3.52% 2.29%
GLP RSP
2017 2016
9,534 8,264
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12,638 6,006
(4,827) (4,616)
(570) (120)
16,775 9,534
2017 2016
1.67 1.97 » 50
24.51% 29.86% 20.26%
1.79 2.06 » 61
0.85% 1.12% 1.06%
3.01% 3.40% 2.20%
16,694 2016
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24

25

2017 2016
670,599 633,199
162,488 123,905
18,464 14,394
22,857 379
5,179 5,596
879,587 777,473
2017 2016
4,520 4,323
2,198 2,313
515 402
7,233 7,038
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2017 2016

6,692 6,681

488 2,369

11,729 13,345

994 —

19,903 22,395

(8,782) (8,104)

(57,313) (51,621)

(76,749) (58,282)

(1,932) (1,977)
1 (3,394) —
(148,170) (119,984)

6,986 9,722

(141,184) (110,262)

(92,809) (8,744)

(9,510) (4,744)

(223,600) (101,355)

2017

31

197/350
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2017 2016

@
“3) 34
(116) (294)
1 13,074 54,269
(91) 105
3,592 999
(65) (22)
16,151 55,091

®
(88,444) (82,986)
(4,299) (4,836)
(5.419) (4,835)
(11,275) (9,527)
(16,694) (14,362)

©
(10,669) (8,830)
(3,308) (2,958)
232 (4,979)
(10,679) (9,182)
(2,903) (1,702)
(1,213) (1,137)
(3.,446) (3,596)
(593) (477)
(603) (48)
(18,988) an

)
(238,138) (235,550)

12017 31 GLP US
90.15 8,730 30 ¢ GLP
us 44.65

4,344

30

198/350



28

2016

31

44.65

17
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GLP US
54,145 30
2017 2016
51,807 51,615
23,136 48,860
402 4,357
75,345 104,832
220,359 204,936
295,704 309,768
1,347,599 1,306,575
(283,120) (240,771)
1,064,479 1,065,804
180,961 181,187
36,833 39,940
(3,524) 2,757)
39,680 27,383
18,600 15,670
(572) (4,335)
23,136 48,860
402 4,357
188 (537)
295,704 309,768
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@
2017

2017

2016

2016

GLP

GLP
31

2016

31

2016
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790,858 2,860 793,718

(26,789) (26,789)

764,069 2,860 766,929

16.26 0.06 16.32

683,073 36,010 719,083

(28,666) (28,666)

654,407 36,010 690,417

13.68 0.75 14.43
2017 2016

4,743,686 4,839,908

2,622

(51,074) (61,902)

5,986 2,668

4,698,598 4,783,296
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2017

2017

2016

2016

GLP

31

30

@

( ) 2017
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2016 31
2016

790,858 2,860 793,718
(26,789) (26,789)

764,069 2,860 766,929

16.16 0.06 16.22

683,073 36,010 719,083
(28,666) (28,666)

654,407 36,010 690,417

13.63 0.75 14.38

2017 2016

4,698,598 4,783,296

30,602 18,039

4,729,200 4,801,335

31
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2016 95

2016 95

- 2016 95

h 2016 95
2016 89

2016 89

2016 100

2016 95

2016 95

2017 80

2017 100

2017 100

2017 100

2017 100

2017 100

2017 100

2017 70

2017 90

GLP-NC 2017 100
2017 100

GLP-HC 2017 100
2017 100

CLH 2017 100
2017 100

2017 100
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2017 31

256,102
217
124,612
1,400
216
4,698
8,395
(53,455)
(352)
(6,304)
(18,205)
317,324
(3,503)
(313,821)
89,411
26,338
(198,072)
8,395
(36,681)
(226,358)

313,821 2017 31
2,568
2016
885,857 1,047,317
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( ) 2016 31
2015 60
2015 7 100
2015 7 100
2015 7 100
2015 8 100
2015 9 100
6LP 2015 10 70
2015 11 9
2015 11 90
2015 11 95
2015 11 95
2015 12 55.90
2015 12 60
GLP-HC 2015 12 95
GLP-HC 2015 12 95
GLP 2016 56.38
T 2016 100
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2016 31

392,218
762
512
28
239
7,725
10,297
(80,540)
(253)
(5,111)
(55,202)
270,675
(2,267)
(268,408)
39,042
25,880
(203,486)
10,297
(24,659)
(217,848)

268,408 2016 31
9,585
2015
791,342 1,045,643
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()
( ) 2017 31
( ) 2016 31
17 2015 10 100
GLP DH2 15 2016 100
GLP DH2 15 2016 100
2016 31
19
10
(39)
(10)
34
24
(10)
14
2015 30
©
( ) 2017 31
2016 31 12
2015 11 GLP US 100
90.15 2016 1,785,000
8,730 9.85
2017 31 GLP US 44..65

58,489 4,344
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2017 31

GLP US

4,644,660
17,959

507

16,119

164,686

12,889

(65,975)

(2,809,254)

(13,566)

1,968,025

(143,148)

(50,702)

1,774,175

8,730

1 2,095

GLP US 1,785,000

1 2017 31

GLP US

58,489
(54,145)

4,344

1,843,489

207/350



( ) 2016

2015

2016

2016

31
31
2015 26
2015 10 26
31
31
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12
GLP US 45.00
1,524,145 54,145

117,785
124

152,224
1,270,346
2,648
9,689
199,655
(869)
(46,032)
1,587,661
54,269
1,641,930
(54,145)
(9,689)
1,578,096
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CODM

EBIT
EBIT
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2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
586,386 531,036 205,396 178,651 77,096 59,211 10,709 8,575 — — 879,587 777,473
655,426 682,421 139,368 37,982 — — 2,179 — — — 796,973 720,403
23,965 15,808 102,931 153,198 49,080 9,656 19,075 (1,787) — — 195,061 176,875
(137,143)  (39,371) (10,841) (11,842) 9,512 11,914 746 (138) (85.874) (61,918) (223,600) (101,355)
(258,122) (255,641) (25,822) (18,177) (8.598) (32,613) (1.536) (139) (1.626) (3.198) (295,704) (309,768)
640,654 708,797 393,136 318,790 99,433 63,129 40,736 7,456 (122,064) (101,365) 1,051,895 996,807
— — — — 4,473 36,010 — — — — 4,473 36,010
640,654 708,797 393,136 318,790 103,906 99,139 40,736 7,456 (122,064) (101,365) 1,056,368 1,032,817
EBIT 1,035,919 1,003,809 429,799 348,809 107,657 170,150 41,526 7,733  (34,564) (36,249) 1,580,337 1,494,252
EBIT 356,528 305,580 187,500 157,629 58,567 160,494 20,272 9,520  (34,564) (36,249) 588,303 596,974
'( paTut ) 379618 395,063 393,136 318,790 102,202 99,139 40,736 7,456 (122,064) (101,365) 763,718 719,083
-NCI 261,036 313,734 — — 1,614 — — — — — 262,650 313,734
oATII 96,467 114,040 157,805 129,509 53,202 89,482 20,223 9,243 (122,064) (101,365) 205,633 240,909

210/350



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 DO000DO00000OononOO(E24841)

oOoOooodn
12,406,581 11,060,495 2,159,046 1,963,683 46,732 — 90,219 — — — 14,702,578 13,024,178
497,293 367,844 781,708 751,952 536,068 342,047 667,034 491,843 — — 2,482,103 1,953,686

2,380,151 2,186,098 1,036,096 825,880 965,415 5,014,996 16,491 8,346 176,921 115,878 4,575,074 8,151,198

15,284,025 13,614,437 3,976,850 3,541,515 1,548,215 5,357,043 773,744 500,189 176,921 115,878 21,759,755 23,129,062

(1,987,732) (1,223,291) (1,131,344)  (869,980) — — — —  (2,480,342) (2,677,166) (5,599,418) (4,770,437)

(2,147,599) (1,925,130) (209,401) (267,115) (469,768) (2,911,683) (33,401) (5,283)  (85,278)  (89,306) (2,945,447) (5,198,517)

(4,135,331) (3,148,421) (1,340,745) (1,137,095) (469,768) (2,911,683) (33,401) (5,283) (2,565,620) (2,766,472) (8,544,865) (9,968,954)

(4.,472) (5,507) (4,129) (3,366) (140) —  @m) G4 (4,513) (2,368)  (13,977)  (11,788)
6,831 7,220 1 19 9,512 11,914 531 371 3,028 2,871 19,903 22,395
EBITDA 162,022 145,633 — — 3,687 — — — — — 165,709 145,633
NCI
1
) 1,092,143 1,409,259 406,900 151,759 80,681 437 84,059 an 2,089 2,741 1,665,872 1,564,667

1 EBITDA EBIT
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AC
GLP
MRC
MRC

GLP AC
MRC
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2017 2016 2017 2016
771,810 583,806 1,757,180 1,244,177
1,210,540 1,024,563 102,577 42,750
1,982,350 1,608,369 1,859,757 1,286,927

2017 2016 2017 2016
1,272,802 1,203,817 — —
389,872 182,415 — —
157,038 107,066 1,859,757 1,286,927
149,220 109,833 — —
13,418 5,238 — —
1,982,350 1,608,369 1,859,757 1,286,927

2017 31 2,452,903 2016 2,539,355
634,250 2016 728,011
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2017
2,970,296 3,357,809 679,912 1,647,546 1,030,351
2,092,315 2,519,496 230,718 998,795 1,289,983
536,807 537,292 537,292
1 1,194,730 1,195,983 1,030,549 126,204 39,230
6,794,148 7,610,580 2,478,471 2,772,545 2,359,564
7,013

- 59,478 1,643 57,835

- (52,434) (2,012) (50,422)
( ) 19,792 20,515 5,834 14,275 406
6,820,953 7,638,139 2,483,936 2,794,233 2,359,970

2016
2,491,671 2,881,300 631,790 1,249,655 999,855
2,278,766 2,733,327 471,756 879,884 1,381,687
1 1,149,881 1,153,375 997,050 120,645 35,680
5,920,318 6,768,002 2,100,596 2,250,184 2,417,222
24,220

- 496,493 437,015 59,478

- (472,935) (418,467) (54,468)
( ) 29,121 29,739 5,419 22,440 1,880
5,973,659 6,821,299 2,124,563 2,277,634 2,419,102

214/350



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 DO000DO00000OononOO(E24841)
oOoOooodn

2017
775,078 812,312 71,234 380,716 360,362
1,168,456 1,555,796 44,414 221,399 1,289,983
536,807 537,292 537,292
98,799 98,799 98,699 100 —
2,579,140 3,004,199 751,639 602,215 1,650,345
7,013
- 59,478 1,643 57,835 —
- (52,434) (2,012) (50,422) —
( ) 10,567 10,238 2,650 7,182 406
2,596,720 3,021,481 753,920 616,810 1,650,751
2016
1,100,134 1,145,258 407,135 378,797 359,326
1,577,033 2,017,274 460,474 226,589 1,330,211
222,277 222,279 222,179 100 —
2,899,444 3,384,811 1,089,788 605,486 1,689,537
24,220
- 496,493 437,015 59,478 —
- (472,935) (418,467) (54,468) —
( ) 14,391 14,602 2,139 11,131 1,332
2,938,055 3,422,971 1,110,475 621,627 1,690,869
d
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2017 31 2016 31
2017

299,234 1,509 79 1,465 12

— 20,943 69 46 64,316

— — — 137,588 —

299,234 22,452 148 139,099 64,328

(411,550) (711,078) — — —

— (133,635) — — (50,775)

— — (536,807) — —

(1,608,628) (39,528) (15,463) — (3.822)

(2,020,178) (884,241) (552,270) — (54,597)

(1,720,944) (861,789) (552,122) 139,099 9,731

— — — — 50,775

— 844,713 — _ _

(1,720,944) (17,076) (552,122) 139,099 60,506
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2016
377,517 9,467 160 8 45
— 47,856 33 — 191,188
— — — 97,184 —
377,517 57,323 193 97,192 191,233
(264,989) (700,133) — — —
— (131,753) — — (462,837)
(952,005) (152,255) (1,330) — (32,306)
(1,216,994) (984,141) (1,330) — (495,143)
(839,477) (926,818) (1,137) 97,192 (303,910)
— — — — 462,837
— 831,887 — — —
(839,477) (94,931) (1,137) 97,192 158,927
2017
1,508 64 12
1,691 69 59,975
3,199 133 59,987
(711,078) — —
(133,635) — (50,775)
— (536,807) —
(39,528) (14,380) (784)
(884,241) (551,187) (51,559)
(881,042) (551,054) 8,428
— — 50,775
(881,042) (551,054) 59,203
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2016
1,881 126 45
8,318 — 191,188
10,199 126 191,233
(700,134) — _
(131,753) — (462,837)
(152,118) (178) (31,142)
(984,005) (178) (493,979)
(973,806) (52) (302,746)
— — 462,837
(973,806) (52) 160,091
10
2017 2016 2017 2016
1 (172,094) (83,948) — —
2 1,708 9,493 88,104 97,381
2 55,212 114 55,105 5
2 (13,910) (9,719) ) —
2 (6,051) (15,893) (5,920) (16,009)
1
2
10
2017 31
1,331,972 2016 1,366,186 716,800 2016 707,040
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10,567
2017

0.55

2016

2016

1.60

31

14,391

0.83

1.09
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0.42 1.60
2016 0.83 1.09
2017 31
19,792 2016 29,121



2017

2016

EDINETOOOO
000000000000 DO000DO00000OononOO(E24841)
oOoOooodn

3,363,343 3,389,479 2,480,341 2,502,874
2,267,667 2,269,296 — —
3,391,774 3,422,573 2,677,167 2,702,720
1,414,416 1,415,248 — —
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100
100 100 100 100

2017
(22,693) 22,693 — —

2016
(14,152) 14,152 — —

MRC
52.2 2016 49.3
e

1SDA

1SDA
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2017
(7,013) — (7,013) — (7,013)
(19,792) — (19,792) — (19,792)
(26.805) — (26.805) — (26.805)

2016
(24,220) — (24,220) — (24,220)
(29,121) — (29,121) — (29,121)
(53,341) — (53,341) — (53,341)

2017
(7,013) — (7,013) — (7,013)
(10,567) — (10,567) — (10,567)
(17,580) — (17,580) — (17,580)

2016
(24,220) — (24,220) — (24,220)
(14,391) — (14,391) — (14,391)

(38,611) — (38,611) — (38,611)
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2017
10 — — 1,160,597 — 1,160,597
1 11 — 216,574 — — 216,574
2 12 — 555,236 — — 555,236
14 — 1,210,540 — — 1,210,540
— 1,982,350 1,160,597 — 3,142,947
19 — — — (1,790,792) (1,790,792)
19 — — — (707,362) (707,361)
19 — — — (1,179,504) (1,179,504)
19 — — — (1,384,954) (1,384,954)
19 — — — (536,807) (536,807)
20 (7,013) — — — (7,013)
20 (19,792) — — — (19,792)
3 21 — — — (165,435) (165,435)
3 22 — — — (1,029,295) (1,029,295)
(26,805) — — (6,794,148) (6,820,953)
( )
2017
10 1,044,886 — 115,711 1,160,597
1 1 — — 228,637 228,637
2 12
14
19 — (1,790,792) — (1,790,792)
19 — (707,361) — (707,361)
19 — (1,179,504) — (1,179,504)
19 — (1,374,154) — (1,374,154)
19 — (536,807) — (536,807)
20 — (7,013) — (7,013)
20 — (19,792) — (19,792)
3 21 — — (158,001) (158,001)
3 22
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2016
10 — — 1,015,867 — 1,015,867
1 11 — 124,252 — — 124,252
L 12 — 459,554 — — 459,554
14 — 1,024,563 — — 1,024,563
— 1,608,369 1,015,867 — 2,624,236
19 — — — (1,275,205) (1,275,205)
19 — — — (701,733) (701,733)
19 — — — (1,216,466) (1,216,466)
19 — — — (1,577,033) (1,577,033)
20 (24,220) — — — (24,220)
20 (29,121) — — — (29,121)
2 21 — — — (156,324) (156,324)
2 22 — — — (993,557) (993,557)
(53,341) — — (5,920,318) (5,973,659)
( )
2016
10 985,943 — 29,924 1,015,867
1 11 — — 128,121 128,121
1 12
14
19 — (1,275,205) — (1,275,205)
19 — (701,733) — (701,733)
19 — (1,216,466) — (1,216,466)
19 — (1,631,084) — (1,631,084)
20 — (24,220) — (24,220)
20 — (29,121) — (29,121)
2 21 — — (149,423) (149,423)
2 22
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2017

1 12 — 1,757,180 — 1,757,180
14 — 102,577 — 102,577
— 1,859,757 - 1,859,757

19 — — (775,078) (775,078)

19 — — (1,168,456) (1,168, 456)

19 — — (536,807) (536,807)

20 (7,013) — — (7,013)

20 (10,567) — - (10,567)

21 — — (100) (100)

22 — — (98,699) (98,699)

(17,580) — (2.579,140) (2.596,720)

2016

1 12 — 1,244,177 — 1,244,177
14 — 42,750 — 42,750
— 1,286,927 — 1,286,927

19 — — (1,100,134) (1,100,134)

19 — — (1,577,033) (1,577,033)

20 (24,220) — — (24,220)

20 (14,391) — — (14,391)

21 — — (100) (100)

22 — — (222,177) (222,177)

(38,611) — (2,899,444) (2,938,055)
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2017
1 12
14
19 — (775,078) — (775,078)
19 — (1,157,656) — (1,157,656)
19 — (536,807) — (536,807)
20 — (7,013) — (7,013)
20 — (10,567) — (10,567)
21 — — (100) (100)
22
2016
1 12
14
19 — (1,100,134) — (1,100,134)
19 — (1,631,084) — (1,631,084)
20 — (24,220) — (24,220)
20 — (14,391) — (14,391)
21 — — (100) (100)
22
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2017 2016 31
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2017 2016 2017 2016
11,850 6,125 698 644
23,087 9,126 1,331 —
34,937 15,251 2,029 644

2017 2016
619,207 567,267
1,181,295 1,102,101
515,122 475,727
2,315,624 2,145,095

2017 2016
602,252 713,354
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GLP
16,250
FRS 24
2017 2016

( )
18,584 16,750
106 46
8,720 7,046

27,410 23,842
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2017 2016

( )
99,473 62,811
35,913 23,282
2,927 1,560
1,550 3,544
(5.120) (4,021)
(111) (122)
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2017 2016
GLP 100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
14 100 100
1002 _
GLP 100 100
GLP 100 100

oLP
100 100

1

oLP

100 100
1

oLP
100 100
GLP 1002 —
. 100 100
1 100 100

100 100
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1002 _
oLP 3 100 100
oLP
. 100 100
. 100 100
1002 _
\ 100 100
66.21 66.21
66.21 66.21
Lp
G 66.21 66.21
66.21 66.21
GLP 66.21 66.21
66.21 66.21
GLP 66.21 66.21
66.21 66.21
66.21 66.21
oLP
66.21 66.21
Lp
G 66.21 66.21
66.21 66.21
6LP
66.21 66.21
oLP
66.21 66.21
56.28 43.04
46.35 33.11
52.97 52.97
35.18 35.18
28] 39.73 39.73
GLP 39.73 39.73
39.73 39.73
6LP
31.18 31.18
CLF I, LP 37.00 37.00
a2 66.21 66.21
GLP
66.21 66.21
CLH12 66.21 66.21
6LP
66.21 66.21
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GLP 66.21 66.21
GLP 66.21 66.21
66.21 66.21
\ 100 100
100 100
6LP 100 100
GLP 100 100
Ltda 100 100
E Ltda
GLP US 99 100
1
2 2017 31
3
37
2017 31
( ) 2017 GLP US
7.1
47,000 26,000 2017 23
42
( )2017 750,000 536,807 5.50
100%
( )2017 19 2017 31 201,282

6.0
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION _
&5 AT 31 MARCH 2017 LP Anfus Report 201

98

Gooup Company
31 Morch 2017 I March J0td 31 March 2017 I Manch 2074
FGTE LSS0 |15 000 S50 ]
Non=current assels
Ivesiment prepartias [ 14,702,578 13,024,178 - -
; -] - - 1366751 B.TELAGY
and @inl venlures & 2 4E2 103 1.9eS a8 =
turred 12 F55ats 7 1334 patl o=l - -
Fanl and equpment B L7 55 B2BT1 &,103 1a5%
Intargib &47.235 -
Cibar sreestmaniils i} 1140597 -
[aher mon-gurmand assels (1] 231,758 - -
19,091,251 16 BT, [ 7,372 BS54 B 750044
Current asseis
Trade and other e 2 SLR 7 B4T.TH 1.7 5
Cash and cash squnvalent 1210540 1024 563 oz 51
Anopd s clasnbed o Beld lor sale 5] B8 545 £R%E 48 -
2668504 hAdSE2 1,660,582
Total assats 1.754. 788 23127 043 5033048
Equity atiribisable to cwners of the Compasy
Share capital bé 54586303 &,456 300 L A54303
Captsl siures 13 - - ERA99E
Resurves 17 1155073 177,102 L4457
BT1L.37E £,633.405 1,065 954
Non—conirmlling interests i6 £,503.514 : -
Totsl equity 13,214 590 131, &, 633,405 708 954
Non-gurrent labilities
Loans anid Borrowings 1% & 196,708 KN A 1,879,534 [y
Fira receald derwealiee Liabeldies i) 26,194 i} 17 580 18507
Delerred 1ax Liaklities T 178477 - -
Cihar non-cument listulines 1 1905 i 100
S bR FHL 1,697 214 1,B&V. 210
Current lishilities
Loans snid Borrowings (34 1304710 1 30,588 SO0, 87
Trade and siker payalles F s 1.0460 7583 1025, T FA.657
Frrsa fecuil daresalieg || BEnlsti s mn AN 22BM1 -
Current 1an payable 1,007 5 - s
Leatllifiers classsfind 55 held for sste 15 LET 70 LHEE TG - -
2',33#.581 5,011 E58 ?'BJI'I?I | 05385
Total Liabilities B 544 8435 7,766,754 2,600,341 2, %i 1 055
Total squity and liabilities 1.759.755 SL1F 02 9,233,764 10 (=00

St st men e e kaim g gl joe] ) B rRerpcd inted b ita e rd
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
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25

017
s VLS00
Conlinuing oparstions
Revenue L B79.527
n 1.2
(- (15,5701
thar & 1355.055]
&T4, 755
Share of resalls et of 1 expinise| of aesonabes and jonl wirlure 283,130
Prodit iram aperating a<tivities after share of results of as<ociates and joint ventures 758,075
Mal hnance cod s 28 |223,6001
Wi -operalng wicoime 14,151
Predit befere changes in falr value of subsidiaries’ investment propertjes 550,626
Changes 0 fer wslue ol invesiment properties 194,573
Predit before tax a7 1347599
Tior @ s g 295, 7041
Predit from corlinuing operaticns 1051 675
Discontinued operation
Prald Iegen didcanifmdd Sparaticn |hel al [ad 15 4,473 28,01
Fredit for he year 105,358 IERE]
Predit sttributable to:
wameers of the Company 793118
MNon-gontrelling interesls 12 2624650
Prodit for the year 1,056,288
Earnings par share [US cents]
Basc 29 14.32 144
Dhluted ] 16,22 E
Earnings par share [US cents] - Continuing eparations
- Basg i) 38 13.4
- Diluted ] 15,15 EX

T Icostngsa rrvitg Tt Aorrm ot e ra | Dl 00 i donokedi Wl Trtinc il Etatemonts
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME .
YEAR EMDED 31 MARCH 2017 Repan
Greup
7
USE000
Profit for the year 1056,348
Other comprehentive income
Items that are or may be reclassilied subsequenly to profit or loss:
Exchange diflerenies aristng. fromm oo seied ateln of foresgn cperations and transiation of loreign cwrency leans,
net ol élfect of net irvestrnent heddges 454 503)
Effoctivd porison of chasnges an ke value of cash flow' hadoss 10,309
Change i tar value of svadshle-for-1ade hnsnos i 54,267
Enare of ather comprehensie incoma of asssaates and jont venlures 63,554
Oiher comprehensive income for the year’ 13283271
Total comprehensive income for the year T 04
Total comprehensive income altributable to;
Divreiers of the Company AED9H N2 438
Morrcorgrolimg meress 4713 1068, 251
Total comprehensive income lor the year TR L10,72%

kbl Mot 10 Wikt 0 00 Dot U RO CO00 reln b Nt 7
P T T A0 000 L0 - USRI T S 20000 relar b hete T

] W0 B WA D TR g o0 et pOrTEen of SRt i Bl waion of canl foss S e CTareE @ BT e o o PRl b TELRRT 0L W [ VRRTS, TR BT D FlOvTi THE ST FELETIS] 10 T DOTRROSIRETY O DT

DT B P A RO

g dem g et o ot LTt Pt of B CormicAR el P s b g
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMEMNT OF CHAMGES IN EQUITY
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 FINANCIAL REPOR
Cufrancy Caphsl Tirigl aronbidabls Mgy
Shaire Capital Iranadslion Fotained snd othar 10 Cvemers ol contmling Tota
caglial LAt 1T R BrRAGE P I Cammpirey Intamisy il

[Eroup LR USRI LEFT00 LRE 00 LSS 000 LSRN USEO0 LSS D
A 1 hpnt 2015 G446, 567 594 852 700, 7041 L0330 [T 8755434 L0047 NATALAN
Tetal comprehensive incame bor the year
Prgti fer the year TR 0ES = 719083 i Bk NackE i
Other comprehensive income
Ewchange diflarences araing frem consolidation of feresgn

opssioon s and transialon of forsgn ourency loans,

niol of aMad ol ast immEmant hisdges . . el = - 125697140 =001 |47, 5
Effective portion of changes o fr value of Esh llow hedges - - - - la74l [0, 174 - It
hangs in fr vetue of svadable-tor-sale hnancad vestmenis - - - - 12E9E 10289 44582 14748
Share of cther comprehansive income of asseoatesand

jaint venlures atxe| - 15,1771 158, 394 - IB.!-E
Tatal cahar com prehenshe income - - 308, 150 - 71,545 |25 4450 |05 A2 el
Tatal cernprehens e incams for the year = - L3, 1 EAEAE] #1545 S A 108, 271 -!-IIJ.:-'."E
Transactions with cowners, reconded directly in eg ey
Contributicns by and distributions to owners .
Isse o grdnacy shares under Share Plans,

et of ranssclion costs LxT - - 19,348 = :
Captal pontribidion oo non-eomnalling ineresrs - - - - - - 113281 113,53
Capral secunities distrabigion pad - 129 524] - - - |22 524 - [2%, 5
Accrusd captal secuniies distnbution - o RT Y - |28, &4 = - = 4
Sharg-based paymienl trenmchons = a - 134T 146342 - 14 3E
Purchade ol Iredsusy shaces, el ol iransachion cods . . . . e ed | [BaL &d 1l - | 144,44
Tar-goprmpl. [one=ter) deadends paad of 520065 per sharé = a 1ag 57| [EER R a 1189 5%
[adanids pad 10 nof-cortrolling mtorests . . - . . 110,240 0.7 ':':
Total comtribution by and distrbuton bo owrers a5k =] - 128,243 [iEs 426} (359 400 1025 I?&d-.&fﬂl
Arfuriton o Inlerests e subsedanies Inm

nan-controlling inferests - - - - ra 173 [FAE] [t
Acguisttion of subsianes - - a - = - o6, 2002 55,20
Share of ressrvds ol joind waribyres - . . . &l &l . -'i:
Tatnl transa:tions with cwners aaE |E58] - |28, 243) 03 Ta) [3T0.0%] 157047 Lt 3,08
Transler fo resermas = = a 11,4371 1.237 = 4 [
A1 31 March M5S S ATE, 300 SFEE 11,008 874l 3302 591 {4543 13) HEBET 731 TP ATT '121&[!_5!_'('

Fhis oo engea rvseny restem BT 6 i ra e of i <onbadeda el el it emunis
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHAMGES IN EQUITY COMTINUED . )
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 zLF Annusl Hepart 201
Curmey Capitel  Total #1ribu lable -
Shem Capaal Iransintion Fretained and of haer 1y owrars ol contradling Total
gl LE 4P gl )] FRLRYE IR P 1B T i iy Hilgreity Uy

G LSS T UL DO0 LSS 000 LISE 000 LISE V00 LSS 000 LR WSRO
& Fapnd 2014 5,454,303 SH3.5 11,008 B34) 3,308,491 [T TR B.ea7 T8 AITLAET 1300708
Tatal comprehensive income for the yoar
Prafit for the yaar = E = TR B - TeRTI Je2A50 1058350
Other comprehensive intcome
E:-'_han-je ditlsrences ansng froem consolbdatian of forsign

operaleong and ransabion of lorsgn curency loans

net of elfert oinet imestment hedges - - |TdE 83 - - | &2 837 |3 044 1658703
Elfective portan of changes o b value of eash llow hiedge s - - - 1n7m 10, A . 10,70
I".'hv.gp m Exrvalue of vailable -for -s3be hnangal rvestmenis - = - - 37. 740 3740 i85 =%
Share of cther compee hensve mcome of assecates and

JOINE verlures A0S 3042 43558 - A
Tatal ether comy Figivs incormes - - | 144 4611 - FERTS 1215537 [x. 3271
Tatal comnprehensive income for the year | 184 4811 TR TIR ko] 47.113 FEEOL)
Transactions with cwners, recerded directly inequity
Corribiutions by and distributsns io owrers
Capstal contribution fromynon -controkimyg stereds = a - = = - Y 4I5 94,645
Captal seunbas dsinbution pad - fanEn - - - b - 130,387
Aorruad capitsl securdies distnbuton - 26, TER - 126,T8%| - - - -
Redassification of capdal secunias to liabdities - [5%0, 3741 - 50,784 - 540, 1080 - |54, 0s)
Chare-basad payment iransaclons - - - - 15,474 16,670 - 16, 554
Purchads al irelsmcy shares, fel ol (rensscion coas = IES.520 ES5 E [@5, 52101
Taw =it bors -beer | dondend s pded of SRO08 par thare . - |20, 50| |30 24l - | SOk
Dradends paed 10 Aon-controfling witerisds (33 @28} (138280
Tatal contribiution by snd distribution to cwners 593 574 = | 1B& 407 lag g 2s) |EE%. 2370 82,787 | 78,4601
Arquistion of snberests m subradianes from

nen -poniroling mierest - - 4716 6,11 1= [, 080)
[vepasal ol anberes in subsdisnes be nan-controllng milarests - - - - 1148231 114820 7,855 [T s
Acquuglion o subsdanes . . - - 18,205 18,205
Disposal of interest in discontirned apsration ta

non-gontraling mkereds - - - - - - 171,837 171,837
Total transactions with camers - 573,594 - | 1B, 5071 [7a532 |E&7. 3331 184,074 B73189]
Transder to resenes - - - 15,8021 S B0 - - -
AL March 2007 G456 303 - 11173375 3 90, 2000 16TE 152 8711376 48M6E 1321487

Bl et g et ot o et ot o s compoliited heand s it
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
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10

a7 Fil

W55 Us$ rL
Cash lbowns Irom cperating sctiities
Profi belore income ta 1347 557 1, 30457
Adjustments fon
Caprecialaon of plant-ard pgupmpnt 10,589 B3
Armprtizanon of infznpble assets snd delermed maragesment costs 3308 ko
LoswlGan! on digpesal of jging venlbyre and subsdanes &3 &
Gaury on desposal of 3355 and |madalihes classhed a6 bald lor slo 13,0740 5L 28
Losa]Ganl on dopesl o plant snd equipiment Faal 10
Negative gaodwill on Bequistion ol Fssaaate, |t ventures and subsdanes [3.532] 1%
Share of results inet ol tax expense] of asseciabes and ot venlures 13,1001 240,77
Chianges & kae valie ol subadisned’ fivesiment preperties 94,9731 | 720,40
|Reversalirécognation ol impasment loss on Erede end other recenvables [Pkl
Loss on deposal of mvesmend propert jes 116
Equesy-pédtind share-based payment I mctiors 144654
Ml hinsnce cosls 233400

s05329
Changes m warkang capd ol
Trade ahd alhér recenstios |127,330) [ZE05
Temde mnd alhier ganahles FARES _z_,._,!
Cash genergted rom cparations 199,145 -
Te paid la1,6501 |31.5
Net cash from operating activities 357 455 T 75
Nat cach from operating activities of discontinued operation 5221 51,43

dbip38 41845

i pcorarngsd vty it Aorrm e o ri | pal g M corepokedd e Meinc il Stalempnt
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS COMTINUED
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 LB Annusl Bepan 2017

104

ot ]
Haln USS00 eSS D00
Cash flows fram irvesting activities
Acquisign of joint varlures and sradanes, et of gsh atgquired 0=l X246 3%580 1217 8481
Azquisiton of srvesrment propermes lsav. a2 et oan
Proceeds from dispersst of irvesnmen) propeies 376,504 BEEEL
soquisibon ol gl her investmanis |'l"|5‘51ﬂ [Eralk 1]
Dispoml of plther imesemenls 5,000 -
Dvnloprrinnt ecpandtyre oh ineesbment properlies |we2.E78) 1L 3T
Proceads Irom dispossl ol tubiidanes nsl of cailh diipoied k] - T4
Proceeds rom dugiossl Ol assels clagshod o held lor sale, nat of depoits recenved I 1.B432 4E9 1LE72 0
Contnbubon Lo mESooales and o veniures 1324270 1255 564
Return of eapdid freem penl veniures a.084 &5,405
Dieporsiis piaced lor imvesiment proegeies and investments v 4400 -
Purchase ol plant and sguaipmant (10,1580 18,36
Procoads from ssie of plant and squepmant 312 I
Intarest meome recened Fuel: i) FE N
Diginbutions recanad rom discontinued operation 0,600 -
Dradénds recened brom assocal s and (oird ventures 110,924 28107
Prepand Irahsschion 0o 9% Srling frem interest m SHpone - 82500
\Wirhhalding b paed on deddend and inderes incoime fram assonnles, |oind venlures and Suilbsndanes [32.413) 11,334
Withhelding tex paid on deeposal of assets dessibad 55 hald for sale [12 4588 |18, %54)
Loans o sssaainliad and |oind \enlutes [27 280} k]
Leans to non-controlling interesis T3z 7&8l 15808
Loang to thard pares 774330 153,933
Loans repayrmeent from associates and joint venhares 250109 -
Lans regayrient from nansconinalling infereds 7,163 20,185
Loans repayrnent from thind pariies 5T -
Mt cash fromy{used in] irvesting sctivities 131 1385, 164]
Met cash used inimresting activilies of discontinued operation |743,325) |4, E52 024
(804 948) {4,557, 186

Bl et g et ot o et ot o s compoliited heand s it
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10
217 iy
o] [y ] = rL
Cash Ibews from finsncing activities
Acquisition of nan-oontrollng inderesis (737081 {14t
Dordndution Irom non-conimfing nieresis! 95,515 35
Procaeds oo dispesal of interesl s in dizcontanued cparation 10 ngn=controlling mterests 171,338
Prepaid irsnsaction costs aneng from disposal ol interest m subsidiznes to nen-coniralling interesis - [Fray
Procaeds rom bank lesns 1,571,008 1.910.5]
Fiapayrment of bank foans [4,045,638] | 85333
Proceeds Irom risue of bords, nél of Iransaion coss 193,52 1,075, 21
Redemption ol bonds 1514, 802) | 184,74
Seitlermznt of fnancal dervativs labilibe s 1337 1.0
Inbarast pad 11304501 [%.47
Drvdands: pard 10 sharehclders rin Ry | 1 165,59
[madands pad 10 non-condrodling mtergsis (13,6381 1071
Captal srcuntes dismbution [0, 259] 953
Purchase ol triasury shates, i o irsnssction coss (&5, 5701 164, 84
Lashs fram noh-confrllang interests 1,583
Rapayrnents of loan brom nan-contralingrderes s [41,831] | I.'.‘_-".SI
Net cach [ised inlfrom financing activities (97,8231 E5E0A1
Met eagh Irorm linancing activties of discontinued opsration LA5.4LES 1,768 5]
35437 & e
Mgt increase/decrenss| in cash and cash sguialents 173,373 s W
(ash and cash squaslents = bagmning of year 1,034,553 a5 4]
dfect of exchange rale changes on cash balances held i foresgn curmenciss [&3, 895} [a.8%
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 1.174,263 1,1E3 "‘l
LCath and chsh equnalénts of submidsanes reclass hdd as a5sel s hald lar sals 13,535} | Nésd 2%
Fimiricted cash depouts 49 837 i
Cash and cash squivalents in the statement of fingncial ot on 14 1,210,540 1, 02 5é

Nar-cash 1ra s o

1 During tha year ended 31 Manch 7014, capial coptnbutons by non-gontridling interest s wara sattlsd by way of transier ol immstment properbes amoundng 1o LSE 2, 7546, 000 10 the Groug

i pcorarngsd vty it Aorrm e o ri | pal g M corepokedd e Meinc il Stalempnt
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These notes form an miegral part of the fimancial statements
Tha financial statements weare authorized for issus by the Board of Directorson 26 May 2017

1 DOMICILE AND ACTIVITIES

Global Logistic Proparties Limited (the "Company’l is incorporated in the Republic of Singapore and has ils registered office at 50 Raffles Place, #32-01,
Singapore Land Tower, Singapore (LEL33

The consobdated insncial statements relateto the Company and its subsidianss (together referred teas the "Group | and the Group's interests in associates and
|l2l|ﬁ[‘|reﬂ1.l.le’E

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiares are those of investiment helding and provesion of distnbution facilsties and services s pactvely

Z2 BASIS OF PREPARATION
2.1 Statementof compliance

The financial statements are prepared in accardance with Singapore Financial Reporting Standards ["FRS™] issued by the Singapore Accounting Standards
Caunel

2.2 Basis of measurement

The financal statemenits hava been prepared an the historical cost basis except for certam assets and labdities which are measurad at air value as déscnbed
b

2.3  Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in United States dolfars [TUS dollars” or "USE"], which = the Company's functional currency. All finsncsal information
presented in LS dollars has been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless atherwise stated

2.6 Use of estimates and judgments
The preparation of hrancial statements 10 contormity with FRSs requires managament to make judgments, estimates and assumpltions that aflect the
applcation of accounting policies and the reported amaunts of assets labilites, income and expenses. Actusl results may differ from these estimates

Estimates and underfying assumptions are reviewed on an angoing basiz Revisions o accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the
estimates are revised and in any future periods aHfected

Information about critical judgmants in applying accounting policies that have the mast sianificant effect on the amounts recegnized in the financal statements
15 included im the follesving notes

Mate 7 — Recognition of deferred tax assets

Mote 3 10} and Mote 30 - Recognition of acquisitions as business combinations or asset acguisitions
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION CONTINUED
‘2.4 Use of estimates and judgements continued

Infarmation about assumptans and estimatson uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulling ina matenal adjustment within the nest financial ye
are includied in the fellowing notes

Mote & - Determinaton of fair value of investment propanies

Mote ¥ - Megsurement of receverabie amounts of goodwill

Mote 15 = Valuation of assets and liabilities held for sale and discontinued operations
Miote 33 - Determination of fair value of fmancial azsets and liakilites

Measurement of fair values
Anumber of the Group's accounting pallcees 2nd disclosuras require the measurement af fair values, far both financial and non-financial assets and Uabilitie

The Group has an established comtrol framework with respect to the measurement of fair values This includes avaluation team that has overall responsibil
for all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and reports directly to the Chief Financial Officer.

The valuation team regularly revisws significant unobsanable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information, such as broker quates or prici
Services, is used o measure fair values, then the valuation team sseesses and documents the evidence obiained from the third partes to support il
conclysion that such valuations megt the requirements of FRS, including the livel in the fairvalue higrarchy inwhich suchwaluations should be classified

‘Whan measuring the fair valus of 2n asset or 2 liahility, the Greup uses market observabls datz as far as possible. Far values are categonzed into differe
levals in afairvalue lerarchy based on the mputs used in the valuation technmues 33 lollows:
¢ Level 1 quoted prices [unadjusted] in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

= Leval 2 inputs other than quoted prices mcluded in Level 1 that are obssnable for the assat or iabdity, ether dirsctly [Leas prces) or ndirectly [ie. dermed fro
prices]

= Level 3; inpuis for the assat or liakility that 3re not based on obiservable market data [unobsenable inputs)

If the inputs used to measure the fairvalue of an asset or 3 labdity might be categonzed in ditferent levels of the fair value hieranchy, them the fair vall
mexsuramant = catagorized in s entinety in the samea el or the fair value herarchy s the lowest level input that is significant to the antine measgremae
[with Lavel 3 baing the lowest]

The Group recogmizes translers between levals of the Br value merarchy as of the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies adopted are consistent wath those of the previpus financial year except in the current financial yesr, the Group has adopted all the new
and revised standards which are elfective for annual linencist periods beginning on or after 1 Apnl 2016 The sdoption of these standards did not have any
affect on the fingncial performance or position of the Group and the Company

3.1  Basis of consolidation

li1  Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method in accordance with FRS 103 Susiness Combinstidn as 51 the acquisition date, which is
the date on which control iz transherrad o the Group. The Growp contrels anantly when it i exposed to, or has rights to, variable rturns framm tsoinobement
with the entity and hag the ability to affect thase returns through its pewer over the entity

The Group measures goadwill at the acquisition date as

o the fair value of the considersation transferred; plus
& the recognized amount of any mon-controlling interests in the acquires; plus
= il tha business combinatian is achizved in stages, the fir value of the pre-existing eguity interest |n the acquiness,

avar the net recognized amaount jgenerally fairvaluel of the idenlifisbie assets acquired and liahiltios assurned. Any goodwill that arses is tested annually for
impairment

When the excess is negalive, a bangain purchase gain s recognized imrmediately in profit ar loss

The consideration transherned does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-exsting relationships. Such smounts are generally recognized in
profit or loss

Any contingent consederation payable is recognized at fair value at the acquisition date and included in the consideratson transferred. i the contingent
consderation 13 classifiod as equity, i118 not remessuned and settterment 15 accounted forwithin egquity. Ctherwise, subsequent changes to the fairvalee of the
confingent consderation are recognized in profit or loss

Costs related to the acquisitson, other than those associsted with theissue of debt or equity securnities, thal the Group mours in cannechion with 2 business
comiiination are expansed 38 ncurred

Mon-controlling interests that are present cwnership interasts and entitle theer holders to 5 proportionate share of the acquires’s net assels m the event of
Liquidation are measured either 3t fair valueor at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recogniced amoents of the acquiree’s identfiable
net asgets, ot the acquisibon date The mézsuement bases taken 8 elected on 8 transachon-by-transaction bass, AL other non-controlbing intarests s
megsured st acquisition-tdate fair value, unless another measurement basis is required by FRSe. IF the business combination 15 achieved in - stages, the
Group's previgusly held equity interest in the acquires s re-measured to lair valus at aach acquisition date and any changes are taken 1o the prolit or loss.

Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not resull ina loss of controd are sccounted lor &= transactions with owners in thesr capacity as owners
and therefore no adjustments are made 1o goodwill and no gain or 1oss &5 ecognized in profit or less. Adjustments to non-controlling interests arising from
transactions that do not involve the lass of control are based on 3 proportionals amount of the net asseis of the subsidrnes

Upon the loss of control, the Growp derecognizes the assats and habilines of the subsediary, any non-controlling intenests and the other componants of aguity
related to the subsidiary, Ary surplus or deficet ansmg on the less of control is recognized in profit or toss. IF the Group retains any interest in the prevous
subsideary, then such interest 1= measured at {zir value at the date that control is lost. Subsequently, it is accounted for a5 an equity-accounted investee or as
an avalable-lor-sale financial asset depending on the level of influence retained
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3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

3.1  Basis of consolidation continued

Lil Business cembinations contnued

Where & proparty 5 acquired, via corporate acquasilions or otherwise, manatgermnant considers thesubstance of the assars and actnaties of the acquired ent
in determining whether the acquisition represents the acquisition of 2 business.

The Group accounts for an acquisition 2s busimess combination where an integrated s« of activities is aoquired in addition to the property More spacitical
congideration is made of the axtent 1o which significant processes are acquired (2.9 leasing, development and ssset manasgement, bookkeaping, abc |

‘Whaen afquisition of an asset or a group of 5561 does not constitute a business combination, it is treated a5 property acquisition. In such cases, tha indnaduy
[entifiable assats acquired and lishilitles sssumed are recognized The acquistion cost shall be allocated to the indrvidual identitiable assats and hiabilitn
an the basis of their relative fair values-at the date of acquisition. Such a transaction does not g rise 1o goodwill,

il Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group, The Group controls an entity whaen il is-exposed to, or kas rights to, variable reterns from its imalveme
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through s power over the entity. The financial statements of zubsidianes are included in

consolidated financial statemants from the date that control commeances untid the date that control ceazes. The accounting policies of subsadiares have bes
changedwhen necessany 1o align them with the policies adopled by the Group

Lesses-applicable to the non-contreding interests in a subsideary are allocated Lo the non-contrelling interests: even it this results in the non-controlli
interests having a deficit balance

The Group's acquisinons of those subsidiaries which ané special purpase wehic les establshid for the sale purpose of holding assets are primarily sacoounts
for a5 acquisitions of assets

[l  Acquisition of entities under common caningl

For scquisition of entities under common control, the identifiable azsets and labiliies were accounted for a1 their historical costs, in-a manner simdar to tf
"posling-of -mterests” mothod of accounting, Any excess or deficioncy batwiben the amounts recorded as share capital izsved plus any additional considerati
m the form of cash or ather assets and the amount recorded lor the share capital acquired 1 recognized directly in equity

Il Investments in associates and joint ventures

Assoniates are those antities in which the Group has significant mifluence, but not control or joint coatral, ever the financial and operating policees of the:
entities. Significant influence is presumed to exist when the Group halds 2006 or more of the veting poieer of another antity. A joint ventune 1S an arrangeme
incwhich the Group has joint control, whersby the Group has rights to the net 3ssets-of the arrsngement, rather than rights 1o its assets and obligations for i
liztilities

Associates and jaint ventures sre accounted Tor using thi eguity method [coliectively referred 1o 95 squity-aocounted investaes] and sre reconnized initialy
tgst which includes trangaction oosts Subsequent to intial recognition, the congolidated financial staternants inglude the Group’s share of the profit or [
and other comprahensne income of equidy-accounted investeas yfter sdjustrments 1o align the accounting policees with thoze of the Group, from the data th
joint control commences until the date that jeint control ceases. The Growp's investonents m joint ventures include geodwill identified on acquisition, net
any accumulated impairment losses
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3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

3.1 Basis of consolidation continued

livl  Investments in associates and joint ventures continued

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds d2 inlerest in an equity-accounted investes, the carmpng amount of the wvastinent, toasther with any long-term
interests that form part thereol, is reduced to 2ero, and the recognition of further losses iz discontinuad axcept to the axtant that the Group has an abligation
to fund the nvestes’s operateon of has made payments on behali of the nvestes

[w] Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Imtra-group balances and transactons, and any unrealized nceme or expenses ansing from ntra-group transactions, are ebminsted in prepanng the
consolidated hinancial staterments. Unrealized gains ansing from transactions with equity-accounted investess are aliminated agamst the imestment to the
extent of the Group's ntenest in the imestee Unnealzed losses are slirminated in the same way 35 onimealesd gang, but anly 1o the axtent that there = no
evidence of impairment

vil  Accounting for subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures by the Company
Investmients in subsidanes, associates and joint ventures are stated in the Company's statement of financial position 31 cost less accumulated impairment losses

3.2 Foreign currencies

[il Fareign currency transactions

Items included in the financizl statements of each enfity in the Group are measured using the currency that best reflects the economic substance of the
undarfying events and circumstances refevant to that entity (the “functional currency”|

Transacteons in fereaign currancms are translated to the respective lunctoonal currencies of Group's entbites at the exchange rates al the date of the ransactions
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in forgign currencies at the reporting date-are retransiated to the functional currency &t Tha exchange rate at that
date. The foneign currncy gam of Loss on manetary derms i the differance batwesn smorized cost in the lunctional cormency at the héginnmag of the waar,
adjusted for effectve interest and payments dunng the year, and the amaortized cost in forean currency translated at the éxchange rata at tha end of the year

Mon-monstary assets and labilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are retransiated to the functional currency at the
exchange rate at the date on which the fair value was determined. Mon-monetany items ina foréign currency that sre measured interms of historicat costs
are translated using the exchangs rate at the date of the transachon

Foreign currency differences ansing from retranslation are recognized in profit or less, except Tor the fallowing differences which sre recognized in other
comprehensive incorme arising from the retransiation of

* gvailable-for-sale equity instruments [except on imparment inwhich case foregn currency diferances that have bean recognized in other coamprehensne
income sre reclassified to protit or loss);

= afinancial lizbility desigriated a5 3 hedge of the net investment in a foreign operstion to the extent that the Hedge is etective [zee [ balow]; ar

+ quabifpng cash flow hedges to the extent such hedges are affective
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

3.2 Foreign currencies continued

lil  Fereign operations

The assets and bisbilties of foreign eperations; excluding geodwil and B value adjustments arsing from the scousibion, are translated to US dollars
exchange rates pravaibng at the and of the reporting panad. The income and expenses of foregn aperations are translated to US dollars at exchange rab

presvailing at the dates of the transactions. Goodwill and tair valee ndjustments srmang from the scquisition of & foreign operation ar treated 35 Bssets o
lizbilitizs of the foreign operstion and translated at the exchange rates at the reporting date

Foreign currency differences are reconized in othar comprehensive incoma, and presented in the forsign currency translation reserve [ translation reseny
In equity. However, if the operabion is not & wholly-owned subsidiary, then the relevant propertionate share of the transiation difference is allocated 1o the oo
controiling interesis. When a foreign operation is disposed of such that control, significant infisence or joint controb & lost, the comultatve amount in t
translation reser miated to that feragn operston s transferned to pralt or Woss as part of the asin or oss on disgozal. Whan the Group disposes of only pa
ofits interest in & subsidiary that includes & fommgn operation while retaiming control, the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount s reattnbuted 1o ng
controlling interests Whan the Group dispozes of only part of 1= investment i an assocate or joint vendures thatincludes a foreign oparation while retaini
significant influance or joint control, tha relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reclassdisd to profit or loss

When the settlement of a monelary tem recenvable from or payable 10 & foreign operation is neither planned nor likely to oocur in the foreseeable futur
fareign exchange gains and losses ansing brom such & monetary tem are considered to form part of 3 mel mvestment in a foreign operation These a
recognized in ather comprebensae income, and are presentad in the transiation reserw i equily.

liil ~ Hedge of a net investment in foreign operatien

The Group apples hedge accounting to forsgn currency differences arsing bebween the functional currency of the foregn operation and the Company
functional currency [US doltzrs), regurdizss of whether the net investment is held directly or through an intermediate paren

Foreign currency differences ansing on the retranstation of 2 fmancial (ability designated 25 3 hedoe of a net investment in a forsign operation are recogniz
i other comprehensave incame to the extent the hadge is effective, and presented within equity in the forelgn currency tranglation reserve. To the extant th
the hedge is ineffective, such difterences are recogruzed in profit or loss, When the hedged net investment is disposed of, the relevant amount in the forg
currency translation reserve s transferred to profit or loss as part of the profit or less on dispoasal.

33 Financial instruments

[il Mon-derivative financial assets

The Greup initially recognizes losns and receivables and deposits on the date that they are oniginated, All other financial assets 3re recognized initimty on
trade date at which the Group becomes & party to the contractual prosesions of the instrumeant

The Group deracognizes a linancial asset whan the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to recame (|
contractual cash iows on the financial asset in 2 trensaction inwhich substantially 2l the isks and rewards of cwnership of thefinancizl asset ane transferms
Ary interest in transferrad financial assets thatis created or retamed by the Group s recognized a5 a separate asset or Liability

Fimgncial agaets and liabilifies are offset and the nat amount presented in the statement of fingncial position when, and only when, the Group has a legal rig
to offset the amounts and intends either to settle on & net basis or to realize the asset and settle the Lsbility simultansously

The Groug classilies non-dervative Tinancial assets into the fellowing categores: availsble-for-zale financial assets and loans and recerables.
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3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES COMTINUED

3.3 Financialinstruments continued

i Mon-derivative financial assets conbinusd

Available-for-sale financral assels

Available-lor-zale linancial aszets are non-dameative financial assets that are designated 2= svaillable for =ala or are not classilisd in any of the other
categories of hnancial assets E-u’j:as-aquenl to gl recognitmn, svailabie-for-sale financial agsats are measured at fairvalue snd changes thereen, otherthan
Impairment losses {zee Note 3.7 and foreign exchange differences on available-for-ssle monstary items [ses Mate 3 20} arerecognized in other camprebensive
ircome and presanted in the fair value reserve in equity. When an investment s derecognized, the gain or loss accumulated in eguity i rectassifoed to profit
or loss

Available-lor-zale hinancialasssls comprise egquity securities and debl secunties Investment in egquity secunties whase falrvalus cannot be rélmbly massured
are measured 31 cost less accumulated impairment loss

Loans and receivables

Loans and recenables are financial assets with fived or determinable payments that are not quated in an active market. Such assels are recognized Initially
st fair value plus any directly attributable fransaction costs. Subsequant to indtial recognition, loans and recervables are messured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment Dsses

Loans 2nd recenables comprise cash and cash equialents and trade and ether recenables, except prepayments and deterred managemeant costs

Cashand cash equivalents compnse cash balances and bank deposis. For the purpose of statement of cash flows, pledged deposits are ecluded whilst bank
overdrafls that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash management are included as & component of cash and cash
equnalents

lill  Mon-derivative financial liabilities

The Group initiaily recognizes debt secuntiss issved and subordinated labilities on the date that they are orginated. Firancial labilities for contingent
consideration payable in 3 business combination ané recoanized at the acquisition date. ALl other financeal Dabilites lincluding liabilitias designated at fair
walue through profit or loss) sre recognized initially on the trade date 3t which the Group becomes a party to the contrectual provisions of the instrument

The Group derecognizes a findncial iability when ds contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire

Financial abilites for contingent congideration payable in a businass combination are initially measured at fair value. Subsaguent changes in thi fair value
of the confingent consaderation are ecognized in profit or loss

Fenancral assets and batnbies are ofisel and the nat amount presented in the staterment of financial position when, and onlywhen, the Group has 3 lagal nght
to otlset the amaounts and intends either (o settie on a net basis or 1o realize the assel and settle the lability simultaneousty

The Group clazsifies its non-dervatve financial lizbilities, comprising leans and borrewings and trade and other payables, into the other finencial lishilities
category. Such financial liabilities are racognized initially at fair value ples any directly antnbutable transaction costs, Subsequent o initial recognition, these
finwncul Liakdlites are measured &t amortized cost uging tha dffect v interest method

[il]  Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified a5 equity. Increments| costs dinéctly attributabie bo the issué of ordinany shares are recognized a5 2 deduction from equity, net
ol anty tac affects
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

3.3 Financial instruments continued

[l  Capital securilies

Cagital secunbies are classibed as equity f they are non-redeemable, or mdeemabie anby at the Company's option, and sy drdends are discrationsas
Discretionary dradends thereon are recognized as distributions within equity,

I¥l  Repurchase, dispasal and reissue of share capital [treasury shares|

‘When shame capital recognized 8s equity is repurchased, the amount of the consideration paid, which includes directly sttoibutable costs, net of any tax effect
is recognized a5 & deduction from equity Repurchased shares are classified 35 treasury shares and are presented in the reserve for own shane account, Wi
treasuny shares are eold or ressued subsequently, the armount received = recognzed a5 an increzse in equity, and the resuliing surplys or deficlt en il
transaction s presented in non-distributable capital reserve

bal  Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

The Group holds derrative finangisl instruments to hedge #s forsign currency and interest rate rsk exposures. Embedded dervatives are separated from {1
host cantract and accounted for separately of the sconomic characterstics and rizks of the hoot contract and the embedded dernative are not closely redate
& separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded dervative would meet the definition of a darvative, and the combined instrumeant is n
measured 3t fair value through profit or loss

On Initial designation of tha derivatve as the hedging instrument, the Group formally decuments the relationship between the hedging instrument and t
hedged itemn, including the risk management objectives and sieategy in undertaking the hedge transaction and the hedged rigk, 10gether with the meatho
that will be used to sssess the effsctvensss of the hedging relstionship. The Group makes an assessment, both 5t the inception of the hadge relationship
well as on an ongoing basks, of whether the hedging instruments are expectad o be " highly #ffective” in offsetting the changes in the fair value or cash flos
of thi respective hidged items attnbutable to the hedged nsk, and whether the actual results of each hedpa-sre within a range of B0% - 129% . For a cash fls
hedge of 5 forecast transsction, the transaction should be highly probakle 1o occur and should present an exposure to vanations in cash flows that cou
ultsrmately affect reported profit or loss

Derivatives are recognzed initialiy st fair value, sttributsble trancsction costs are recognized in profit or less when ircurmed. Subseguent to initisl recognitic
derwairves are messured af fairvalue, and changes therzin are accounted for a5 described hefow,

Cash flow hedges

When a dervative is desgnated as the hedging instrument in a hedge of the vaniability in cash flows attnbutable 1o a particular risk associated with
recogrized asset of lability or & highly probeble forecast transachon that could a¥fect profit or loss, the etfectne partion of changes in the fair walue of 1)
derwvative 15 recognized in other comprehensie income and presented in the hedging reser in aquity. Any inetlective portion of changes in the fair value
the darmativie 18 recognized immaduataly in the profit or loss

‘When the hedged fam =2 non-financal asset, the smount accumulated meguity is ncluded in the carnying amount of the asset when the asset is recognize
In other cases, the amount accumulated in éguity is reclassified 10 profit or loss in the same parod that the hedoed item affects profit or loss. 11 the hada
Instrurnent no longer mests the criteéna for hedge accounting, expires or 15 sold, terminated, exercised, or the designation is revoked, then hedge Gccounti
is-discontinued prospectively. I the forecast transaction is no lenger expected to occur, then the balance in equity is reclassified to profit or loss

Separable embedded derivalives

Changes in the fsirvalus of separated embedded dervatives are recognized immediately in profit or loss
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

3.3 Financialinstruments continued

[vil  Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities continued

eher man-frading derivatives

Whan a derratie firancial instrament ks not desagnated in aqualifyng hedge relationship, all changes in 0 fair value are recoanzed immediately in proli or loss
3.4 Investment properties

Imvestment properties are proparties held either 1o earn rental mcome or for capital apprecation or both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business,

used in the production or supply of goods or services, or Tor adminstrative purpeses. Investment propertiés comprise complated mwestmant properties,
investment properties under re-developmeant, proparties under developmeant and land held for development

Cost incledes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the investment property. The cost of self-constructed mvestment property includes
the cost of materals and direct labor, any other coste directly attnbutable ta brnging the imvestment property ta 3 working condition for its intended usea and
capitalized borrowing costs

Land heid for development represenis fease prepayments for agguinng rights fo use land in the People’s Republic of Thina |"PRET with penods ranging from
40 ta 50 years. Such raghis granted with consderanon are recognizad ininally ot scquisition cost

[i1  Completed investment properties and investment properties under re-development
Completed imestmeant properties and mvestment propartses under re-development are measurad at fair valis with any changes therein recognized m profit
or loss. Rental income fram investment propert s s accounted for in the manner described in Mote 3.14

liill  Properties under development and land held for development
Praoperty that is being constructed or developed for future use as imestment property s initially recognized at cost, including transaction costs, and
subssaquently st farvalee wath any change therein recognized in profitor loss

When an investment property 15 disposed of, the resulting gaim or logs recograzed m profit or loss 15 the ditference betwaen net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the propesty

3.5 Plantand equipment

Plani and egquipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and imparment lesses Costoincludes sxpendifure that s directly attributable 1o the
acquisition of the asset

Subsequent expenditure relating 1o plant and aquipment that has already been recognized is added to the carmying amount of the asset when it is probable
that future economic benefits, in excess of the originally sssessed standard of performiance of the exesting asset, will How Lo the Group. All other subsequent
expenditure 15 recognized as-an expensa (0 the penod inwhich itis incurred

Depreciation = recconized in profit or less, froom the dste the sssel is ready for its intended use, on & straight-ling besis ower the astimated uselul lves of
furmiturs, fittings and equipment ranging from 2 1o 30 yeers

The aszets” residual values, useful Ives and deprecation methods are reviewed, and adjusted f necessany, at each reporting date

Thi gain or loss on disposal of an item of plant and equipment lealculated as the difference batween the net proceeds from dispossl and the carrying amount
of the item] is recognized in profit or less
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3.6 Intangible assets

lil Gaodwill

Far business combinatons an or atter 1 Apnl 2010 the Group measures goodwill 35 at-acquisition date based on the lairvalue of the consdarabion transfem
line luding the fair valee of any previously: held equity interest in the acquires] and the recognized amount of any non-controlling intenssts in the acquiras, L
the net recognized amount Igenerally fairvaluel of the idennfiable assats acquired and Gabilities assumed. When tha amount i3 negative, & Bargain purc ha:
gain i5 recognized in the protit or loss. Goodwill is subsequently measured at cost less accumuiated impairment losses.

For acquisitions prior to 31 March 2010, goochwill i3 measured st cost less accumulated impairment [osses. Negative goodwill i creditad to profit or loss
the period of the acquisition

Acquesibians of non-contrailing interests sreaccounied lor as transachions with owners in ther capaciy as owners and theredom no geodenll 15 Rcognized

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidraries i presented in intangible assets. Goodwll arising on the atquisition of jsint ventures is presented togeth
with investments in |¢l|l‘|1 ventures

liil  Other intangible assets
Other intangible sssets thal are soquined by the Group and have finite usetul Ives are messured a1 costs less accumulated amortization and accumulaty
impairment losses

liil  Amertization

Amortizatbon iz calculated ovar the cost of the asset, lass e reaidual value

Amartization is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives obintangible assets, otharthan goodwill, from the date th
they are svailable for use, snce this most clearly reflacts the expected pattern of consurnption of the fulure economic benedits embodied in the asset. T
eshimated vsaful lves of intangible assats are as follows:

Trademarks M yaais

MNon-campatiten vl the tarmm of relavant agrasment
Lic#nse mahts aver the berm of the licanse penod
3.7  Impairment

[il Mon-derivative financial assets lincluding receivables)

A financial assel & assezsed at each reporting date to determine whether there 1z any obpective evidence that i+ impaired, A hinancial asset 15 considered
be impaired i objective evidence indicates that a less event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event has 3 negative effe
on the estimated future cash flows of that asset 1hat can be éstimated relisbly,

Objectve evidence that financisl sssets including squity securties] ane impaired can include default or delinquency by & dabtor, restructunng of an amou
due to thie Group on terms that the Group would not consider athenwise, indications that 3 debtor or izsuer will @nter bankruptoy, adwerse changes in 1
payment status of basrowers or issuers in the Group, economic conditions that correlatewith defaults or the disappearance of an actve marketlor 2 secun
I addition, for an imsestment in an equily secunty, 3 signidicant or prolanged decline in its fair value below its cost 15 ohectve endence of impairment.
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3  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED
3.7 Impairment continued
lil  Mon-derivative financial assets lincluding receivables) continued

Loans and recervables

The Group considers avidence of impairment For [oans and recenvables at both a specdfic asset and collectre level. All indridually significant financial asseis
are sssassed for specific impaimment on an indwidusl bass, Al indidyslly significant financial assets found not (o be specitically impaired are then collactively
szsessed for any empairment that hes been incurred but not yet been identified: The remaining financeal assets that are not individually significent are
collectively atzesced for impairment by arou ping togethar such instruments with aimilar risk charactenstics

In assessing collective impairment, the Group uses histarical trends of probability of default, timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurned, sdjusted
for management's judgment 2= to whether curmrent economic @nd credit conditions are such that the sctuzl lossés are likely to be gréater or lesser than
suggested by historical trends.

An impairment loss in respect of a finanoial ssset measured al amortized cost 5 caloulated as the difference between its carnying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the asset’s original effectve interest rate. Losses are recognized in profit or [oss and reflected in an
sllowance account agsmnst recerables When the Group cansidars that there are no eealistie prospects of recowery of the assel the relevant amounts S
written off. If the amount ol impaicment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can be rolated objectively to an evenl occurnng after the impairmant
was recognized, then the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed through profit or less.

Available-for-sale financial assels

Imparment losses oo available-for-sale financial assets are recognized by reclassifying the losses accumulated in the fair value reserve in equity 1o profid or
los=. The cumulative Loss that is reclassified from egquity 1o profit or loss is the ditference between the acquisition cost, net of 3ny principal repayment and
amortization, and the current fair value, lass any impairment loss recognized previously in profit or loss. Any subsequent recovery in the fair value of an
impaired available-for-sale equity security s recognized in other comprehensie income.

Assocrate and jomt venture
Any imparrment loss in respect of an associale or paind venture s measured by companng the recoverable amount of the investiment with ifts casrying smount

in maccondance with Mote 3700 An impairment less 1s recognized in probit or fogs. Anampairment loss iz reversed if there has been a favgurable change in the
estimate usad 1o determing the recowerable smount

il  Mon-financial sssets

The carmying amounts o the Group’s nen-financial assals, ather than investment properties and delerred tax aszats are reviewsd al each reparting date to
daterming whether there iz any mdicatrn ofimpairment. If any such indication exists, then the assets - recoverable amount are estimated, For goodwil] and
Intangikle assets that have indstinde useful lves or that 2re not yet available for use, the recoverable amount is sstimated each year at the same time An
impairment ogs is recognized # the carrying amount of an asset or s cash-generating unit ["CEU"] exceads its estimated meomverable amount
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3.7 Impairment continued

Lii Mon-financial assets continued

The recoverable amount of &n ssset or CEU s the greater of its value in use and its fairvalee bess costs tosell |n assessing velue m use, the estimated futy
cash Hows are discounted to their present value using 3 pre-tas discount rate that reflacts current market esessmants of the tirme value of money and tt
risks specific fo the azset For the purpoge of impairment testing, sasels that cennot be tested indridually sre grouped togsther into the smallest group

asgets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largety independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. Subject to 3n oparati
segment cailing teat, for the purgeses of goodwill imparment teating, CELUS to which geotwill has been allocated are aggregatad so that the level at wh
impairment is tested reflects the lowest level at which goedwill 15 manitared for internal réporting purpeses. Boodwill acquired in @ business cambination
zllecated to groups of CEUS that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination

The Group's corporate assers do not generate separate cash mblows and are unlized by mere than one CGU. Corporate assels are aliocated o CGUs on
reasonzhle and consistent basis and fested for impairment 35 part of the testing of the CEU to which the corporate asset belongs

Animpairment [oss is recognized i the camyng amount of 30 assat or its DU excesds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses @re recognize
in profit or loss. |mpairment losses recognized in respect of CGUs are altocated first to redwce the carrying amount of any goodwill sllocated to the units, ar
then to réduce the carmying amounts of the other asse13 in the unit lgroup of wnits] on a pro rata basis

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill iz not reversad. In respect of other assets, impairment losses recognized in prior perods are assessed at &3
reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. Sn impairment loss s reversed if thers has been a changs in the sstimat
used to determing the recoverable amouwnt. An impairment oss is reversed only to the extent that the assel’s carrying amount does not excesd the carns
amount that would have been determined, net of deprecesstion oramortization, it no impairment oss had been recogmzed

Gaoodwill that forme: part of the carryng amount of an investment in joint vantures 15 not recognized separataly, and therafone is nat tested for impaerme
saparately Instead, the entice amount of the investment in joint ventures is tested for impairment 55 5 single aaset whan there is obpectivie endance that
invastrmient mizy ba impained.

3.8 Mon-current assets held for sale

MNon-cyrrent assets, or disposal groups compnising assets and Liabilities, that are highly probable to be recovered primanly through ssle or distribution rath
than thropgh continuing use, are classitied a5 held for sale. Immediately before classification a3 held for sale, the essets, or cornponenis of 3 disposal groy
are remeasured in accordance with the Group's accounting polses, Thereatter, the assets, or disposal group, are generally measured at the lower of the
carcying amount and fair valee less costs to g2l Any impairment loss on 2 disposal group is first allecated 1o geodwill, and then to rersaining assets ar
liatulities on pro rata basis, sxcept that no loss is allocated to inventorias, financial assets, deferred tax assets, amployes benafit assets, investment proper
which continue to be measured in accordance with the Group's accounting policies. Impalrment losses on initial elassifrcation as held for sale and subsseque
gains or lnsses on remeasurement are recognized in profit or ioss. Gains &re not recognized in excess of any cumulative impairment loss

Intangible assats and plant and equipment once clessified a5 held for sale are not amortized or depreciated. In addition, eguity 2ccéounting of joint ventun
ceases once classified as held for sale
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES COMTINUED

3.9 Discontinued operations

A discontinued oparation is a componént of the Group's business, the opérations and cash fows of which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of the
Group and which

+  mepresents 3 separste major line of business or gecgraphical ares of operations,

= 15 part of 2 engle co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate magor line of busmess or geagraphical ares of operations; or

* iz 3 subsidiary soquired excluseely with §view to regsls,

Clagsdication 35 # discontinuad oparation octurs upen dispessl or when the operstion mests the cntend fo be clessified as held for sale, if earbier. When an
oparation is clazzitied az a discontinued aperation, the comparatre statament of |:l|‘tl|||f ar less s I'E'-|:II‘E5E'I‘11'Ed as if the operation had bean descontinued frgm
the start af the comparutive yaar

3.10 Deferred management costs

Costs that are directly atinbutable to secuning & fund management agreement are deferred if they can be wentified separately and measured reliabhy and it

i5 probable that they will be recovered. Deferred managament cosls represent the costs incurred to secure the right 1o benefit from the provison of fund
management senvices, and are amortized &5 the Group recognizes the related revenue over the tenure of the fund

3.11 Employes benefits

fi1 Defined contribution plans

A defined contmbution plan < 3 peet-arnployment banofil plan under which an antity pays Toed contribulions into & saparate entily snd will kave ne legal o
censtructive obligation 1o pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions 1o defined contribution pension plans are recogmzed 35 amployes banefit
expanse in profit or loss in the periods during which services are rendenred by amployess

fil  Short-term employee benefits
Shart-term amployes benefil obligations are messuted on an undiscounted basie and are sxpeasczed as tha related sarvice iz provided

A leabiliby 15 recogmized for the amount expected bo be peid under short-term cash bonus or protit-shanng plans f the Group has s present legsl or constructve
obligation to pay this amount as a resull of past service provided by the employee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably

[l  Employes leave entitlement
Employes entitlerments 10 annual teave are recognized when they acorus {o employess A provizion s mads for the estimated Uability for annual leave as a
resull of seraces renderad by employess up to the reporiing date

livl  Share-based payment

For equity-settled share-besed payrment transactions, the Tair value of the senvices recened 5 recognized 25 an expenss with & corresponding ncreass in
enuity over the vesting period during which the employvess become unconditionally entitled fo the eguity instrument. The fair value of the services receved is
determined by relarence to the fair value of the equity mstrument granied at the date of the grant. At each reporting date, the number of equity mstrumeniz
that are expected to be vested ane estimated. The impact on the revision of original estimates is recognized as an expense and a3 3 cormesponding adjestment
to equity over the remaining vesimg persod, unless the revision to omginal estimates & dee 1o market condibions. No adjustment 15 made if the revision or
actual outcome differs from the original @stimats dus 10 markat condibens.
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3.11 Employee benefits continued

[l  Share-based payment continued

For cash-settled share-based payment transactions, the far value of the goods or services recened & recognized as an expense with & correspondis

increase in batdity, The fair value of the sensces recanved is determined by rafarence 1o the fairvalue of the bability Until the Liability 15 satiled, the fair val
of the liability is remeasured at @ach reporting date and at the date of setliement, with any changes i fairvalue recognized as an expense for the period

The proveeds receied from the exgrcise of the equity instrumenis, net of any directly attributable transaction costs, ame credited 19 share capital when 1}
oquity Metrumeants ans syerciged

3.12 Provision

A provision 15 recogrized if, &5 8 result of 3 past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive oblgateon that can be estimated reliably, and it 15 probak
that an outtiow of econamec benefits will be required to setlle the obligation, Provisions are determinad by dacounting the expected future cash flows at 1f
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessmants of the time value of money and the risks specific to the lisbility The urmwinding of the discount
recognized as finance cost

3.13 Leases

‘When entities within the Group are lessees of an operating lease

Whars ths Group hae the use of sssete under oparaling leases payrrants mads undar the lexses re racognized in profit of loss on @ strashi- line bazas oy
the term of the lease. Lease mcenties receved are recogmized in profitor loss as an integral part of the totsl lease payments made, Contingent rentals a
charged ta profit or Loss in the accounting penod in which they are incurred

‘When entilies within the Group are lessors of an operating lease
Azzats subject 1o oparating loases are includsd in irmestmont proparties (ses Note &)

When entities within the Group are lessors of a finance lease
Leases whene the Group has tranaferred substantially all nsks snd rewards incidental to ownership of the leased sssets to the |lessess, are classbed :
finance leases

The leased 3522t |5 derecognized and the present value of the lease racewable [nat of initisl direct costs for hegatiating and arranging the leaze] is recognias
on the statement of financial position and included in trade and other recenvables” The difference between the gross recenvable and the present value of 1
lease recenable is recognized a5 unearnad finance income

Each leaze payment recemed 12 applied againgt the gross investmant in the finance leaze recarvabla 1o reduce bath the principal and the unearned finan:
income. The finance income is recognized in profit or loss on 8 basis that reflects a constant peniodic rate of return on the nat investment in the finance lea:
recenabla

Initial direct costs incurred by the Group in regotiating and arranaing finance lesses are sdded to finance lease recanvables and recognized 35 an expense
profit or less over the fease term on the game basis 35 the lease income
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

3.14 Revenue recognition

Rental income

Rental mcome recend ble under operating leases is recognized i protit or lass on a straight-line basis aver the term of the leate, extept where an alternative
basis 15 more representalnve of the pattern of benafits to be derived from the leased asset Lease intentives granted ane recegnized as an integral part of the
total rental income to be recenved, Contingent rentals are recognizad as incomé in the secounting period in wheeh they are esrned

Management fee income

Manzgement fee ncorme s rmcogmied in prold or loss as andwhen sarvices are rendered

Dividend income

Diwvidend income 1= recognized on the date that the Group's right to recene payment 15 established

Financial services income
Financial services income is recognized in prefitor foss upon the completion of the trensacton

3.15 Government grants
Grants that compansate the Group for expenses already incurred or for purpose of gaing immediste financial support with no tuture related costs are
recogrized i profit or less in the period in which they bacome recenable

3.16 Finance income and expenses

Finance income comprizes intsrest income on lunds invested [including avaitable-for-=sle financial assets] and gains on hedging instruments that are
recaamzed in profit ar [6ss |nterest income s rcognized as it accrues i pralit or 1655, using the effective mterest method Finance costs comprise interest
expeEnse on bormowings, ymwinding of the discount on provisions and centingent consideration, and lesses on hedging instruments that are recognized in profit
or loss

Berrowing costs that are net directly attributable to the acguisition, construction or preducton of & qualifymg assat are recognized in prebit or loss wsing the
affective interest method

Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on 3 net basis 35 aither finance income or finance costs depending on whether fareign currency mevements
araan @ net gain or net loss position

317 Tax

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax iz recogmized in profd or loss except to the extent that i relates to 3 business
combanation, or items recognized directly v eguily or in other comprehensie Income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taeble income or less for the year, using tex rates snacled or substantively enecied at the
reparting date, and any adjustment 1o tax payable in nespect of previous years
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3.17 Tax continued

Deterred tax is recognized in respect of temporany differences betwesn the camying amounts of assets and lishilities for financial reporting purposes and tf
smounts used for taxation purposes

Deferred 133 15 not recognazed for

= temporary differences onthe initizl recognition of assets or liabilities in 2 transadtion thal is not a business combination and that affects neither accountis
nof taxable profit or loss;

* temporary differences related 1o imvestments in subsidiaries and equity accounted investees to the extent that the Group is able to control the timing
the reversal of the termporary difference and it iz probable that they will ned reverse in the loreseeable future; and

&t ble temporary differences ansing on tha witaal recognibon of goodwill

The measurement of deferred taes reflects the tax consequences that would follow the mannerin which the Groep expects, at the end of the reporting pero
to recower or setfle the carrying smount of its assets and Liabilities. Deferred tax 15 measured &t the fax rates that are expected 1o be applied to tempara
differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacied or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax assats and lisbilitivs are offsst of there is 3 legally enforceable right to offset current (ax lmbilities and sssets, and they relate 1o taxes levied |
the same 12 autherity on the same taxable entity, or on differsnt tax entitios, but they intend 1o settle currant tax liabilites and assets on a net basis or the
tax assets and liabilitses will be realized simultaneousty

A deferred tax asset is recognized for unused tax lossés, fax credits and deductible temporary differences, to the extent that i i5 probable that future tauab
profits will be available against which they can be wtilized Defarred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is
lenger probable that the related tax benefit will be realzed

In determening the amount of cerrent and deferred tax, the Group fakes into account the impact of uncertain tax positions and whether additional taxes
interast may be due The Group balieves thal e sccrusls for tax babilities are adaguate (or all open bac years based on i assessment of many lactos
including interpratations of tax law and prior experience. This assessmant relies on estimates and assumptions and may invabe a-senes of judgments abo
future evants BMew information may become avaltable that cavses the Group to change its judgment regarding the adequacy of exsting tex iabilities; su,
changes to tax ligbilities will impact tax expense in the period that Such 3 determination i made.

3.18 Earnings per share
The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share [ EPS™] data for its ondingry shares. Bassc EFS is calculated by devidinig the profit or loss attnbotah
tomwners of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period, ddjusted tor awn shares held. Diluted EPS

determined by adjusting the profit or loss asttnbutable o owners of the Company and the weghted awrage number of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusts
for own shares held, and the effects of all dilutve potentialordinany shares, which comprise awsrds of performance and restricted shares granted to employes

3.19 Segmentreporting

An operating segment 15 a component of the Group that engages i business activities from which It may éarn revenues and ncur experses, ingluds
revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group's other components. Al operating seaments’ operating results are revewed regular
by the Group's chied operating decision-makers ["CODM™| to make decmsions sbout resources to be allocated to the segment and to assess its performan
and forwhich discrete financial information s available
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED
3.19 Segment reporting continued

Segment results reported to the Group’s COOM include tems directly attributable to 3 segment as well 3s those that can be ailocated on 3 eassnahbls basis
Lnsllocated tems comprise mainh corporate assets [primarily the Company's headguarters), head office expenses, and 15 assets and liabilites

GLF Arnusl Repert 2017

Efgmen: capital expenditiure 15 the tolal oSt incurred guning the year io poquire plant ard aqupmeant, and miangible assets other than 'QDGG"-\'I“

3.20 Related parties

Far the purposes of these financial stetements, parties are considaned o be related to the Group if the Group has the ability, directly or indirectly, 1o contrel
the party, jointly control, or exercise signdicant influence over the party in making financiat and cperating decisions, or vice versa, or wherg the Group and the
party are subject 1o comman cantrol or commaon joint cantrol. Related parties may be ndrduals or other entities

3.21 New standards and interpretations not adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to standards are etfectve for-annual periods beginning atter T April 2017 and earlier application s permitted,
hawaver, the Group has not @arly applied the folicwang new or amended standards in prepanng thess statements

For those new standards and amendments to standards that are expected to have an effact on the inancial statements of the Group and the Comparry in
tuture finzncizl perods, the Group assessed the transition oplions and the potential impact onits fingncsl statements, and to implermeant these standards
Manzsgement provides updates to the Board of Directars on the progress of implamienting these standards. These updates cover project implementation
eratus, key reparting and buginess risks and the implementabion appraach

Summary of the requirements

Potential impact on the financial statements

FRS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

FRES115establishes a comprahensne framework lor determining whether,
hevw miuch and when revenue is recognized. |1t alse establishes principles
to report useful indormation about the nature, amount, tming and
uncertamty of revenue and cash Nows ansing from a contract with &
customer In sddition; o aiso infroduces new cost gudance which requires
certain costs of obtzining and fulfilling contracts to be recognized as
separate assets when specified crileria ame mel

When effective, FRS 115 replaces existing revenue recognilion gusdance,

During the year, the Group performed its imtral azzessmeant of the impact
an the Group's fmancial statemants.

Based on its initia] assessment, the Group dées nob expect the new
standard 16 have 3 material impact on the Group's hnangial statements

Transitlon - Tha Group plans to adopt the standard when it bacomes effectie
in financial year A8 with restaternent of comparative infarmation, and s
oathering data to quantify the potential impact areing from the adaption

mcluding FRS 18 Révenue, FRS 11 Canstruction Contracts INT FRS 113
Custorner Loyalty Programmes, INT FRS 1 15Agreements for the Construction
of Real Extate INT FRS 118 Transfors of Assets from Customers and INT FRS
31 Ravenue - Barter Transactions fnvedving Advertising Services

FRS 1158 effective for annual periods beginmng on or after 1 April 2008,
with early adoption parmitied
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3.21 New standards and interpretations not adepted continued

Summary ol the requirements

Potential impact on the financial statlements

FRS 109 Financial Instruments

FRS 109 replaces most of the edisting guodancs v FRS 39 Financial
lnstruments: Recognition and Measurement, It includes revised quidance on
the classsheation and measurement ol hnancial imslruments, 3 new
anpected crodit loss model for calculating impairmant on linancial assats,
and new general hedge accounting requirements. It also carmes forward
the guidance on recogrtion and derecogrition of hinancial mstruments
from FRS 3%

FRS 109 is effectiee for annual periods beginning on or atter 1 April 2018,
with 2arly adoplion permitted. Retrospective application 5 generally
required, @itept for hedoe sccountling For hedge accounting, the
requiraments #re gensarslly apphed prespectively, with some Limded
exceptions, Restatement of comparatve informatian is not mandatory, i
comparatiee infermation is not restated, the cumilative sffect is recorded
in opening equity as at 1 April 2018

During the yaar, the Group performed ks nibal assasament of the mpact
on the Group's financial slatermants

Crverall, the Group does not expact asignilicant change to the measursmeant
baziz arnsing from adepting the new classification and measurement
maodel under FRS 108

Loans and recenables currently accounted for at amortized cost wall
confinue to be accounted for wsing amartized cost medel undar FRS 109

For financial assets currently held at fair value, the Group expecis to
continue measuring these aseets st fair value under FRS 109

impairment - On sdoption of FRS 10%, the Group doss not expedt @
significant incréase in the impairment loss allowanoe

Hedge accounting - the Group expects that all s axisting hedges that are
designated in effective hedging relabionship will continue to qualify for
hedge accounting under FRS 109 The relaation of hedge accounting
rules s lkaly to present more opportunities for the Group to adopt hedge
ACCaynting

Transition - The Growp plans to sdopt the standamd when it betomes
effective in financial year 2018 without restating comparative information;
and i gathering data 1o quantify the potential impact ansing from the
adoption

Convergence with Internatisnal Financial Reporting Standards [IFRS)

In agdition, the Accounting Standards Council [ASC] announged on 25 May 2014 that Singapore-incorporated companies listed on the Singapore Exchan
[S3X] will apphy 2 new financizl reporting framework identical to the International Financial Reparting Standards [referred to 23 SG-IFRS in these financi
staternents] for tha financial year anding 31 March 2017 cvwands

The Group has performed a preliminary gssessment of the impact of SG-IFRS 1 First-time adophion of International Financial Reporting Standards lor 1l
transstion to the new mporting framework. Based on the Group’s preliminary assessment, the Group expects that the impact on adoptien of 5G-1IFRS
Revenye from Contracts with Customers and SG-IFRS ¥ Financal nstrumeénts will be the same a5 adopting FRS 115 and FRS 109 as described in this Nate

Dther than ansing friom the adopton of new and rewsed standards, the Group does not «xpect to change its existing accounting policies on adoption of 1l
ne framewnrk
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

3.21 New standards and interpretations not adopted continued

E lyroup s Curmently pernorming a detal an3iyses o 2 availabie polcy CRoces, Iranslianal ophional SXxemplions and ransiianan mancaiary exteplions
The G thy pert g a detailed f th l=bte policy ch t tiznal optional i dt tionat it t

under SG-IFRS 1 and the prelimimany assessment may be subject to changes arsmg from the detmled anabyses

Summary of the requirements

Potential impact on the financial statements

FRS 114 Leases

FRES 114 eliminates the lessees claszsilcation of leases as aither opérating
leases or finance beases and intreduces a single lesses accounting modsl
Applying the mew model, & lessee is reguired 10 recognize nght-of-use
|ROU) as=ets and hnancial Gabiltbies to pay rentals with 3 term of more
than 12 months, uniess the underlying asset isof low value

FRS 114 substantially carries farwand the lessor accounting requirements
i FRS 17 Leases. Accordinnly, a lessor continues o classily its leases as
oparating leases or hnance leases, and to accaunt for these two lypes of
legses uzing the FRS 17 operating leass and finance laase accounting
mindels respectively. However, FRS 116 mguires more extenswe disclosures
to b provided by o lessor

When effectve, FRS 1146 replaces existing lease sccounting guedance,
including FRS 17, INT FRS 104 Daterminmmg whather an Arrangement
coniains & Lease, INT FRS 15 Operabing Leases - Incentives, and INTFRS 27
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions invoting the Legal Form of 3 Lease

FRS 114 15 effective for annual perinds beginning on or after 1 Aprel 2019,
with early adoption permitted if FRS 115 is also applied

The Group has performed a prelmmany assessment of the new standard
on 15 existing aparating lease srrangements as & lessee, The Group has
several non-cancellabie operating lesse agreements inwhich the Group is
a lessee The Group sxpects these operating leases o be recogmized a3
ROU assets with corresponding lease liabilites under the new standand

The Group plans to adopt the standard whan it becomes efectve in
financial year 2019 The Group will parferm a defadled analysis of the
standard, includeng the transition options and practical expedentsin 2017

The Group expects that the impact on adoption of IFRS 15 Leazes to be
similar o adopting 55-FRS 114, after the transtion to SG-1FRS i financial
year 2018 as described above
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4  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Gresp
w017 T
Moe USS0a) USH00
At 1 Apnd 13026178 1,331.77
Addtions 1,648,735 1.546.58
Dhapasals 1374,5501 s
Acquraion of subsidianés =il 254,102 T
Berrowang cost capitalized i 6,984 7
Changs m far valus 96,573 T AL
Feclatuiicition 10 assel s classhed &g held for wale [33,850] 1152 21
Effect of movarment S exchangs rales 6221811 [505.24
A3 March 146,102,578 LT 1?.
Comprising:
Cormplated iraEstmint proper s 11451111 0, 555 51
InyeEmant proparties under resdevel opment 157,675 R
Propertees utdar dovelapiment 1,253,305 1, 38771
Lzt helel lor divelopement 1,440,457 1.1037,04
14,121,578 13{I'£A.1'i:

Diuring the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group sold certain investment properties of LIS$33 450,000 to GLP US Income Fartners [, which are classitied
assals clazsified as hald for sabe (Note 15]

During the yesr ended 31 March 2014, the Group reciassified certain investment properties of USE152 228,000 (Mote 30{cll to assets claszified as held dor 53
fallewing initiation of 2n actee programme fo sell

Inverstrment prapares are hold mainty for uae by edernal customess under operating leases, Generally, the leases contam &0 imbial non-canceliable per
of one to twenty yesrs, Subsequent rendwals are negotiated with the lesseas. Thers are no contingent rents ansing from the lease of imvestmeant propertee

Imvastment proparties with carnying value totaling approcimately USHE 003,045,000 3= 3t 31 Mamch 2017 12004 LS$E 431 %20,000] were morigaged to ban
snd bondholders 10 secure credit facilities for the Group [Mote 19] Interest capitalized as costs of investrnent properties amounied 1o approxinals
LSha 786,000 {2018, USHF,T22,000| during the year

Measurement of fair value

[il Fair value hierarchy

The Group's imeestment property portfolio are valued by independent external valuers at the reporting date. The fair values ar= based on open market value
being the estimated amount for which a property could be exchanged on the date of the valuation betwesan a wilbng buyer and a willing seller in an arm
length transacton wherein the parties hed sach acted knowledgeably and without compulsion. In determining the fair valee as at the reporting date, U
independent external valuers have sdopted a combination of waluation metheds, ncloding the direct comparnson, meome capitalizabion, discounted oo
flowes-and residual methods, which invaldve cartain estimates. The key assumptions used 1o determing the fair value of imvestment propartes include marks
cormoborated capitaleation rate, discount rate and terminsl yiald rate
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4 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES CONTINUED

Measurement of fair value continued

[i} Fair value hierarchy continusd

The mcome captabization methed captalizes an ncome Stream into 2 present value usng single-year capitalization rales, the moome stream used 12
adjusted to market rentals currently baing achieved within comparable imestment propertses and recent leasing transactions achieved wathin the investment
property. The discounted cash Row method requines the valuer to assume & rental growth rate indicative of market and the selection of @ targel internal rate
of return congistent with current market reguirements The direct comparson methoed 15 used 3= 3 secondary method #nd imvebves the analyss of comparable
eales ol similar properties and adusting the sala phces to that reflecive of the invesiment properties The residual method values properties -under
deveiopment and land held for develapment by reference to their development potential which involves deducting the estimated development costs to
complete construction 2nd develapers profit from the gross development value ta armve at the residual value of the preparty, The gross development value is
the estimated vaiue of the property assuming sstisfactory completion of the development as at the date of valuation. The estimated cost to complate =
determined based on the construction o5t per square metre in the pertinent ares

I relying on the valuation reports, management has exercized il judgment and i satistied that the valuation methods and estimates are reflective of the
current market condileons.

The fair velue mezssurement for investment properties of US$14 702 578 000 (2014 US$H13,024,178,000) has been categorized as a Level 31airvalue basad on
the inpuis to the valuation technique used [ses Note 2 4] and was measured based on valuation by independent valuers who hold recognized and mélevant
prafessmnal gualifustions and have recant axpenence in the lecation and category of the respectivg investmant propérty bisng valued

il  Reconciliation of Level 3 fair values

(3 M
2067 F
USE 000 [ ]
Bslancs ot 1.40A] 13,024,178 11551708
Capetal expenditure incsred and borrovang costs capdalized 1,855,714 L,E&S6A10
Do speaisea] ol snvesiment propertses |374,560) BT
Acquisbon ol mibsdanes 155,102 e
Roclasabostion 10 assels classting a5 hald for ssla [23.650) (1522240
Gaing ard losoes Tor the year
Changes = berwalue ol mvesiment propertes FA R E] T4
Gains and lostes recognized in obher comprehensive incame
Eflect of revesniants ah exthangs eates 622,381) |Br 28]
Batance @ 51 Morch 14,702, 578 13,024,178
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4 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES CONTINUED
Measurement of fair value continued

[} Reconciliation of Level 3 fair values continued

Valuation technigue and significant unobservable inputs

Thr fedlowing table shows the key unobservable inputs used in measurmg the fair value of inestmeant proparties

Valuation mattod Hary untraarvatin rguts [mfgr-rotatarat o botwoan Ky uncisanabio Spiuls 50 e welue messammant

ncoime capstalioslsin Capitalization rate: The estimated Bor value vanes siversely agansd [he captshization rale
PRC: B 7ES to 7.25% (01 4: BTS00 T.25%]
Eapenn £ 505 1o SA0% [ 2014: 4. 70% 1o & ADrE]
[hacpunied cash Ko Descount rabe: The e shmated far valiue vanes smversély hymns the dooun rile
PRC: §.00% to 11 00% [0 16 B 508 10 11.50%
Japan SOMR10 6,900 2014, 5 J0% ta & 90}
Terminal yield rabe: The egtimated e valus vanes sversaly Sgans the termenal eld rate
FRG: 5.75%: te 7. 25% [2018: 5 5% to T 5%
Japan: & 75% 1o 6 A45% [T004: £.75% 1o & L5
Fieesidusl Capitalization rate's The estimated Bir value and gross deveoprent value vany inversely aganst The caprialeston rate i
PR S.75% 0o 7.05% L0 14: S75% to 7. 25%
Estimated development cosis to complete corsiruciion The ezhimated b valup vanes eversaly agmns the developrmasnt o s o compleie conslruchion
=

Vo Capr et mettnd m aspied b deTaeg B 120 groen dreploprmed valle anded the resslun | Bpeach

5 SUBSIDIARIES

= Commpany .

2017 Fol

USS ) S5

Uniguoted equdy shares, al cos T.A40,172 B529.1%
Liess: Allowance ler imparment loss [, 3701 (37
7045802 B AL E]

Labns to subgitares hinterea-fresl 180,545 35!'."3-'1'
7.348,751 E, ?1-2.:'\.‘.'

Diuring the year endad 31 March 2005, imparment loss of USHRE.370.000 was recognized lor tha Company’s nvestment in certam subsidanes which ha
undertying nterests in joint veniures in Brazil, in view of the depreciation of the Brazilian Real which the investments are denominated in, The recoveral
srmaunt for the ralevan! poind ventures was sstimated based on the higher of the value m uze calewlstion using cash flow projection orthe lairvalue of the n
assats a3 al the reporting date. The fair value measurement was estirmabed based on net agsels a3 the assels held by the subsidiarnes comprise main
irvestment properties measured at feirvalue and categorized as Level don the fair valus higrarohy

The loans 1o subsidianes are unsecured and the setilement of these amounts 1= neither planned nor likely o occur in the loresseable future, As the:
amaunts are, in substance, a part of the Comp :I'l'l'|l'-:5 ng irvastmant in subsidizries, [Ty ang stated ot cost less sccumulated impairment |os5es

Details of significant subsidiaries are sst cut in Mote 38
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&  ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

Growp
oy wik
USE 0 =S 00

1naas 26,20
|gank venlures 2153748 1 Re7 485
2,482,103 1LY53.686

Infres

Inrarests

Capetal coframidrmints sh relblion 18 @il afedl® in 3506280 B5-and (ol venlufes W2AN W T

Proportipnate inferes ih assboates and joint venbures commitmant & 380,342 218307

AT £

The Group has one [2076: Nill assocate and s seven|] joint venfures that an

1 alenal and a number of associates and joint venluresthatare indridually
imratarial to the Group All are equity accountad. The

ciates and pont wenlupres

oW are the maternsl o

; xl I..'l‘ ; it l‘i‘.‘.—‘

Haema of aideata sed jonk widyres® Prouc g | ety Frege place of burhess % %
Aosocinte
GLFLUS ncome Partners Privals equaty lund locused on legsecs properins frafad Skatos of Ametic 5 ESa

Jainit ventures

GLF Japs Incoms Farinars | Frivate-aquaty lund locirsed o logeacs properiiss 31.33%
GLP Jepsn Development Venturs | Private aquty lund locised on logaes properings 50.00%
|chikawashishams Jeard wenf e i lePkawashohama fogshie proparty Japan =
GLP Branl Devaloprment Par ners | Prrcate sgusy luni IpErirEs Braal L0.00%
L Bragl ncome Pariners Private equety md focused on lagsic } Braxal 34 00%
GLP Branl mcorme Partners || Private sgudy tunif focusad um (ogisEs properes Braal 3958

LU ncome Parinars 1 Private aguity umd focused on lp@sics properes Iriled Skates of Amenca 10.25%

livten
1 Twmlgbends |5 omman ol aama o e cord v fbume pusd dur (1P dand managaTant plifam
o Fmlabends VR wquefs mawet privecos e onctoded o gusadi L] ba Retd dor ciied B0 1 T RamB 0L
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6 ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES CONTINUED
Summary information for associates and joint ventures that are material to the Group

This summarized hinancial informateon (s shown on 3 100% basis, It represents the amounts shown in the associates and join venlures' financial statemen
pregated in sicardance with FRS under Group sccounting policies

P17
=

GLP Japan
rgame

Partreers |

USST000

GLP lapan
Bevalaprent
Wenbure |
USST00

GLP Brazd
Devesprmes
Pariners |
USE000

GLP Brazil
Ingmme
Fartners |
USS000

GLP Brazil
Ingams
Periners 1l
LS50

GLPUS
Incams
Parirers|
US500)

GLP S
I
Partrers 1l
U500
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Group's interests
Results

1%

S0.00%

40, 00%

b, 1%

LR

10.35%

2.85%

Feyanug 43,240 nen =D - LE] 477 B84 55,300 Lra 1,964, 70
Expenses 26,847 132,234 1268 132,945 FCRT | 306,558 L | |
Changes i fr value of investmend properiies 1T 199,564 BR.441 E7.E85 B 725 98353 T2 1,134
InEcé [y e pieh 5 14,7241 1411l |23, 555 | 23401 ITh, 167, %541 128, TN [4E0 &7
Prodd /| Lgss] bor the year LLE-] 2633 40498 TELD B1d, 217 1a2n LA REES
Heg-eonivalling nberests - - - - - . 11,099 1109
Profa/|Lass} aiimbutable 1o veners 4F.B40 FIT ] L] 540 |%.748 B4, 217 p=Frll 72,070 1,0
Ceher comprehenane e ome 4,557 2983 54,000 51,504 5301 |1,0571 184,55
Toia comprahensve mcome 14407 22,31 11,658 122874 A3E74 514,217 163,21 81,003 1,355 3‘
ProlilLoss| atier tax include: '
it (RCOmE Z r 2 2ETT 4496 55R 1 215% 1237
Deproodtion and amorhialon L el | 13723 |5, 4521 111,81
e enpinae 1,249 14,02 |34, 739 J32.435| IZ2. 1770 11594,723 [145,61%] §28, 3011 |451 '."".
Aszets and liakilities
Mon-currant assets 1, 764604 2,231 %30 TE3 944 werE BT 8154528 & TSRS 1,855, 097 i
Carrenil assels £3.321 B4.05% 25,50 T334 24500 AR 5AT 138,153 L8 B e A0
Total 5cts LI EES 2306019 TER 4G Wk, B BT 5,354 097 AL S 2281 vE5 .'”-_:-EII_LE:
Mon-current [abdiles (58, 851 fas g1s| 154 253| |353 557 (i k) B ey L [3072, 3411 526,08 190 71484
Cayrrent tiabilites |26, &T4] ELE (25193 178,633 | 20035 | 4736581 1228 Taal 1535 742 1. 715,03
Total babifies ah 5308 11,204,359 1151 455 AR | 30780 & T7XLE 3300087 (1oveesl  |f 1_I3.':‘|"_L£|

Assets and Uabllities include:

a0 Cash BOUNVERENES

Caurren! financial lebilitees lercluding trade and
ther pavables)

Hon-cyrrent imancial bebiltes leciudng trade and
vihar payables)

a1

13419

[543 B

SR

1145404

Ji36, 35|

1743

|%5;7a8

&5971

en

24357

111,453

|4, 744

1375

113984

|80 13

1HL T

[2az 500

4,20, 255

108,751

11425643

[3,062 4%

&

145 531
75,528l

139,351

|1B1043

19,733, 14
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& ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES CONTINUED
Summary informatien for associates and joint ventures that are material to the Group continued
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GLP lagan GLP kjan CLF Bragil GLF Brasl GLP Branl GLPUS immatenal
Incorre  Devalopmant kehikans  Deglopment nepme rEOma Income  Reseelates ard
FErIrasy | Vidiime 1 wheksang Parthery i Pastivam | el Farrars | (e e Towl
Ae S 0 LS 00 LIS () LSS0 LSRR e g LISE 0 L] Uoe
Group's intérests 3T 3% 50,00% 50.00%: &0, 0% 3630 LR 1035%
Results
Revenue 57344 e 1265 2164 242 2813 &16304 A9
Erpenses [P i: 122,762 13,2341 ERA L |55, %84 1376331 |44 715} 131 8541
Changes in lairvalue of i siment properties 104,270 241 1Bs 1 4ER 1.713 3409 111, %531 155 528 AR734
Impame ba [enpanselicredin 1B 250 114,458] 1EF| 54 14,4021 ki 1119378} 119,789
Predd for tha year 133,752 288, 3R 19,021 5,744 21583 13,554 24, 15% 47392
(ther composhen @eg income 11, a2 |8, A0 = T2 171227 |7, 1571 = [ERLE
Tolsl compeehensae incoma 1321 P %021 | XS] |59 A04) |56, 231 48 157 43,778
Prolitafer tax indiude
IFlerest insoime E 11 'y 3185 20 124 T4 384 B9
Crepreciat on and amontizahon 12,008 133651 (x| - - - - 135 15500
Irlgrest sxpanse 16, EirF 12,8471 12131 |7, 245 130,934l 131,635 |214, 884 114 50 132
Assets and Liab®ities
Mon-currar! assels LI 73 1,793 270,050 EIE B4 01,195 AT EH B233787 R 14,633 584
Crirren asssis 54505 114, 181 14,581 2208 Z2B8Y 34,014 1946875 103,058 5&T.378
Total assats 1,161,728 1,938 224 631 B0 950 TE4 058 78 507 ELda0881 1,374,07 15,500,942
Mo -currer) Batulies 335,055 [ b | 16,7481 V30,426 254485 |24750%  I50E0.18 [391.848) 780,404
Current esbilibies 2844 TR 867 |1418,543) | 25,868 20,410 1131, 768 (1606761 11,00 1.958)
Tolad liakslmies 1545011 R ET1 1148 2891 [0 353 267,919 [5210 TEY [REZHI1 181725700
Hssels and Labdlities Include:
Canh and cach equralents a1 7z B 4TS 12650 258 12184 250 14TEN B1,155 SI5 584
Cyrrent fmancial kabiltes bcluding trade and
et payabli] [213.113] Figs 27 1137751 |85 [hzx 15319 - 15.5M |4 T
toan-currant hnanodl bstelies fpoeludng reds snd
cther papskios] i [29€,408| 1674, 435] |10, Takl HEEATE [Dhe 476 47386017 (295,789  J4E011T
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6 ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES CONTINUED

Reconciliation of the above amounts to investment recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position

BLP Jagan BLP Japan OLPBrarl  OLPBrzl  GLP Brach OLP S BLPUS Immaterial
Irec rrs Dewvelop i Develop ] Irszeene e inmme InEHme misasibes sl
Parirars | Mesiture | Partnansl Pastners | Periners || Pariners | Partnare |l e i red Tak
017 S50 ] LS00 USE 100 USE 100 5000 USE 000 P55 000 23
Broup's inleress I.33% 50,00 000, 34,30 A 10.35% 7.85%

Group's interes in ned sesals of seedostes 5nd

pant wenbures 3 begenimig of the yesr 10 173845 171818 e iSh 5T | 450
Greups share VA1 IMCOTe 24 5113 5879 17541 53,247 14082 bd5H 3 71
Dhawdands recermd from associates and joint ventures

the Broup s ot [7,e04} 122,767 B4, 2811 LR |57,004)

23,424 L4678 17,310 ) 15,181 S : 14,15 b,
A poenl werdures o submidanas

26,33
Angirston of subsibares | Mote 3000 - 134 41
assheatnon fromm geset held = _ B ) 143148 : a1
1848 ki .39 BEH 11,948 = : (9310 13

Carmymgamound ol sntarast o5 and

wifilures & the and ol 1k 155531 Sa546d 47353 200 1% Fh& A A9.410 155,044 E2.621

Tisebe
1 I ludes] Dertion Soet ol panlosed of BL 115 00
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& ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES CONTINUED
Reconciliation of the above amounts to investment recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position continued

ELP Bgan GLF hpan BLP Brazi GLE Brazh ELP Braci GLP S mumataal
Diralogumant kehigws:  Dewatopmant Incoma Incoma Inepma  EERCIEIES And
Wt L | LT Partrars 1 Parieges 1 Partnem I Partrir 1 joent e ufed el
A4 Lt 000 USE 000 = gine] g LESE 00 LrSE () (1= gk s [ R LIEE 000
Group's interests I3ITE 000 0% &0.00% LR 0.595% 10.35%
Growp s ofleies wmnat Setets of retoomles and
yount verdunis @ begenring of the yoar 157 553 BT AR 167 007 16 BL4 1B AT IR o i 1 FELLOAT
Group's share of tolal comprehensne income (¥ 1N*AT: TEN AT e el fredyal| 54T 21177 =S
Drwdends rocened from assocates and joind ventures
{Ihe Geoup s shars) 14547 . - 12.754| | b, c8% 24, 102
Redasabestiin of ped venures 1o subeidanes! - - - - - - - 125 B8l |25 880
Group's share of toial fdistrbution tellocsnindiaion
iy cevmors 4474 113573 o 13,240 Ly 5445 [T} k2578 240959
Transsclmn cods in cohhachicn with acousdion of
il verlire - r - * * - - % ?IE- 3.2":\
Redasabcation of jeen venaurs 1o assets clasabed
37 heeld for sale’ B - - - - - - [r.o08| [7.008)
Roclagsifbcation of assets cdassliod as hald lor =lelo
Jont verures? - - - - - - lukat e - TS
Capaalizatvon ol loan o penl serilure ta equity
contfbulien Lo jent verilure - . = - a547 34547
Elfact of mirmrmands h sxchancd rabés 11484 AN 3,700 - . 1173111 2147
Carryng amdu] o snbifedl in Sitacules dnd
(ot verdures 3t 1he end ol the year 20 580 Ak EEE SH170 173845 164, 15 IERHE] 0438 ;a7 | P53 485
b

PPt B0 [Te Boq U ed oF 300 S e ety isseniITenn o e [oavh ven eS8 GTana darmg The pear, M Gnug o) ool OF TRese oommp rers el h wasts thern rec sl 38 Saboaianes | Hobe S0a1

Forlabes 102009 el et o Mo Dogiien AR of LD wWhach, 11 G Moo Mas indesehand 20t withan Thw et 12 montfe [Robe 15

Falaies 000259 gy ©RvSr nabiited st bo S5poasl of L0S8% sqeily maenst i OLF LS oo Farmars | in Doioter T00S. 450079 equaty inbewsl ) L LIS Booimes Farner | wir provicunly ol fed s asiel Seif be sl i al
31 March AHE

W
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Movements in deferred tax assets and Liabilities dunng the year are as follows
Effectaf Becognized Rectassificatan
Aequisition mevements Iether Betegnized in T Bl and
AL of subsidiarios inexchange emprehersive preditar lows Gakilities. [
1apnl |Wote 30{all rates irnane [Hate 22| held far ke 31 Mar
freup VS5 %0 U500 USS 000 USS 000 Uss 000 58000 s
207
Deferred lax assets
Unutilized v lossos LN 1400 1439 - 2463 - .
Iepsment propertios ™ - s - [=05] -
Irkarest ralo swaps Tak - 1% |2%4) - - &4
Others 140, 100 - 1111 - 3,188 591 13,20
38,038 1.400 [1.377] [EL] 5044 [ LEFII
Dielerred tax labilithes
Imestrnent propariies Isd 50 16.304] Lk - 1323.51%) - 1116551
Joagilabile={pr-salp Bnanoal invesments [18m25] = 1129 17, Lmm) = = (24,3
Others. 84320 = &0 - [1.68] 014 113,58
11,030,653 163041 59480 [7.488] 2254031 5118 1150386
Tidal (572 48] [ 58,303 [7.782] (220,259} &5 11,18 1.1¢
Fl:i:'l_n! |;o(-_'¢.-'-r-|;:
Preredrma e i e
ar T S Panga crra b v i
1 &pril FatiE i 3 Mare
Broup LEE Fo=s g x] (e a] Ilﬁi-{:
2014
Deferred fax assets
riiliped b (s s v i) 512 13541 ThAY
Investrmient progerias (R - &l - T
Interest rale swaps 4oy - : Fagl 73
Oihers 5655 4, 63 10,10
A 512 {1,440 20 4,245 JJ:',.-.'I.’I
Deferred tax liabiliies
Invesrmient progarties e ]| 151111 ket | | 198,857 P07
Availabile-lor-sale bnantml inosimaents |64 s 113,513 18,002
[thers |6, B0 = - g VB4
R GBa) & 111l 117,513 el
Tatal BI7.0771 14,5771 |13 2H, T3
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7 DEFERRED TAX CONTINUED

DCederred tax lisbilities and assets are offsel when there is a {egally enforceable nght 10 s21 off current tax assets against curment tax liabilties and when the
defarred taxes relate 1o the same tax suthority, The amounts determined sfier appropriate olfsetting ame included in the statement of tmancizl pesition as {ollows

Grougp
2087 e
LSS0 o Y]
Coatmrred tax a5sars 17,034 i)
Deturred 12a Liakbsldizs NATEATI 11,013, 334)

Az at repofting date. dafarrad 15 hablidies haee not be radodnized m "t_-_',ﬁ-'_-'fl ol taxes that would Be p"._l'r'.;ll;l!-'_- of the ghdistnbuted aam ngs af cartam
subsidiaries of USE15,131,000 [2014: USS16,58% 000 35 the Group do not have plans 1o distribute thess earnings in the foresésabls future

A deferred tak aseet i redognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits wall be avaiable agamst which temporary ditferences can be
utilized Delerred tax azsets are reviewed at each reparting date and are reduced o the extent thal if is no longer probable that the related tax benafhit wall be
realized. The Group has not recognized deferrsd ta assets In respect of the following

(=¥ ]
20t Fairy
USS000 VST
Tar logses T8 424 e T

Deberrad tan 2osets in respact of tax losses have not been recognized because it i nat probable thaet future teable predit will be available against which the
Group can utifize the bensfits. Tax osses ane subpect lo agreement by the 1= autharites #nd compliance with tax requlations i the respective tountr
whith the subsdizries oparate, Untecognized [ax losses will supire within one to fae years

8 PLANTAND EQUIPMENT

Furniture, fitings Lalbwrato urdar
Bl i v PR A Tatal
Getup LS 00 U000 e R Y]
Cost

A 1 Aprd JG1E FrArLY TAL TeATZ
Aoquistions of subsediane s [Noke Jall 238 - i
Additinng Ed5g P 3357
Dvapeosals (i)} - [ ]
Rl senbesticns 284 | 244l

Elfier o rnovermante i xthangs sales A5% b LE5
AL 3T Mareh 2008 7B 244 4B 307
Sddons w7 §, e 10,154
[hapozals 12449 - 34651
Reclazadoations BESL 15, 654) -
Etfact phmdesemants in eochanoe mates 12421 g N

A 30 Maich 37 BY, 536 - 89,524
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S |_|;.5-‘.
Accumaulsted depreciation
Al 1 Apnd 2005 2268 2,2
o chary B B
16

Carryirg anmounts
AT 1 Apnd 2005
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Lol Tracarmari; Han-compat R Licwnsn rights Tolal

S USE000 usEnm 154 Do S 00 24T

Cost

A 1 Aprd 2515 456 25T A0 40 7000 - 0T

stgquigiasng of syt T4y 163

Ellact of mpvesmand s in scchdnfs rale |17, %4 |1 5401 1269 15]

Ap 31 Mareh 2004 7478 30064 G

Aegquisitens ef subsadianas [Note 3HEal - - - 217

ntE an exthafins fabes

Effieer af o

[16, 153

A1 31 Marel

£31,2%0

&5

Accurnulated ameort zation

& 1 Apri 2015 &3
Armpirts for thee e 1 toa TH i
Ellect of rmone chamnos males Ll |26l (4]
31 March 24 10,7 & B3 112
satian Jor thes e - 145

Eftact ol movemenis in exchange raes

alel

A AN March 2007

12,338

[EER

19414

Carrying amaunis

Ar 1 Aprd 2015 AS5.IT 31,578 e - BT T
A 30 March 114 ANT AT 28350 23 Aih &8
AF 31 March 317 &21,270 25,367 - bTE 47,335

Impairment test for goodwill

Faor the purpose of goodwall mpaliment testing, the aggregate carmang amao

AT and the key assumplions used in the ca

lcufation of recoverable amounts

unt of goadwill allocated to each
fiscount rateand terminal gro

n respect of

cash-gener

zting wnit

[
Ah rateare 3

Gl
]

Tallcws

|85 &l .

i March

CRIPAng RTais] {mcount rate Tarmara| gmwi® rmla
207 mmT i o7 k]
Gooug ] L L i L
GLF Chany' 124,528 &5 BS 30 Uit}
GLP lsp 141,657 50 Eil 14 Lo
53,155 %] BS 30 a0

rapinprnent Grous AL Goup'l

Erport

et

Voones
1 Fmlaten 50 i Gow s of logmnc b
T Swlaten ds s sy o g

g A s e of BAE] MMl ragEma T eevied = apan
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9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS CONTINUED
Impairment test for goodwill contimed

The recoverable amount of the CGUs is dstermined based on value n use calculation. The valus in uze calculation s a discounted cash How model using ca:
floww projections based on the most recent budgets and forecasts approved by management covenng fve years. Cash flows beyond these penods 3
extrapolated using the estimated terminal growth rates stated in the talile above. The discount rate applied Is the wemghted average cost af capital from 1
relavan! business sagmean

The terminal grewth rate uzed for each CGU does not exceed management’s expectation of the lona-term awerage arowth rate of the respectos industry ar
country in which the CGU aperates

The Group believes that any reasonably possible changes in the above key assumptions applisd are not Lkely to matenzlly cause the recoverable amaount
b lewear than its carrying amount

10 OTHERINVESTMENTS

B .
17 F
USS5000 =40

il |- 160 -2 bABAGE RSNl
= Qpoted equity securties # fer valug 1,044 B82S R
- Urguabed seuily secuises, 51 cost 115711 2551
1.1-5&5_? 1.0158¢

Quoted equity securilies comprise

+  13.6% 12014 15050 interest in GLP J-REIT, which is listed on the Real Estate Investment Trust Market of the Takyo Stock Exchange;

* 155% &: 15 5%| interest in CMST Development Co., Ltd ["CMSTDC] which iz listed on the Shanghal Stock Exchange

v 195% (20148 19.9%) interest in Shenzhen Chiwan Petroleum Supply Base Co , Lid, [[SCPSE’], which is Listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchanga; and
+ 0.%% [201&: Mill shareholdings in Shanghal Lingeng Holdings Co, Lid, which is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchangs

The guoted equity securities are stated at their lairvalyes at the reporting date, determined by reference o their quoted clasing bid price in an active mark
al the reporting date, The Group's exposure to market reks and far value information retated to other investments ane disclosed in Notes 32 and 33

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group also scguired unquated equity securities in Sik companigs in China and three companies in Japan 1201
three companigs in China] at an aggregate consideration of USHYE 445,000 (2014 USEE0,477,000]

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair values
— L -
2017 2
UsE00 3
Balance sl | Apn) 2L F
Addtinns F5, 484 iy
[hspasala 15,0001
Elfect 5 of movarment 5 o aiichangs males |, 6591 177
Balanee = 31 Mareh 1571 B
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11 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

[
a7 i 119
USE000 L]

Trade recersbles 33E10 ALALR
= 1488 2,784
Prepements 2,548 1930

& s diza [rorn
- pounf verduTeES 18475
s (st i @bty £0,252
s AN g vent e 55,407
abies [Hore 13) 16847 Gl
Jedprred managemant costs 12414 -
(thars FLE] JER
231,758 128,182

Manzgement has assessed that ne sllowance for iImpairment losses is required in respect of the Group's non-current trade recenables, mone of which are
past due

Deposits intlude an amount of USHE 153 000 [2006: Mill in relation te the adquisition of new investments

The amounts due from joint ventures and an mvestee entity are attributed 1o the transfer of tenant secunty deposits 1o these entities

o associzte and joint ventures are unsecured, bear fiked interast rmnging from 539% to 8.00% (2016 5.3%% to 8.00%] per annum at the reporting

are fully repayable by May 2025 [2014: Bugust 2024]
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12 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

[=oup Camipny
2017 e w017 T
LSS 000 LIS 000 USS0a) US§00
Trade recenaiins #5098 TR -
Impasmant losses [2e5) [I===1) -
Wit trade recenables %510 TTa5% -
Arriounts due Irom subssddnes I
nddi=trmd & and intare s -iros - 7,720 1087
- poh-trade and inbéres -besnng - - 1 4 577 1,137 5¢
Ameants-die Inem asseciates and jpnk venluras:
- rade 82,000 15150 -
= nensirade and mierss -frea 7785 XE37 ook 3
Ameunts due lrom &n mres e end ity
= e 1519 -
= nanstradn and mteres roa 18,269 -
Armnpants du inom discontmy d speration |rade] 5 -
Lt £ mane-contrallmg interesis 1412 -
Loans to- asseoate and jeind ventures 21,116 -
Consdarstion racenstds trom joint venbiurs parners - =
Lo@ns B0 urd partes
= relation | o aogpeEstion of new EmeEsiment s TOTES 53,655 -
- plhers 1813 = = '
23L7% oA 1,754,602 1,219
Finance tadts mmcosables Hate 13 BATE 447T% -
Depotis 12292 51540 2_20 1
Other recenables AT 43983 153 2,04
Imparment lodses ! 111} 13 - |
ET.1564 430H 58 2104
Losanes and recenvables 595238 455554 1,088 128,17
Othar assols SR - -
Propammenats BRI BE 737 1,135 101
LLF.399 EAT.TN 1,758,315 125,15

n demand. The effectr
B2% to B 00%) per annun

The non-trade amounts due from subsiciaries, assocabes, joint ventures and an investes entity are unsecurad and are repayable
Interest rates of non-trade interest-bearing amounts due from subsidianies st the reporting date range from 3.95% to 5.00% 2082

The loans 1o son-controlling interests are unsecured, bear fed intersst at the reparting date of 200% 12014 10 00%) per annum and are repayable «
demand. The loans 1o as o gnd joint vantures are unsecured, bear (ived interest at the reporting date ranging from. 4.35% 1o 8.00% (2004 £.00%
10.00%) per annum and 3

@ rapayabla within the net 12 monihs
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12 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES CONTINUED

The loans to third parties in relation §
’ o 10.00%, svcept far USE
of the acguisitean]. The ather loans

Deposits Include an amaount of USERL 0N
Irom sale of 4 property, value addad tax
I Ll prepaed oo

bles and of

1000 [2016: US

x Qe

dit reisk tor loans and rec

sivzbles at the reporting date [by countryl

[2015: proceeds from sate of 3 prop
nd prepaid transaction coste of NIl (3016, USEZR.72

s

bles compriss proce
el bles)
i for new o

Oooooooa

s
[
Prepa

=l

+C18 Wndar

Groes
AT
LSS0

Alliwanes tor
daubtttul recevabios
3

USE000

Lroms
A

LR D

Blmanhes lor

e bt it sl bl
s

UEI00

Group

PRC 03325 i al] EETY L
apan 55314 H o]
SngEpote 54,4073 - EATIA
s Irar (=]} AETL
D biprs b Tk - 948
555,535 [29%) L0155 401

Cornpary

SinmEpure

1,757,180

AT

I3}

The ageing of

15 and recevables at the report

ing date is

Groes
a7

Allewancs hor
dairbtful recevables

US5000

AisaEncs [o¢

deovis il Feecianva bl
Futh]

U 00

Group

Mot past dus

Pest due 1- 30 days
Pas due 31 = 90 days
Men than M davs

472543
ARTIT
#6336
20.92%

121}
2311

[0

585,535

(2991

L&}

Company

Rl past dus

1,757,180
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12 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES CONTINUED

“-: he agemng of loans and recenablas ab the reporting date is: contimued

The Group's historcal experience in t

the security deposits

required in res

collection FLCHINES : 5 falls wnthin the recorded allowances Based o sloncal peyment behawars, al

e quaramtess and ¢

s and recenvables

ni it

ek Tigaa il

ice account in respect of

ity of the trade recenables are due Irom 1anants that have good credit mecords wath the Group
il

trade récenabl

= at that paint the amaunts are conssdan

: B
tesses unlass the

yritten off sgainst the fir

stied that no recovery ol the amount owing is poss:

le] Tha movament in allowances for impairmen ris as follows

A 2017 &
LS OO0 VLS00 [ -Z‘l';
A1 1 A ] =
|ReversallFecogretion of imparment losses LETR -
Amiounts whitten-oH 14,843 -
Effect of ravernientsin gachanga ratos a3l -
a1 T 01 i
13 FIMANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES
Thie Group le el | @pUEpITIr 1 finance leases, The sgreement expires batwean 2017 and 2020, and the non-nebst

i extend these sases ol

Bt
w017 i
USS0) U

TP
Mat Later (han one yos 5007 5,
e yeae bul wibin fve years 38,517 549

6,024 10,77
Lt Undssad hnsnos inooma 16,0231 s
Ml et men! in nands e 7,541 VB

- Lapar i Far

it investment i linance leases 15 analy2ed ac follows

207 o

USSR S0

Mot {a0er than one vaar (More 131 'S:-I_&TH &l
| 34,457 Sl

Later thar ong year Bul withan froe yeses |[Note 11 5
89,941 9 B8
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14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Groaip Carng my
1y Ty FoTH] F- Y
WSSO0 LSE 00 USE 0 LS5 000
Fized depests IR T2993 75,132 L5
Gashat hank 7409 1001570 TALT LTS
Resincied cash depouts L% A2 - - .
Cash and casdh equrvalaris i 1he Satérment of BAsncial pastion 1,210,560 126 56T 102,577 L2750

Thi elfectve imarest rates relating (o fied deposits and certsin cagh at bank balarces &t the reporting date for the Group and Coempany ranged from 0.07%
to 2 2% (2008, O01% 1o 2 52%] and 1.05% to 1.50% (2016 0.02% to0:85%] per annum respectively, Interast rates repnce at intervals of one to twelve months

Restrizted cash deposits represent bank balances of certasn subsidianies pladged as securty lor future investments

15 ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATION

Grop
27 WL
USE 000 ]
Assets clasabed a5 held lor sais .50 b B 608
Liztalities clasmbod a5 hald for e (6570701 12,888, 7954
31,495 A i

On 15 December 2015, the Group scquired 18 equity imerests m a portfolio of invesiment properties 1o form GLP US Income Partners L, with a view o
yndicate approsimately 0% equity interest within 12 months from date of acquisition. Accordingly, the assets and liabilities of GLP US Incoma Fartners Il
were diassified 5z held for saleand results presented as descontinued operation, Certain investment properties of US$33 450, 000 were additionally transferned
ta GLP US Income Partners |1 [Note &) As at 31 March 2017, the Group has syndicated approsimatedy 50% equity interest in GLP US Income Partners 1 to
third party imvestors and have contracted with other imestors 1 syndicate spprocmately 40% of the equity interest v the Fund, subject to obtaining
administrative and regulatory approvals. This discontineed operation was stated 31 fair value less costs to sell of USH3L4 487 000 a1 the reporting date,
datarminad based on the estimated syndicstion consideration

As 3t 31 March 2016, assets and labilities ciassified as held tor sale primanty comprised 100% equity inferests in GLP US Income Pariners [l that the Group
intended to syndicate approximately $0% equity interest within 12 months from date of acquisition. This discontinued operation was stated at lairvalue less
tosts to sell of USS1.998.825,000 31 tha reporting date, determined based on the estimated syndication consideration. The syndication of ¥ 15% equity
Intérests was complated in Seplember 2016

Results from the discontinusd operations amounting to LUSSE &7 3 000 {2014, USE36 010,000] are presentadin the income statement as profit from dizcontinued
operation net of tax]. There are no changes in far value less costs to ell and no cumulalve income or expenses included in sther comprehensme income
relating {o the discontinued operation

As at 31 Marnch 2017, the assets classified as held for sale zlsa ing lude 45.00% [20146: 45,00%) equity intenest in New Dulles Asset LLE which the Greup intends
to sell within the ned 12 months This dispesal group was stated at fair valee less costs to sell of USET 008,000 (2016 US$7, 0080000 at the reporting date
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16 SHARE CAPITAL, CAPITAL SECURITIES AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
lal Share capital

Fia o e
2017 2
oo i
Fully paid ofdinary shares, with no par valoe:
ALTApri &B4h Tk 4239 50
Issue of shanes pursuant to the GLP Share Fang! = us.l
A3 March, inciuding treasury shares 5,300, 300 TR
Less: Treasuny shares 157,357 1100 48
At 3 Mamh enchuding treasury shares 4 657, 007 47438

Hiors
1 Relens to the Dertarmancn s neriched Share e, @ ingl pors a0t ional 1,445,000 shures. | hae wene [sReRtin 200 purssant 1o the SLF PSP,

The holdars of crdinary shares [excluding treasury shares| are entitled to recave divedands 2s daclared from time 1o tirme and a0 antitlod to one vola per sha
at mestings of the Company All shares lexcluding treasury shares] rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets

(Bl Movements in the Company’s treasury shares were as follows:

Fig of thares
017 20
AT Api 100,680
Purmchase of treasurny Shanes 4,000 105,21
T 0 ry & bl oy, Dl e e p-l.ll‘!wrltmtheGLF“Shan*_an’.. i'.F,LSNI H.E}
A1 3 Mamch 15?&‘5'1‘ 103,{.1]:

lc) Capital securities

During the financial year ended 31 March 2012, the Company ssued capital securitios with 3 normnal amaunt of S8 750,000,000 lequivalant to US$587 490 00
for cash Transaction costs incurmed in connection with the issuance of capital sacurities, which was recognized as & deducton from equity, ammounted |
USH7 764,000, The capital sacunties were perpatual, subordinated and the distribution of 5 50% on the sscurities may be deferred at the sole discratmon of tt
Company As such, the capital secunties were classihed as equity instruments and recarded in equity in the statement of financial position

On 17 February 2007 [the "Rieclassication Date™], the Company announced stsinténtion ta redeem the capifal secunties [the  Redemphion®| inwhale an it
first call dateon 7 April 2017 (the "Redemplion Date”). In connaction wath the Redermption, the Company recognized the capial secunties of 557500000
&5 loans and borrowangs, maasured at its {Bir valus of US3529,437000 and accrued distribution of LUSI 10669000 35 interest payable Accordingly, ft
carrying valus of US$E90 394 000 was derecognized, with LISE540, 108 000 rec lassified tocurrent labilities and US $50 285 000 transferred to retained earning
within agquily The fair vatue ol loans and barrowings was determined based on the pragent valus of the settlement amount on the Radempton Dale
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16 SHARE CAPITAL, CAPITAL SECURITIES AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT CONTINUED
[d] Capital management
The Group's ohjecties when managing capital are to build 2 strong capital base so as to sustain the future developments of its business and to maintain an

optmial capetal structund 1o maxim te shareholders value The Group defines "¢ apital” &5 includin q all com ponents of & £|l|:|.5-'

The: Groep's capital structure is regularly reveewed . Adjustments are made 1o the
requirements and busimess strateqies affecting the Group

el structure in |lg:| ol « hanges N eConome C onditions, fEI;',}l-]ll'_-:""f

Tha G up also monitars capital Usng & mit delt 1 -1'_-.'jlllt:|-' ratig, which s defined 35 met bor il dinviched By 101l eguity line |.||:]|"!!'_| mon -contrallin | niaresis]

o
0T Fuiid
USE00 US3 000
22

Gross borrowings fnad of transachon ool 5,559 418 & TT0.437
Less: Cash and cash equnalents i1,270.5401 18,024 563

Mt debt 4383578 R
Total squty 13,24 B I3 140, 108

Med dabe 1o pouay rato 033 o

The Group seeks to stnke s balance between the higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of bormowings and the Liquidity and security afforded
by & sound capital pasition. In addifion, the Lampany has a shans pur;_h.';",.n_' rraandate as approneed by s shareholders which allows the !::;‘.'.'.pan!, :_jrl-_--..'_ql,-_-.J
fleibility cver its shame capital structure with o view to impraving, inter alia, its réturn on equity. The shares which are purchased sre held 53 treasuny shares
which the Company may transfer for the purpose of or pursuant to 5 employse share-besed incentive schemes The use of treasury shares in bew of issuing
fieny shares would mitegate the dilution on existing sharahald

Therewere no changes in the Groug's approsch to capitsl management durng the year

Except {iorthe reguirerment on themaintenanceof statutoryrese nvefund by subsidianies incorporatedin the PRC, there vereno edemally imposed capial mquirements

17 RESERVES

Grmip [

7 s 017 s

LSS T L] UsSmn0. =]

Capeal reserve [T LIREE] 20371 [EXF
Equatly compiansalion ressrve 23529 AT TR ¥I9 19.63%
Hedgpng remrg 131,197 155, 148| (10,588} | 15,651
Fair value resere TATT 335737 - -
nher rasane 1&%%.778] (LAl - -
Resarve for cwn shares [231,752] 157584 (230,752} 1157545
Capesl 500 ARST ressnes [£75.752] fassaa| 17304280 1154873

Curmency IranalHon radere [1.173.375] | 1006 B - .
Falariad aarninigs 3904, 500 3,302,471 197 538 AE 3R
2155073 | HIT AR 177,102 L4457
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17 RESERVES CONTINUED

Capital reserve comprises mainly capital contributions from sharehalders, gains/losses in connection with changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries th
dor ot result in lossof control 2nd the Group's share of the statutery reserve ol its PRC-incorporated subsidizries. Subsidiares mecorporated in the PRE 2
riquired by the Foresgn Enterprize Law to contnbute and meintain a non-distributable statutory reserve fund whose utilization & subject to approval by i
relevant PREC authorities

Equity compensalion reserve comprises the cumulative value of employes senvices recenved for the issue of shares under the Company’s Performmance Sha
Plan and Restricted Shars Fian

Hedging resene comprises the effactive portion of the cumulztiee net change mthe tairvaiue of cash flow hedging instruments related to hedged transaction
that have fot yef occurred

Fair value resene comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-sale financal investments until the investments are derecognizi
or Impaired

Oiher reserve comprizes the pre-zcquisitin reserves af those commaon control entities thal were acquired in connechonwith the Group reorganization whi
occurred immedmtely prior to the initial publec offering of the Company,

Resene for the Company's own shares comprses the purchese consideration for ssusd shares of the Company acquired and hald in treasuny

Currency transtaton reserve comprises all toresgn exchange diferences armang from the transiation of the hinancial statements of foregn operations, 35w
as from the transiation of fareign currency loans and bonds that hadge the Group's net investments in foraign operations

18 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The foliowing subsidiaries have non-controlling interests [NCIT) that are material 1o the Group

Duaryvp wirws by N

Frimipal okl Fill
Hama of Company place ol bsrers 5] '
darpart Cilty Developraent G, Lid PRG 45 B6% 46, B!
GLF Fund I LP PRG AA 1R LR P
litwits Cwnia O fshore Holdngs IHong Kang] Lrraed "China Holdeo ) PRC A179% T
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18 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS CONTINUED

The lollowing table summarnzes the fimanoal information of each of the

EDINETOOOO
O00000000000000000000000000(E24841)
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smaup’s subsidiaries with materml NI, based on their respective [corsolidated)

financial statements prepared n accordance with FRS, Sea Mote 34 for details of the significant subsidianes of the Group

Other imdividually
AL CLF Chira immaterial
Group Fundl |, LP Haldes Group ntaisarien Tetal
LSS 00 USE 00 LSS0 LSS LSS0
7
Results
Bevenus 545 55,4k SEE2T4 220,457
Profa ks ihie yoar I7.7E& B3 0EE 5B0 488 24,0059
(ther comprshensaes moome Lﬂ.ﬂ:ﬁ'l 1”.1?!_F |a&a,2371 -
Total comprehien =ve Incame |745) 5,574 116,451 26,0059
Marrbogtoble o
- N 5 al 5551 =
- (rwmzrs of the Cornpany 17451 ST 110,600 24,0059
Anributabile to NEl:
Probt for tha year LT 35841 RLEREE] 45,180 82450
- Cther comprehansaa income 1180451 1260481 11257811 [37.483] 12155371
Tolsl compiehensng moome [36%] 7593 7,372 7457 7,112
Assets ard Gabitities
Mif-coafrire Sastd 1. 283944 213540 13,997 438 4,207,147
Cumrem asses 37,258 143848 1,267 427 402,104
Totah assats 1323202 1,269,148 15,297 065 LA09 5
Men -curmant lisked fies (4519521 18 27,5420 (&, 456,933] [1.046,324]
Currpnd Labdines [ 183, 204) 198,843 1,374, 503) |595,428]
Tolad babaitins (435,158 1825, 2851 [5.E31,491] (14417621
NG - - {1, 715873) -
Ml sszett slirbuishle b owners of Eha Cormgany ARE D& 1ALT BEL 7.73%, 701 2¥E7 LR
| et sossts atiributable ta NCI JTALT 636,558 2815248 Ty, bk 4,503 514 |
Czsh flewes irom cperating acineties 18.5% 15463 1IL 66T
Cash Mows used in Fvesing schiizs 13.154] f33a.Te0| 1,560, 2650
Cash Hows lused inlirom tmancing scirates [deadends b MCE Wil i!_?.'ﬁﬂ Eﬁj'ﬂ 1&51.‘5&
MNel sncroase/|decrasse! ah cagh and cash equnalent s 324 1974561 110 Bk
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ALL

HPar indeiduslly

CLF China imenEtarial
G Fund | LP Hoddco Broug subqidanes Toi;
LIS 00 (L] 8000 LSS 0 LS50
s
Results
Bevenue G 2T X578 532 05T 141,050
Frofd b (e year &0EY3 T 143 8150 182774
Cehér comprehenan income 45,608 E4011 {450,427
Totad eomprehendve neams [GE] &, T8l pil iR AT 192,734
Atribasahle to
= NI - - e kiki
Dvineprs of 1he Cormpany 1¥i5] TE. &Y 182774
Artributable to NCI:
= Proh bor ihe yaar 19163 LB, 140 187737 MEq3
[rher comprabin e moomes 19.693 13547 |vid 108) |20 44
- Tola corngerehanans iheome 18241 [ Ta4l% 10, 29

Assets and Lisbdlities.
MNan-currant assets
Current sosels

1,778 0t

T IS

2973151
0453

Todal assats

2005329 KL 515591 3 ZX.087
MNoga-current Labiltigs |&3T, 31 AL |24 51
Ciarrerd |rabiliwes |EBT BRI 11, 231,958 |47 410
Teaa! Lakabdtves (6259911 16, 228,391 |7,001.%28
MC - RS -

Mgl assats sitnbulaiie to eaners of 1he Lornpany

1,380,138

765 A0

PR

Net assets attributable to NCI

ZETRTR

TE0.53] & T2

Cash Rows Som operafing aciralios
Cashy fiows wsed in imaesding actonlies

Canth Aows [usad enbfTroe b

e Sctratves [drwdends 1o HCE Mill

i ]
\FETSATE

1ETa5TE

Met wnereaseldecreasel in oash ond cash equeaalents

5553
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19 LOANS AND BORROWINGS
et Lo ry
217 g 2y ikl
WSSO0 USET00 USE00 251

Non-gurrent labilities
Seoured hank loans
Secured bonds
Urisscenod bank Loar

Urisscisted bohds

16646 888 1,18
5. mz
7,184

078
1,768,458

1,364,954 |
4,294,708 3

1,E7F 504

Current liabilithes
Cecuirad bank losns
Ceoured honds

g bank Loans

123,504 Y]
175459
L48.340

538,807

400,000

P
408954

1,305,710

B3 P44

[al Secured and unsecured bank loans

[ Mt

bank loans are secured by mortgages on the bornowing s Hat el

5 invesiment properties with-a

i :"....; gul o Fccount the eliects of interast

CEFTYING amo

rate swaps! ranged from 0

unt of LISHE, 326,577

Groip

T
WSS TR0

o7
U5S000

R

5L 000

1411670
Fbb 382

FLER k]

354,105

1378052

11078

3570298

175078
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19 LOANS AND BORROWINGS COMNTINUED
[al Secured and unsecured bank loans continued

Aralysis of bank loans by geographic regions

7 Fl 7017

LSS LSS LHAA ]

[T 1.771.004 . 225,291 =
A L2395 166,744 2
are 775,078 1,106,734 775,078 1, 100,13
2570296 775,074 1,100, 1

= fully secured by investment praperties with carmying 2mounts of USHT 574,458 000 (201
I ARG NG ACCOUNT The ”.-_' il inteErest rale Wik |ra e 1T 1 1 TS0 vl

[Emiup Compamy
ik ans Frip )
USE 000 LSS 00 ULE000
175458 TERL
531002

il
e
=11

Alter | year 831,702 - - I
TOT.381 kil =

le]  Unsecured bonds

Lied

e Froup and the Company bear figed mizrest rates (taking into account the effects of interest rate swaps] ranging from 2.70% 10 388

(o Lormipny

=T
PSS )

T
UISE00

50,775
1,117,881
1,148,405
1,188,454

47,1713
1117681
1304 954

1,384 950
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19 LOANS AND BORROWINGS CONTINUED

[d] Capital securities

Capital secunties [Mate 14

daeemed on T Apnil

20 FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE LIABILITIES

ting to WSSE36 A0 (00 [S5750,000,000) issue
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TR g Vg g
3 Ry il Wl E

i
{1
P
o
[
-
(=1

the Company bear tixed interest rates o

Broup Lormoamy

I e
US§ 000 ]

Non=gurrent labilities
Farward loreugn exchange Contradt s

Inberest rabl s

Ciarrent ladbilithes

Forward gresgn eschanyg

Inkerest FEle S

TO13 A A4
10,547 14,591

17,580

qualty ¢ Sounterparties, Iorasan aXchange st and Porwar

21 OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

LARer taalie

.'..'". ip C e g
27 i My k]
LSS0 U550 e LY
152,034 - .
Ll 12,209 -

524
5470 s
L] 145 =

YR0L.905 165715 100 160
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22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

[=oup Camnipany
2017 e 7017 ]
LISE 000 LIS 000 USS0a) US§00
Trade payables B.08; ] =
Accrusd dewlopmant sxpenditure 429,290 4¥5,773 -
Acerued operaling eapense s B4 378 §Z2.240 20,102 Rk
Ackvafica renlal Fecaned 31,488 2224 -
Secunty depoid 4 récened 04,154 Fo.ET0 -
Arrigunts dus 16
- mbtithane [non- rede] - - Ll §37 181,43
- Joint venibures inondrade] 2081 203 -
- nah-contrelling inferests liradel 1815 L8 =
Loans from non-contrall mg wiereE s
= miereslfree 1.740 |8 Wi -
= wilirEE - b 31,5582 35753 -
Interest momble L1.30% 24623 29524 1858
Consdecaton wyvable for soguisien of asociale and subsdianes 147945 234 -
Conmdaration sapable lor soquisitsan of imvestment properies B3.458 Bon -
Deposas recened and acerued sxpenses for disposad of wwest ment propenies LUk b 5B i -
Other payables ST L0831 Ji634 kit
100960 1,005,798 28,657 T 1]

The non-trade amounts dus (o subsidiaries and joint ventures are unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on demand

The laans remm nohi-controlling interssts are unsecured and sre repayabls an demand, Tha intersst-bagring loans rom nan-controlling interests baar fi
interests cangng from &00% to 18 00% [2004: 4.35% to 10.00%] per annum

(fher payables relate principally to retention sums, advance payments recened and amounis payable in connsction with capital expenditure incurred

Interast payable melude USS1E 238 000 (2014 Mill accrued distribution an the capital securities [Mote 18]

23 EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS
GLP Share Plans

The Comparny currenily has share-based incentve plans, comprising the GLP Performange Share Plan [GLP PSP and the GLP Restricted Share Flan [7G1
RSP, togather with GLP PSP, herainaftér referred 10 53 the "GLP Share Plans’], wherely perdermance shares have been conditianally swarded 1o 11
emplevees of the Groyp, The GLF Share Plans are administersd by the Company’s Human Resourcs and Compensaticn Commitiee [the "HRCC ) com prisil
Dr, Seak Moes Huat, Dr. Dipak Chand Jain and Steven Lim Kok Hoong

The fair value of GLP PSP and GLP RSP & massured usmg Monte Carto simulation, Measurament inputs nelude 1he share pracs on grant date, sgpech
votatility [besed on an evaluation of the historic velatility of the Compamy's share price), expected term of the nstruments |besed on historical experience i
general aption holder behavior], expected dvdends, and the rizk-trea mtars2t rate (based on government bands). Service and non-market performan
Londitions aitached 1o the trangactions ane not taken inte-account in determining fair valus
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23 EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS CONTINUED

GLP Share Plans continued

GLP PSP

Thig relates ta compensabion costs of the GLP PSP reletting the benelits accruing to certan amployess of the Group Awards under the GLP PSP represent
the raght of & participant to recena fully paid shares free of charge, upon the achievement of prescribed performance conditians within the time pe
prescribed by the HRCC. Awards are released once the performancs conditons SpRG ified on the date on which the sward 500 be granted hive baen schievad
There iz novesting period beyond the performance achisvernent periods

Details of the share awards pnder the GLF FSP are as follows

27 F
'CE L]
g 0450 ER

Granbed danimg 18 yar 11,301 & AE
Vosted dunng tha yesr [2447) |2 894}
Batance 31 31 March 1%, 284 10,480

The fair valus of shares = determined using a Monte Carle simulation 21 the meagurement date which projects future share price assuming 3 log narmal
destrbution based on Geormatrie Browmian Mation Theory The falr value and sseumplons ane sa0 ot below

Groog
oar o A Flk e
‘Wesghrad sverage bar walue & measrement date 550.71-5%0.91 S81.31
Wotadility based on fhheeyede historical share price frorn grard dale 14.6T% - 15.08% J0s
‘Wesghted average share price 51 grant date S51.79-551.08 S840
Fisk-free interest rate equal te the imglied wald oh 2ero-coupon Singapore Govennnent Dord wath a e egual fo the Length of vesting penod 105% - 1.30% 1.30%

Expecied dadend veld 3.10% - 1.50% = 0,

GLP RSP

Thiz relates to compensation costs of the GLP RSP reflecting the benelits sccruing 1o certain employers of the Group and Direc if the Company over the
service period towhich the performance critena relate. Awards under the GLP RSP represent the right of 3 participant to receive fully paid shares free of

harge. Awards granted under the GLF RSP will be subject to westing periods but, unlike swarde granted under the performance share plan, will not be
subect 10 performance targets
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23 EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS CONTINUED
GLP Share Plans continued
GLP RSP continued

= dhoa i g
[etails of the share swards under the GLP RSP are as lollows

N
L]
12,638 LEL
16,8271
15701
16,775

future share price assuming & Log narm

27
due 5 ik durempnt Gule S$147-581.97
stoncal share price Irom arand date 24.51% - I06%
S§1.79 -582.08
{d an 2ero-coupon Sngapors Government bond witk 3 feem equat 1o the ienglh of vesing peried ha5% - 1.10%

3.01% - 3.40%

he Group recognized total expenses of USE166574 00002016, USE14 362, 000] related to equity settled share-based payment transactions duning the year

24 REVENUE

2017
55000

470,577
142,458
o 18,464
12,857
5178
B79.587 TIA;
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ilf&7

25 OTHER INCOME

il
U 0

e ;
s 2198 2313
CEbars 515 afg
7233 70

o7 AL
Hato USE 00 5800

¥4 G581
LEE 1349

z 1.7 13345

A har T .
19,903 32395

ot st ol bohds snd bark logn s (G782} 16, is)

bonds 73131 31,621)]
B L 74,743 5
T S AREH)
13394}
148 A T0) 117% i

L= outs capitalizad in mwestmenl properies i & 9EL i
Mt Borr [&%,184) o2l
Fire G [#2.807|

- ol inanoa denvalnes [?.2101 g

L ecognazed in profii or loss [FeEE ] 101

;--".:r- 0 B (T el 4 | Pl e e Peclinna sfoanies Cimnd b3 7 bbaecs 3007
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27 PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The following items have beenincluded inarrvang at profit belore tax
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G
1T g
US5000 LSS T
[al  Mon-operating income .
|LossliGain on disposal of i venture and subscanes [£31 3
Lo on dispo 23t of mvestment propees 1181 |
Gain on disposa of assdsand Ibndiies dawahod agheld or sale' 13,074 =
|LnssliGain on dsposal of plant s equipenant [Ficdl] {1,
Negative gaodell on scquistion of asonste, Jom veniures and subsndianes 1572 b
Orhers [&51 [
14,151 EE,O7
[b]  Staff costs included in other expenses
Wages and satanes [ncloding contrnbuteons to debned contnbution planed (88, 48] [k
Contrdtions (o defired contribution plans ([0 o B
Share-lased expenges, squily selibed .
- Directors [5.417] s, B
= Sall [11,275] 1953
18,6741 114,34
[e] Other expenses include:
[epreciabion of plant ard sgaiprment [10,8591 e
AmertizEtion of infangble Fssets and delermed mana gemend costs 13,308) 12,55
ReversalfiReccanimion] al impet e losses on irade nd caher reciashles I |4, %7
Dperating lease expense 10,6791 %18
Asset managament laes [2,9031 |1,70
Auche feea pad Ly
= Auditers of the Conpany [1,213] |15
- Othar auddors [3.648) 1359
Mee-auidl fees pard 1o
- Bucitors o the Campany 15731 147
= Other apddors {&031 i
Finaroa sanices - ood ol goods sold and oibers [18, %531 I7
[dl  Other infermation
Dpsrating sipenses anang from ireestment proparies that gensate rental income! 12381381 !23&'."5:

Wit

000 e T A O G P P e B U e 1 M U i P (e o) LRI DL 0 ety s Dk et il i A, i i 1L LS i PO it T

3 Db e e LY dgeriard LT b BB Pt b
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28 TAXEXPENSE

Groap
Foii) e
USE00 PSS T
1 51,807
Bglding taw pn farmign-Sourced encome 3z
Uridesmrmataon ol proe sy ta 402
75,345
Deferred tax
Crricaroalann 3nd reveres] of Lemporay ditlerences prih] i Y

195,704 30, 16

Reconciliation of expected to actual lax

Prafr befars Lo 1,347 55% 1,506575
Lets Share of resulls ol associates and joind ventures |283,1.20) 24077

Praofit befars share of resulrs of aisocabes arsd punt viriures and b éapanss 1,084 47%

sy Sanegapore 15e rate of 1% 1en.4é1
formign urisdactions k¥ x|
prchind B Fae [3.52-“

nidion of previgusly unee

oldhang B of lGrenif-srurced o
Uridirprovesson of pror yeses ba 02

Qiners 168
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29 EARNINGS PER SHARE

lal Basic earnings per share
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e asic earnings per sham for the years ended 31 Ma & were be t attributable inary sharshalders less a
{i5t s hokide A cagital securites frorm 1 Apr V& & ARl nts W
Continuing Diegenntraed
operekinre spomton Tat
U500 WES 00 U5
e
Bk st . B 790,853 2850 793,71
A i) Bre ol Gapilal o Ir Osle [2&,787) - 24,78
6L 065 1,680 Téb 71
Earmings par share bated on qhled eprade nenbes af ordinary shares in M, srerdsl 1&_15 ‘I]‘_I:ﬁ rﬁ-.?e
26
Proft atir d i ! 1R
Le T il 4] h [} il e [: :
Eammizs per share bysed on weghled sverage nomber of crdmany sharas i endsl 2] Fi- 14

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Bl Bl har

017 Hi
o X

b8 aL- Shafe Fians.

743,658 5Bt
57,0741
5984

& 478578 G, TE
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29 EARNINGS PER SHARE CONTINUED
Ib) Diluted earnings per share

h filided agrn tor the yaar Mz 27 and 20 dimary share {e SIS i
destribut N o 1 arities |f Réclazsificat
G
[+ o D i
‘eperatiors operataan Tatal
US5000 USS 000

manE

Lasg Accruied diarbutian 16 holders of captial ascunh 2 |iram 1 Apnd 2004 to Reclassbeation Date] 26,7871 - [24,78%]

TEL 06T 1540 TEb.5E9

Earnngs per share | 1 on hally dibut ed basis s LS cents| 18,14 004 15,22
&

Profit altriutable 1o ordingry sharshold 5010 19083

L ALER 1r A1 Frpde Lk [#8.bas

35 011 ER0ANT

Ezrmengs per share based o0 hully dbuted basss lin S centsl 1343 075 TR

Weighted average number of ordinary shares [diluted)

2067 Fial [

gt Lot
4,658,578 o, £
0402 18037
L7 0 B 335
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30 NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

The primary reason for the Group's acquisitions of subsidiaries is fo edpand its portholio of investment properties. At the time of scquisition, the Gro)
considers whether each acquisition represents the acquesition of 3 business or the acquisition of an ass21. The Group accounts foran acquisition 253 busines
combination where an infegrated set of actvities s acquired in addition 1o the property, Typically, the Broup assesses the acquistionas a purchase of busine
when the strategic manzagement function and the associated processes were purchased slong with the underlying propertes

lal  Acquisition of subsidiaries

The primary reason for the Group's acquisitions of subsidraries i5 10 expand its portfolio of investment properties in different geographical lecations

[i} The list of subsidiaries acguired during the year ended 31 March 2017 is as follows

Expui

Indere

U

Hame of subsidisries Date souired !
Mrshing Ho5 Nelwork bndustry Development Litnd #d June A1e E
Marishang Mo 7 Metwork incastry Devebopment Limded June H 18 3
Uni-top Faation Lagisics [Wual Ca |, Lid Jung A6 3
Lini-top fastion Logistics Dientang] Ga, Lid June H18 3
Bajireg Youshan Hengrong ¥arondg Inve sirnent Managernent Limited Partnership June 216 E
Basjing Youshan Hengrong Shengyue Investment Management Limsted Parmership June 2016 E
Baodeyang Technology [Bejng| Co., Lid July 2018 10
Mrghang Wo.3 Mitwork Evdusry Devlopment Limd ed Septernbar 20146 §
Mirishang [Narning| Intermnet of Thirgs Technology Development Co, Lid Septernber 2018 E
Guimgrhou Putu Wirshousng Sernce Co, Lid Janiesey 3017 F
Fupan Fetetong Cold Chain Lo stecs G, Lid January 2017 10
Shanghai bnga frvestmant Ca Lad Feabruary 2017 10
Kignshan Oifa Supply Chain Manggement Co., Lid March 2017 11
Lenith Stone rvestment Limiled March 2017 i
‘Wyhan Gaogan Lirch Legistics Ga, Lid March 2017 10
Datan Metuo Nenwork Technology Co_ Lid March 017 10
Jangzy Mashia Legistics Co., Lig March 2017 7
Siaman Thoogma Supply Chan Managemen! Co., Lid March 2017 y
GLP-MC Tianpn Logistics Propeny Dewlopment Limied March 2017 i
Tiargh Puling Warehousing Senace Co, L1d March 2017 i
GLP-MC Wishan Lopstics Property Development Pie Lid March 2017 10
Wuban Fuling Wareksusing Sénees Co., Lid Mareh 2017 i
CLH Changgng Logistics Propeny Limited March 2017 10
Chongpng Pugng Warehousing Servce Co , Lid March 2017 10
March 2017 II;!

Yeshumn LogiRes Specal Pumos Company
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30 NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS CONTINUED
lal  Acquisition of subsidiaries continued
Effects of acquisitions

The cash How and the net assats of subsidianes scquired dunng the year ended 31 March 2017 are provided below

Recogrized volues an soquisiion

U5 000

Invesarmant propertes 256,102
Inkarigibie asses 2T
AssoriEes 12,812
Detnrred 13 assets 1,400
iher assels Rl
Trage and othar recenabies ]
Cash and cash equralenls 835
Trade ahd cther payalbles |53,455
Cueren 15 plyaiile 353
Delerred 1z liaksldties 14,304
M- tond retlidg s 118, 25
Ned assets soquired TA%
Megeane goadwel] on acguestion ol subsidanss 1350038
Total purchase consrdaralion Iikh-ral ]
Purchass conmderaion paablo ERALE
Paud by crmpng amounid ol prowoushy hald ey onlpras DHAIE
Purchase conmderation sateshod in cash V580770
Carshyal submdang s S BavG
FPurekase conptermlion miwbad in chsh in relalion e wibadsees SEqurad (b pROF yise |54, 6800
Cash autllow on acquisilon of cubeidiaries [F26;358]

The total related acquisition costs for the abowe-mentioned subsidizries amounted to US$313.821,000 From the dates of acquisitions 1o 31 March 2017, the
abéve-mentioned acquizitions contributed net loss of USH2 568 000 1o the Group's results for the year, before accounting for financing costs attributable to
the scquisitions If the scquisifions had cccurred on 1 April 2014, management estimates that consolidated revenus would have been USERES 857 000 and
consobdatad profit for thie wear would have been USH1 047 317,000
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30 NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS CONTINUED
lal  Acquisition of subsidiaries continued
Effects of acquisitions continuad

[u] The

of subsidianes acquired duning the year endad 31 March 2015 is as follows

Equl

intere

O

Name of sbsidiares Dats sguined :
Fashar Puteng Logalics Faokties Co, Lid Aanl 2015 [
T [ [Hong Mang| Technol ooy Lsmided Jyby 2015 I
Ihonihal [MNargeng| Cuntain Wall Technology Co, L1d July 2015 10
Shanghm Hag Dewgn Co., Lid July 2015 I
Heanazhou Lirpu Supply Chaen Managemént Go., Lid Augua 215 10
Fun Shan Chian Shi Pholtosledne Techn ology So, Lid Septernbar 2015 10
GLP Wihs Puhua Logshics Facilitees o, Lid Ociober 2015 K
Mnshang No: 1 Network indusiry Development Limaed Movember 2015 ¥
tmshang (Wuband internet of Thangs ‘:.e:hn-:,:n:u_j'.- Dewmlcpment Ga., Lid Mowermbar 2015 |
Minshang Mo, Nebeork Endustry Development Limded Rewembar 2015 |
Mrshang [Changshul It ernal af Things Technelegy Development Co., Lid Mowetribar 2015 5
Yurneii spond Lopacd Faaldies G, Lid [lecerr 554
Guahou Pugran Multimedsl Transportation Co., Lid [eceerbar 2015 !
2 P-MT Shényang Lagaics Property Densloprnent Fle. Lid [Dececnbar 215 §
GLP-MC Mantong Legises Property Developrnent Ple Lid Decernber 2015 E
GLP Kunshan Rishang Logshics Co,, Lid March 214 54,3
Changhun GMT Inlerrabonal Logistic e, Lid March 2014 I
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30 NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS CONTINUED

lal  Acquisition of subsidiaries continued

Effects of acquisiticns continusd

The cash Mow and the net assets of subssdianes scquired dunng the year ended 31 March 20156 are provded below

Roagrited vilurs on soquindion

U500

InyiRmont propertias LA
Intargible assats 162

Dedmrried tan asssts

Chhar nszels

Flarit and equpmant

Trade and cther recenabies

Cash and cawh #quvalens

Trade and olher payvables

Currend tax payshble

[Deaterred i Dabelnies

M-t erels

MNet aFsed s acqurnd

Psgatie gacdiell ar aeaursdinh 8] whaibsned

Tota! gnirchiase considerstion

Purchase conmtderation payable

Pand by carmang amound of provoy sty held sgui v nteres
Purchase consderation salishied in cash

Cash of smubsdanes acquned

Purchase consderation sabished in cazh in redabion t o subadanes st quced in pror yoar |24 A5

Cash outflow oh scquimition of subsidisries 217 B4R

ed acquisition costs for the above-mentionad subsidianes amounted to USS2E8,408 000 From the dates of acquisttions to 31 March 2014, the
ed acquisitions contributed net profit of US$Y, 585,000 to the Group's results for the yesr, belore accounting for financing costs attnibutabls to
mitions. If the scquistions had occurred on 1 Aperd 2015, management estimates hal consolidated revenue would have been USE71,342 000 and
el profit for e r would have bian USH 065,563,000

Thie totsl rels
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30 NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS CONTINUED
[b] Disposal of subsidiaries
[l There is no disposal of subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March 2017

[ii] The list of subsidianes disposad dunng the yéar ended 31 March 2004 15 a¢ follows:

Equi
indere
Db |

Mamme of wilsidiases disposee """':

Som Tem Logistic Speaal Purpose Compaiy (L a Sheodome Sevenieen Logrhe Special Purppse Cefnpar! Oetabar 2115 11

GLP Japan DH? Specnl Purpase Corrpany Lk a-Shigdome [18 Logiste Spetasl Purpose Cormgany| Fabruary 215 I

FLP Sapan DHY Pie Lid. |Eka Shiodormn 1151 Logistic Pta Lid ] Fabmiary 2016 II,':

Effects of disposals

The cagh flows and the net ascets of subsdmnes dizposed dunng the year ended 31 March 200 5 are provided balow

Arcognized wiues ond I

Temde and olhar recenatios

Csh and chih #guenilénla |
Trade and alkiar pavadles |3
Mt keatilitay disposmd III
(mir an deaposal ol suhodanes 3
[isposal conmderation ;
Cash of subsidanes disposed Il
Cash inflow on disposals of subsidiaries !

From 1 April 2015 to the date of despasal, the above subsidizries contributed net loss of US$30,000 to the Group's results for the year The subsidiaries did n
raored any rivvenue during the period

lc]  Disposal of assets and liabilities classified as held for sale

[il Destasls of the disposal of assets and abilities classitied as held for s3le dunng the year ended 31 March 2017 are as loliows

Az at 31 March 2008, assets classified as held for sale primarily comprised 100% equity ierest in GLP US Income Pariners Il acquired on & Rovember 20
which the Group intended to syndicate within 12 months from date of acquisition. The syndication of 0.15% equity interest was completed on 7 Septemb
2016 for an aggregate consideration of USS1 785,000,000 and the Group recognized gain on disposal of assets classilied as held forzale of US$3,730,000. T
FEmaning 9.85% equily inbefest retained was reclassihed as investrment in agsadiata

Durmg the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group recetved final procesds of USHS3,487 000 m relation 1o the sale of the 44 85% equity interest n GLP L
Income Fartnzrs |, and recognized additional gain on disposal of assals classified as hald for =3l of USEHL 364,000
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30 NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS CONTINUED
lc]  Disposal of assets and liabilities classified as held for sale continued
il b 5 ol the disposal of assets and babilties classilied as held tor sale during the vear ended 31 March 2017 are as follows: continued
Effects of disposals
The cash tlows relating to assels and Liabalities claseifed 3= hald for 2ale disposed during the year endad 31 March 2017 are providad balow
Bec walpes on d L

GLP U5 Ingorrer Parna ra I

nyvesrmant propertes
Jomt venlure

Plant and equipmer
Trarde and ¢

r reconables
Cash and cash equivalants
Cehar assets

Tradsr and aibier panyatles

and borrosang

(A kar non -Current |

& ok bl
17058
ST
4118
Tk 48
12889
145 975
|2.809, 254)

173,568

Nt assels dispoand

feredd rebned &5 ihvesment i SESOC0le

Equsdy

Redasabed ioloans 1o assacate

Gam on dusposl ol sssets and liabildies classlied a5 hold lor sale

Excass consdn T nel Esatn

an'

50 iabts i

Cash wnflioe o i

1ers H dasmhod G5 hald lor s

Viggk

1T dstdon of arnsderston ovest st oty diujomed S ol baen neoa nitvd e gl On RGOl i B dk(ons] S ni o v fof e Sri kel 5o 37 b 007

TP US Incorre Partners |

Recognized valees on disposal
USS000

58485
|54, 1451

Tatal cash inflow on disposal of assets and liabilities classified as held fcr sale
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30 NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS CONTINUED

lc) Disposal of assets and liabilities classified as held for sale continued

] Details of the disposal of assets and liabilities classified as held for sales during the year ended 31 March 2015 are as follows

AL 3T March 2015, assats classifed as held for sale pnmanly compriged £500% equity interest in GLP US Income Partners | acquired on 26 Fabrgary 20
which the Group intended to syndicate within 12 manths from date of soquisition. The syndicstion was completed on 26 Dotober 2015 for 3 considaration
USE1 524 145,000 and recoqriazed gain on disposal of assels classified as held for sate of USE54, 145,000

Dwring the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group reclassified investment properties and subsidiary companies jocomprising Magareyama One Logestic Spedi
Purpose Compary, Magareyama Two Legistic Special Purpese Company and MNagareyama Three Logistic Special Purpose Companyl to asseds and Labsliti
classitiod a5 held for sale following the imtation of active programmes 1o dispose them The disposals wam all completed dunng the year for an agarega
consideration of USH117 785,000 and recognized gain on disposal of 355612 and labiities classshed as hald for sale of USE124 000

Effects of disposals

The cash fows ralating to assets and babilites clazsdred 3¢ held lor 2ale disposed dunng theyear ended 31 March 2005 are prowded below

Recognized wiees on dispos
L
Invesiment properties 152,
Jamt venlure 1,20 34
Temde Bnhd alher rechnabled 284
Cash and cash equealonts 968
Loan retieables 1979 45
Trade and olher payablis it
Logns and barrcwings fd [
Net assals daposed 1,557 44
nopn ok of gres z AR oL
[ispasal consderstion 1,641
[hspossl conmdaration recenatle 54,14
Lash of subsideries disposed [EALL
Eash inflow an dizposals of assets and Lk - 3 Tor TE7

The Group has four reportable segmenis, representing its operations m the PRC, lapar, US and Brazil, which are managed separately due to the differe
geographical locations. The Group's CODM review Internal management reports on these segments oh & guarterly basis, a1 a minimum, for strateg
decisions making, performance assessment and resources allocation purposes

Performance of sach reportable ssgment s messured based on segment revenue and segment earmings belore nat inferes! expense, ax eigense, ai
excluding changas in fair value of investmen? properties hald by subsidiares, assocates and jnt ventures [netof tax] CEBIT excluding revaluation™| EB
excluding revaluation is used to measure performance as mansgement believes that such information i the most relevant in evaluating the results of the:
segments relative to other entities that operate within the logistics industry. Segment ass=ts and lisbilities are presented net of inter-segment balances
Segment resulls mcluds items directly sltnbutable 1o 5 sagment 55 well a5 those that can be allocated on & reasonable basis There aré ma ransactior
batwaen reportable segments

Segment assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to 2 segment as well a5 thosa that can be sllocated on a reasonable basis
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31 OPERATING SEGMENTS CONTINUED

Intarmation regarding the Broup’s reportable segments is presented in the tables betow

Infermation about reportable segments

PRE fapan U Eradil Ottwns Tetnl

m7 il 7 20l FIE e il b Pl il T e

Eroup USS000 LSS0 LSS 00 [ g USS000 LESE 00 U500 LSS (0 LS5 000 [ ey LSS 00 ]
Continuing operations
Revenue and expenses

External reverus Sa6386 Sh0ds 20836 1Taa% T o9 | 10,709 B.ET

[}
o
[
i
i
-
b |
¥
]
K

Changessn e vatue of mestment

propertses held by Subsedianes £55428 E2AN 137,348 a7 a2 - 2,179 = THEITD THE AR

Snare of changes i farvs
MYREMEnt Droperises
Irsit @l v Field Bry st s

and ont winlures 13985 ISAE WM 1SLIYE 4R0%0 FE54 TRO7S r.787] - - 19SHE) ITAETS
Mot fingnce [ceslincome f3rwd imwman sl s 512 11914 Tik (1] HS87E)  (S1°0E)  [223a00) 355

T gmpd s [258,122]  [955.4400 (25822 IR [8,578) 32,613) 11.538] 11379] 11,428 [3,198)  [295704) [309 748

ProbifiLoss] frgm eohbineng operahons L1412 FIEEY 373,134 F1E. ¥ ¥9.433 L L0, T26 1456 (1220840 |11 3450 1,051,895
= F - : &473 300 - - = Y

Profe (rorm drscnnd inusd op erstion

Proffloks afer s GAOASE  TOE YT 3313 G167V 103,506 LAk £0.736 145 [nanesl 11013451 1056368 1002817

EBIT 1035919 1 003 A0 AT ALARTE 107857 170,450 41,528 e 134, 544) 34,260 1,580,337 1AW 5T
EBIT eweludirsg revalustion 354,524 HH50 197,500 153,625 58,547 LA0LASS 20,372 15 134, 544| 154, 24% 568,303 S0 TS
Proht annbiutabds 1o

- [hwmrirs of the Corpany | PATMI IMAIE IEEE IR 3157R0 0k R L0734 TASS  [h220osdl 1013450 PRRTE
- M W03 3ET - - 1614 . - . - - Wi

Jing revaluakion L LLT 1140650 157,805 1 29.509 53,202 BF 487 20,223 7243 (9220641 11 345 205423 LR

PET M el
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31 OPERATING SEGMENTS CONTINUED
Information about reportable segments continued

o
7 e o7
oD USS000 LS5 USS000
Anselsand labilities
Invezarment propertied 124065681 1) 040495 159048 1963680 46,732 MY = 14702578 1002417

LS Braxi frars
W7 EnT i
Us5000 P55 000 USS T

USS000 LSET USST00

Asspcles and jont veniures LT3 MTRLL IO THLEEZ  EahdE WLMT  GETORE AFTEL - - LABLIOR  1VELAS

Other segrment assets I3E0151 2 8h0VE 136006 ERREED  PESA1E  S0145R 16,491 Bakd 7R 5878 &575476 G151 1S

Fraporiable segrmanl assols 15284025

IFTEB0  3541END 1SR MG RETR3 TTITik B0 189 176,521

E 21757755 1L :

Lty ahd borrowandgs PLRET T2l IR [1,131,346)  (B49.5E0] - = [Z4B034Z] (24771680 [S,5%9418] (477040

Lhaet Segraant liakldied [2,167,5%%] (1592515 12094010 [1267,005]  [4£9,7EE) (Z2901,083 f33.01] I6.283 |65, 74| [59.304) [294584T) |5 1985

Reportable segment lishilities [ 38 331] 131486200 (1,340, 765) 11,137, 0551 (69,7681 129070831 [33.401) I5.7830 (28656201 77544700 [8,544 845 (7948 7

Dther nformmation
Dipprecrstion snd amorizticn [£473 5.50M ([N k] 3304 (1600 - I3l |57 16,5731 7,358 agrrl 1117

Iraeresd mceire £EN R 1 9512 11,914 531 m ip2a 2HTY 19,903 ¥

NCTs share of EBITOW excluding

revalusfion!

163022 145433 - - R - - - - - WEME 154

-

Cagsts upanddyre! 10921483 1A0H25F A0S F00 151,758 20,681 B2 5y il

g

| 1AE5E72 156 ad

Ticebary
1 EEETI rpter o EENT wetLued i depisc i hion and amodicahon
7 Capetal aopand Sune e S0quman, barmowns a0t Bnd devsopesnt orpana San of avestran progent R ol Sogu i on ol pint s rd equpment
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Eroup has egposure to the follewing risks from its use of financial instruments

= credt risk
®  |iguidhiby risk
= markst nsk

This mote presents infarmation abowt the Group's exposure to each of the shove risks, the Group's objectives, policies and processes for measuning and
managing risk, and the Broup's managernant of capital Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout thess financiol statements

lal Risk management framework
The Group has a system of controls in place 1o credte an acceptable balanoe between the costs of risks occurring and the cost of managing the risks. Risk
management policies and guidelines are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in markst conditions and the Group's activitees

The Audit Committes [JACT], which reports to the Beard of Directors, is charged with oversesing risk management practices and, in conjuncticn with the
Imternal Audit Dapartment, saeks 1o dentify ameas of concern and implament plans to mitigate significant rsks to the Company GLP's Management Risk
Committae | MRC"] consists of senior stakeholders in the Company. The Committes regularly reviews, assesses and monitors various risk factors. The MRC
also guides management in forming policies and processes 1o dentify, evaluate and manage risks and to safeguard shareholders’ interests and Company
azsete The Risk Management Department assists the MRC by coordinating GLF's Enterprige Risk Mansgement programme scross the Group and provding
quarterly updates and feedback directly to the AC

(bl  Credit risk

Cradit fisk os the ek of hnancial loss resulling from the faldure of a customer of counterparty to maeet 18 contiactual ebligations. Financial transachions g
restnicted to counterparties that mest sppropriate credit criteria that are approved by the Group and are being reviewed on a regular basis In respact of trade
recenables, the Group has guidelines governing the pracess of granting credit 2nd cutstanding balances are monitored on 2n angoing basis Cancentration
of credit risk relating to trade recenables is limited duee to the Group's many vaned customers. These customers are engaged m 2 wide spetirum of aclivities
and aperate in 3 vanely of markats

Exposure to credil risk
The carnang amount of finaneial assets represents the maximum cradit sxposure. The mamimum scposurs 1o credit nisk 3t the reporting date was

Broup Cortgarny
T T F ik
LSS0 LSS K USE00 =8 000
Laans snd recervablies indh-curmnt and current| TILAD 583 EDS 1757, 180 24T
Cmah and cash equnalania 1,210,540 1024 543 102,577 42750
1,982,350 1608 34% 1.B5% 757 [l
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT COMTINUED
[b] Credit risk continued
?:npnsurt to credit risk -

he manmum exposure to credd nsk for hinancal asats at the reporting dale by geographic regeon 15 as ollows

rued

et Ly

07 A 2017

USE 00 USE0 UES)

PR 1,272,602

Japan 0980 ]

SirFapore 157.038 107,064 1559, 157 1,284.91
149,220 [rof: <l -
13.478 5238 -

1582350 1, 408 349 1,659,757 1,284, 9

lc)  Liquidity risk

L|i|-.||,!||'\_\.- risk 1= the rsk that

inancel obligations as 5 delil ratursty profil
vaila bility of funding so 3 sure that all refinancing, ne
amed adequate by mans nit to meet the Group's wo

yvaslable banking Racilities at 3 reascnable level o ks evarall debi posa

thigy Fall dhue The Group sctivedy manages o
and funding neads met. The G
ing capital requirement |n addition, the

G4

JIp MEMmiFns &

up shrves I masnia

ras possible, the Group will rmise meadium and long-term funding from both capital markets and finencial institutions and prudently balance itz portiol

cost effectwen

redit and loan facilities amounting to USEZ 452 203,000 (201 4: USH2 537 355.000), of which USS&3L, 750,01

litigs

re cormmitied cradit f
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED
el Liguidity risk continued

The following aré the contractual maturities of hinancial Ebilities, mcluding mterest payments and excluding the impact of netting agreements

Cori® I
Canrying Camrahag] “Within Fram Altar
aimaunt cash Hows 1 yenr 110 Syears Syears
Cup WEE D LSS0 WSS 00 USS 00 USFI00
2017
Mon-derivative financial liabilities
Bk leding 2.970,294 3,357 80% 479,912 1.44T S48 030,351
Benids 209215 2517476 2m,ma Fa,795 1,289,583
tamtal setunhes 536,607 il B3T.092 - -
Trade and oiher payables' 1,154,730 1195563 1030,54% 116,48 oy e}
6,796,148 7610560 14734 E.'?-ﬁ.ﬂ!- 1,359 564
Darhmtive financial LiabAithes:
Forward formgn eechange contract s | gross-satiled| 7.013
Cutfiow 5FATH 1643 5T.A35 -
LT 52,4341 [zmz) [S0.422) -
Intarest rale Sean s (e -settladl 19,792 20515 5.5 14,275 &04
4,820,953 7.838,13F 2 AEG 916 2,794,223 2,359,570

wms
Hon-derivative inancial labilities
Bank loans

Bonds

PETOSD
2100 554

Tradge and clher payables

Desivative inancial Liabdlities

Forwatd loregn ecchangs contracrs igross-seisd) st

- Outlow

- Inefiomwr e -

Inrarest rale Semp s [net-setlled .10 22440 1880
5 573 550 L ITTAM Z419 102

Wb

1 Euluden ifvince rerdal recaiaed
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le]l  Liguidity risk continued
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Cae o .
Carrying Contractus Within Fram Al
amount coshflorws 1year 1 1o 5 yoars Syea
Comgany LSS 00 LSS0 155 000 [y LSS0
017
Nan-derivative Brancisl labilities
Bank boans TSR a1z 71,234 380,714 260,34
Birds 1,148,456 1555794 LA 221,099 1,259 58
Capstal smcurities 536807 SaT 297 2a7.292 -
Trzide and oihar paysdles PB.TRR e 8609 100 ;
LETRL0 J00L1HF 51437 s02.215 1,650,354
Derprative linancial labslities
Forwand foreign exchange comrads lgress-setibed| Tm3
Tt e EeLTR 1443 57,835
Infleead {52434} [2m2l 50,4221
Interest raln saaps Inel-salibed) 10,547 10,238 2450 7,182 &0
1596720 20048 TELIN 414,810 1.6W.75|
Fiiil ]
Man-dertvative financial liahilities
Bank loans 1,100,155 1,145,158

Benids 157708 LT 274 T 587
Trmde and alhar peyahlss 212078 100
34BN [hife”
Derivative financial labilities
Fo o fergign exchange contrad s ipmss-setiled| 2k, 220
Dt L3705 B2 479
- Indleaw 7l 154 468]
Intarest rala Saapes el -saliled) 156.3% 239 1113 1.33
2.538.055 11 EATS &2 43T 1,470 8¢
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED

Id] Market risk continued

Currency risk

The Group operatas manty in the PRC, tapan, US and Brazil. Othar than the respective lunclional currency of the Group's subsidianas, the loreign currency
which the Group has exposune to 8 the reporting date i the US Doltsr

The Group maintains @ natural hedge, wherever possible, by borrowing in the curmency of the country inwhich the imvestment & located Foreign exchangs
exposures in transactionsl cumencies other than the tunctional curmencies of the operating entitiés are kept 10 an acceptable level

The Group alse monitars any surplus cash held in currencies othar than the functional curmency of the mspective
meEsure th it M ERchan a8 FISK @NpOsine i change contracts 1o
nsk eposures in relation 1o is over

5, LU |

L

COmp

pnies and uses sensitivity analysis to
i &

stments n lormegn
rences arsing frof
d on & regular basis

lar I_-r|._:.-|e'|n rvesiment purp
translation differences are reviewed and mo

The Group's and Company's exposures o foreign currencies [financial assets and Lizbilties not denominated in the respectve entities functional currenciss]
¥% at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016 are 5z follows

United Stales Jupartpe Singapare Hang Kong Criness:
Dear fen Oallar Dullar Rarminks
Brup (] LSS TED LSS PSS 00 USS 000

m7

Fnancial sseets

Czvak andd cnsh squevslerls il kT 1509 ™ 1445 12

Trade and olher recanabies - 0343 1 44 &4,314

Homilabin-lor-=de fimanoal myesiments - = = 137 568 -
FII 21452 148 139099 54,308

Financial liabdities

Bank lgans [£11,550] [741.078] - - -
Bends - [133.535] = - [50,775]
Capatsl ssouirfaes - - {536,507 - -
Trade and olher payables 11.408,628] 139528 115.463) - 13,8221

12.020,178] [884.261] 15522701 - [54.5471

Nt financial Diabilitieslassets 11.720,564] [8a1,7E7] [LEr R Feil 139099 7731
Adid Forward [oremgn exchange contrmacts - - - - 5,715
Add Loxns déswgnal éd lor nel imesiment hedgs - BLE. TR -
Currency exposure of net financial |lisbilities]/assets 11.720,744] [ {552,122 137099 £0,504
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[dl Marketrisk continued
Currency risk continuad
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Gotup

Ryarwaa

LESE )

Singairu
Collar

LSS 0

Hary

4 King

Cholbar

15 )

2014
Financlal apsets

ind csh equesglants 7715 FAAT & g d
4T BSA (K| 159118
T84
" I.I' = £ :b’ ;\--{ lr! :-’_ I.'I | .- ]
Firuancial liabilities
Bk |oans &l FHY
Bonds =
Trade and other pavadl s e
18334
Met financial Niabil#ies]l/asseds AT 3 j 11,4571 T
A Forams L bt el CORERRCEE
el Lagns desgrlad lor mel svsdment b adne 31,687 N
Currency sxpos une of net finsnc ol [lisbititesl/aesets B ATT & 5310 15,937 LAk 1589
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED
Idl  Market risk continued
Currency risk continued

Japanese Lingopom CRinese
fen Bollar Renminks
Compary LSS p-g] L]
27
Fnnncial sssats
Cash and Gish equnalanits 1,508 Ll 12
Trads snd other recenables 1491 &9 59,478
3,199 [EX] 59,597
Fmancial llabilities
Banl leamns 7110 - -
Bruds 133638 - 150,775
Capatal securidgs - |53, BT -
Tradi and sthar paysbles 133.5281 (14,3801 17841
Laae 2411 [S51.187) [51,55%]
Met financial [labilities]/assets: faa1.042| |55 10540 B4R
Add Forwand loraigh exchanos oo = - 50,775
Cusrrency sxposure of net financial [lisbilites]/assats (R 042] EANET] 59,003
" Japgterta = .
o
Coamgany LiSE i
ML
Financial assets
Cash and cash equagleils 1 e V3 ig
Irade and other recessbles ES18 191, 188
in iee 134 121253
Financial liabdlities
Besnik lodins
Berids L& Ban
Tradé snd odher pavales [17al |31 144
(174l |§¥397%

Net financisl labilites GFER 5idl
Add: Forwshd loresgh exchinoe oohlracts -
Currency exposure of net linancial |liabilities)/avsets 975 Edal 52l
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED

[d]  Market risk continued

Sensitivity analysis

A 10% strengthening of US Dallar agamst the respectiee lunctional currencias of the subsidianes at the raporting date would have ncreased/Idecraase
profit before tax by the amounts shown below. The Group's outstanding forward foreign exchangs contracts have been included in this calculation T
an k|:§.|‘5i5 sasumes that sl etharvarmblas, in particulsr mierest rates, mmaln constant

Group Company |
FiE] EA 01T 0
LSS 000 LI5S T8 USS000 USE
LS Diollae! 72090 |B3 w43 -
Aapniess Ve 1.708 a8 B8, 104 w13
Singapore Dollsr 55,212 14 55,105
Hona Kang [iolla? [RER A1 %719 i51
Gharigse Renminbid 16.051) (15853 155201 I'Ia-'l]l

Viggand
1 AL COMaend 10 Tunctoaal carssncy of Feomin bl
2 A comared i hunctoaal carsency of LS Doilar

A 10% weakening of US Dollar against the respective Tunctionsl currencies of the subsidianes at the reporting date would have the equal but opposite eife
on the abowe currencies to the amaunts shown ghove, on the basis that atl ather varables remain constant

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk anses primanty from the inferest-eaming hinancial assets and mterest-bearing hnancisl Labilities

The Groug manages its interest rata sxposurs by maintaining a mix of fued and varsable rate borrewings. Whene necessary, the Group hedges a portion of |
intarast rate exposure withm the short to medsam term by useng interest rate derivatives

At March 2017, the Group and Company has imterest rate swaps with an aggregste notionat contract ameant of 551 331,972,000 [20146: USH1,366, 186,00
and USE714, 800,000 (20146: USEI0T 050,000} a5 cash flow hedges. Alter taking into account the etlects of the interest rate swaps, the Group and Compal
pays feed interest rates ranging from 0LE2% to 1 A0% [2014: 0 55% to 1 40%] 2nd 083% to 1.09% (2074 0.83% to 1 09%| per annum and recerves a vanab
rate equal to the Swap Offer Rate on the notional amounts. The aggregate fair value of interest rate swaps held by the Group and Company 25 8831 Man
2017 15 5 nat Lability of USSR 792000 (2014 ISE2Y1 21,0000 and LISEI0.56T 000 (200 6 USE14,397,000) which are designated as cash flow hadges

Curing the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2014, there was no ineffectveness of cash fiow hedges recognized in profit or loss
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED
|d] Market risk cont muad
Inturl-sl. rate risk continued

rterest-bearng fin

ancial babilihes [afte
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alang mla account the aelfacts ol the interest rate swaps| am as

=T Compiny
Principalf Frincipalf
notional Carrying raatigmal
Bmaunt aemaurnt ‘retaan] ameuant
LR TG W5 T VG500 VR

7
Fiooesd rate instrumesnts

Livainis 30l Birrawsanis

3361343 1380479 2,680,341 2,502 674

Varisbie rate instruments

Loans sl Bofroeangs

I, 267 L6T 1,265,296 - =

2015
Fixed rale instruments

Losma and borrosang u i 1 1422573 ETT AT 20T
Variable rale instruments
LOahns anill BHNTosings 1 &l &N | & BS e

Falr value unsilmt]r I.I'I!I'!.I'!.I!. for fixed rale instrumeants

rr any fixed rate linancial assets and I bili

ot pro I|_ or less

Eash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
change of 100 basis pol rates ot the r u'.ll""'.l"a

anglysis pssumes tha cularigreign

e im interesl o

elher vama

abies; in pa
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED
[dl  Market risk continued
Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments contmusd

o Company .
100 bp 10 bp 100 bp 001
Imcrease Decrease Incrame Decreas
WSS 000 USS 000 55 uss'm
017
Logns snd bormowing s 1225931 2483 - |
2014
Laans and Barreowmngs 116,153 14,152 - .
Other market price risk

Equity price risk arises from quoted available-for-sale equity securibes measured at fair value held by the Group, Management of the Group monitors i
equity securities in its imvestment portfolio besed on market indices Material imestments within the porifolw are managed on an individual bases and all b
and sell decizions are approved by the MEC

An e rersedec reage] in 5% of the squity price of svailable-dor-sale equity sacurites held by Ui Group at the reporting date would have increased{dec ress
fair value reserve by USS52.2 millon (2014 US$4%.3 million] This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular lorelgn currency mates, rema
canstant

le] Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

The dizclesures sat out m the tables below nclude hnancial 255013 and hinancial lsbilibes that

= areoffsel inthe Group's and Compamy's staterment of linancizl positien, or
+ gre subject to an enforceable master nething arrengement, irrespactivg of whether they are offset in the statement of inancial pesition

Financial instruments such as trade recenvables and trade payables are not disclesed in the 1ables below unlass thay are offsst in the statement of financi
posttion

The Group's dervadne transactions that are not irensacted on an sxchange are-entered into under Internations| Swaps and Dervatives Associafion [ISE
Master MNetting Agreements. In general, under such agreements, the amounts owed by each counterparty that are due on 3 single day In sespect of ;
trangactions n-n;mndmg n thé sameé curmancy under the agrasment are agaregatad inte 3 f-l-'l-':_ﬁl.'i' mat amount baing IIG',?bl'? by one party 1o the othor
certain circumstances, lor eample when a credit event such a5 & cefaull ecours, il outstanding trangactiong under the sgreement are terminated, 1
terminateon velue - assessed and only & single net amount i dus or peyable in settlement of all transactions

The abowe 1SOA agreements do not mest the cmeria lor offsething in the staternent of hinancesl posetion. This s because they create 3 nght of set-aff
recognized amaunks that is enforceable only following an event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or the counterparties, In addition, the Grol
and its counterparties do not infend to settle on 3 net basis or lo realize the assets and settle the babilties simultanecusiy
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED
lel Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities continued
Financial assets and financial liabilities subject to offselting and enforceable master netling arrangemenis
Gross ameeanils of recopnized Met emesants of lnancial
Gross srnounis of Hrancial assetsS Risbiibes | oaseinf |labilies] Relaied amounss not
recognized francial offszt in the statement of presented in the statermant offset in the stalement of
st [Dabiliies) linancinl positisn of firancial pastion. finamgial pesitan Met ameunt
g PS5 00y LSS0 LSS 000 USE D0 WSS 00
27
Financial liabilities
Feremnd laragn exchangs coniraas 7013 - 013l - 7013
Intgrest rabs g3 [19, 7321 = 97921 - (19,732
[26 805 - 125805] = [ 28,8051
&
Fmancial liabilities
Farward Bregn archane condrac |2, 231
Intire st rald SvEns (24124
- 153341
Giroset arresants of msognired Het pengiants of linancial
Grmss ameants of irsancial agssts/ flishilites] mssetsd llanidites] Relied amaunts ned
recagnized Brancial oMsatinthe sbaternerf ol presented in the stabornant alaert in the Matement of
amsetsd [Gabilities) Financiial posiben of Firancial pesition firamcial position Het ameant
Loumpdny US5000 USSR USE 00 USS 00 YS5P00
27
Financial labilities
Forward lorgign michangs cortracts 703 - [7013) - 7ma
IntEresl rald WanE [10,557] - 110,5&7] - [10,567]
[17. 5800 - |17,580| - [V7 580
2018
Financial liabilities
Feremrd kereign exchanga confracs |28, 2200
Interesi rats SAEp S |43
ENIEH
The grass amounts of fmancial sssets and linancal labib stalement of fimanceal positan that are disclesed in

the above tsbles are measured in the statement

- Finn

yasition at fair vl
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33 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
lal  Accounting classifications and fair values

The carmying amounts and fair values of himancial assets and babilibes, including their levals in the fair valus hierarchy, are as ollows Itdoes not include fz
value information for financial assets and financial habilities not messdred ot mrvalue f the carmng amount 15 5 reascnable approadimation of fair valu

CRrrneg il Far valus
Fair value Other Taksd
- hedging \Lgeres g derallokle finansial Eafrying
imStrumre ks recewables farasale listilibes BT Level 1 Lewel 2 Lesel ] Toh
Gl Nl USS00 L5500 LSS0 LSS000 USS000 UsS£000 USE 000 USST00 S5
am7
Hormilabile dor-sale bnancol imesimaent s 10 = - 1,140 597 - 1,150,507 1064 BRE - 115mM1 1,180,558
thee noo-curment o " - 18,574 = = 206,504 - - PRl iy 228,83
Tesds and otkiar recenatiss 12 - 555,134 - - 555,234
Carshy snd cash s 14 - 1,210,540 - - 1,210,540
= igazas 116057 = 304284
uresd bk laans 1% - - - nre0edl L0072 - [1,790,7%2 - [1,790.7%
Secured bonds 1% - - - [ 2611 (307 361] - ™07 3811 - Iy 34
nsacured bank loans (&) = = = 117,504 17,779,504 - [1,17% 504) - [1,179.50
Lnsacused bonds 1% - - - 13me954]  [1.380954) - {1,374, 1541 - 01,378,15
Capstal 4 4 k] - - - [536,807] (534,807 - 1538 8071 - 524,80
Faramnd gf énclsange conrects 20 [7.m31 - - - ek - 213l - 7.m
Interest rale saaps Fal. 19,7921 - - - 117.772] - [19.792 - [19.79
i Aof-currenl labises P - - - [145.435] [145,435) - - {153,001 [ 158,00
Temie and other peyables? i - - - NS sl
[26,E805] - - 16,794,048 |&800.953

Tt
1 Exdiodes pospaymanss 4 daferme] rRnagemest cost
I Eniodes otfer FERess 3nd prepay e

Enciodes slvince rerial receives]
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33 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CONTINUED
lal  Accounting classifications and fair values continued
Larying -u'-_-." T‘I'ru -
L Lirve Ll 3 T
b [TEs Jun s R pi] LSO LSE TG
io 1015887 SEERE T2 LBISEET
i kil 1,121
':‘ | e AT
3 11,6371, 06&]
0w - :
] [ 155, 324) - - [14% 824 (147 423

Traike and olher pavales’

Vit
1 E it prepe

£ Hadem Sibvirce
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33 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CONTINUED

lal Accounting classifications and fair values continued
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Carrpng anmius Fair vlue
Faar walue Gthar Total
- Betddging Leans and firangial earryg
instruments roce peablbes Teabililics frmicea Lewelt Leveld Laval 3 TeA
Company Hoto LSS0 USS 000 WSS USSD00 USEH LSS T USSTHED LSS
] '
Trade and glhér recenabies 13 - 1,757, 10 - 1,757,180
Caah and cash squeval 14 - 102,577 - 102,577
= e FETR
] - - ITr5.0T8) [775,078] - [r75.078] - (775,07
% - - 11,168,456  [11,758434] - 11.157.5%81 - [1,157 45
k] - - 1526807 [534,807] - [53£.807] - 534 80
Fui [7013] - - 7.013] = 70031 - frm
20 110,57) - - (10,5471 - (105471 - 110,54
(ther nom-current babdilves 21 - - [1m0d ool - - f1oa| [
Trade amd other payables - - [58.6731 [78,677]
117,501 - [2,5m9.0400 (25947201
FiidF
Trade 2nd alher recensbins! 12 1244177
& %2750
| 1284907
19 11,100, 154] 1,100,193
k] (1,638, 084) 11,460,068
A0 - ey - Lty
i (R{e]] 110

224111

Hinte
1 Enilden prapamar
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33 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CONTINUED

Ib]
1

Level 3 fair value measurements

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value
econciliation from the
fingnz
] Waluation techrugues and significant unobservable nputs

Tha foilowing tablas

baginning balance to the
il Instruments are presanted in Mate 4 and Mote 10

r Leviel 3 Bir valye measyreme

shoiw the valuathon technigues used i measuring Lavel 2and Level 3

Financial instruments measured at fair value

mtg for investmean] properlies

fair values, as well a5 the signif

and available-for

ant unobservable Inputs used

Molustion techn igus

Serallable-lor-sfe hnanoal mvesimants

fat st vl The fair valy

Pld By th sriE (o ST
waluars The tair walues of the properties

cf ch

garon and resdumd Sppm

The sssets

Fraarcesl defeasive el fements Marksd compgneon fecinsues This
UCERS retiEc] fhed izl fransscons im srdar insgrumenis

- Interesi rabe swesg

- Faramnd loreign exchange contracts

al e ae haded on Broker guoles Simile® centracts

are Irxded

1 &0 Eivs Mmbrket 35 1he

Financial instruments not measured al fair value

Trpe Walustian technigue

Inputs ubid indeterminate lair valus

s, =ecunty Erscoanted cash iows

Lremr

E3sfunle credi| shresd

mard ywild durm & he repoding dale i

o

[iii} Transfer betweaen Level 1and 2

[Furieg the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2014, there were ng transters between Level 1 and 2 of the fair
34 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Group had the following commitments and cantingant habilities as al the reporting dale

la] Operating lease commitments
] Operating lease rental payable

The Group leases mainly office n-ralated parties under

premisaes from ne

ancaliable operating leases

value hisrarchy,

pse payments Tor the Group

Girgaap

2017
LISE T

LA

Fai

Pl

SO0

Lease paymans payatile
Whrhan §yenr 11.850 815 bR G4
- Aher | yearbut wihin §vears 131,087 7124 1331 -
36937 5751 2039 il
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34 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES CONTINUED
lal Operating lease commitments continued
[i]  Operating lease rental receivable

Futune minimurm lgase rental recavable for the Group on non-canceliable oparating lesses from imestment propartios ane as Tollows
Gy
FoIE] o
USS PS50
Leass renizls recanvatle
= Withen 1 yesr 419,107 ShT. 3¢
« Alter | vaar Byl within S years 1,181,795 1, 1010
&g Boymars 515,122
2,315,624
(b]  Other commitments
I
2017
WSS
Dravaloomend supenditm contraced but not prowded Tor 402,152

[c]  Contingent liabilities
Thes Group com
Group has o

wwiew of it b

ind ratention of @lent during this penod, 1}
-mrl J,;-—re' "-.'“n pr e [the "Employes Programme”), under whi

f the Company ||'r- aggr -ml-'"'urur,1,ul'.-tu‘.h-_-s-'= employes
I OF paymsnt had bawn made undaer the |:|||:.-|-'-'J,'-'_-'_- .5'I1_'--'."|.-]r'r|||

encemant of the

=z 3re enfitled to a -.T payment (n the eent

: coniral of the Company 15 approximately
i fimancal year

Under the Employes Prrogramme, th
ed o these ampioye

h,250,000

35 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Remuneration of key managemnt persunnel

b immiihi et

Exacutne Commitie

e aggregate value of sutstanding unvested shares under GLP Share Plan and other long-term incente plans previous
at waill be fully vasted and sxpensed fo prof

itand less upon a change in control of the Lompany, amounts 1o-ap

-.r-_'ll-n_l oF the | __

n-".!.r' |.l Eriosures

Y Mmiar '1|:|'fr|-'-r"

ersons having the authority and responsibdity f
ndirectly For pur r:-s =s of FRS 24 Refated Farty DEclosores, the members of 4]
oup

d key management per -l: nel of the

320/350



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 DO000DO00000OononOO(E24841)
oOoOooodn

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS COMTIMNUED
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 / Repan

184

35 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS CONTINUED

Remuneration of key management personnel continued

he key managemeant personnel compensation included as part of stall costs for those key management personnel emiployed by the Group are as

F=H] T

¥ATA
35913 3 3
v 1560

[revolopment snd cqher managemen le ri e Iron piher goand entiune 1,550

Subsidisries of a substantial shareholder

Opesaiing lease spenses pandpayable [5.1.201

Acompany inwhich a Direcior of the Company have substantial Ararcial Interests

Ruimbyirsasnent of alfece expensss and allccation of expenss 1111 ¥
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[etails of significant subsidiaries are as follows
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Eliact v inlanasd bt by Hes Grong
— :

Country of moorparalion 2017 Fail
Hirma of somrgany Frincipsl scimithes med placs of Businass L '
GLP Japan Investmant Holdings Pie. Lid, Imvestment holding Singapors 100 I
Japan Logistic Properties 1 Ple. Lid.and ifs sgnificant subrsidanes meegment holding Singapon: 100 10
Shirsurma Lpgu:lu: Speosl Purpose GCompany [T5R57] Propa rhy invEstmen| Japan 100 i
Osaka Legisiic SPC Propeny smestment Japan 10 11
Yeloohama Logisia SPC Propany smestmdnt Japan 100 10
Japan Legistic Properties # Pre. Lid. snd ts sgmficant subsadanas Frvesiman hebding SAngapore 100 11
Meshima One Logestie PG Propeny mestmen! Japan 100 I
Aralea I EPC Propenly imestmen| Japan 100 10
Mgt Logestic SPC Propady sasdment Japan 100 10
Japan Logistic Properties 3 Pre. Lid. snd its subadany Fnvistropent hiokding SinApeohe 100 i
R Propenty e st men| Jnpan 100 I
Japan Logistk Properties & Pre. Lid. a0 it5 sqnificant subssdanas rvesiment halding Singapore 100 1
Shindome Fourieen Logstic PG Frvestment hetding Japan 100 Ui
Sagidrehicd Dng Logehe SPC Prisfriry aftvie 3 v} Japan ow
GLP Capitad Japan I Pie. Lid. and itz subsdiary nvestment holding Singapore R[e] I
GLP Japan LPS Fvestment holdimg Jdapan 100 10
GLP Japan Develaprment Irvestors Pre. Lid, 3nd 05 ot ventune! rrvestment halding Singapore 100 10
BLP Japan Development irmestors 2 Pre Lid. s it anl veriurs! ¥rvestmenl halding Singapate 100 hi
GLP Light Year Irvestirent Pra. Lid, s0d (15 jont venturs! restmant halding Singapare 100 i
OLP Brazl Investmient Holdings Pre. Lid. el hedding Singapond oF
BLH 1) Poe Lbd. =0 i0s joint weriure” Froprment holding SIngapoR 100 i
BLH (21 Py, Ltd, 2nd it5 ponit worure* rvestment halding Singaporg 100 I
BLH (3] Fre. Lid. mnd its pount vardure’ st masnt halding SangEpore 100 i
BLH (6] Fre. Lid. rvestment holding Singapore 100
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36 SIGNIFICANT SUBSIDIARIES CONTINUED

EHacinm irdanesd bheld by iha Broup

Country of incorpocion ol friity

Mama of ddmpaniy Principal acirlisn arud prliea o B ey W ]
GLP Investrnend Holdings' Irvestmant holding Cayman lstands 100 100
Mew GLP Holdings. LLC and a5 |oint venturs! Irvestment holding s 100 o0
New Western Holdings, LLC and i1s sssoome’ Iervest et holdang us 100 o0
New Harvst Holdings, LLC and 25 subsdianes rvesiment higldng us 1007 -
CLH Lirrited 3l 115 sagnaficant subisdearms? Irvestrnest holdeng Cayrian iands 100 160
icwa China Offs hore Holdings [Hang Kong] Limited a0 il sign boant subsdanes fervesiment holdng Hang Fang .21 8,21
GLP Puyen Warehousrg Seraces Co., Lid Praperty irvestment PR &8.21 %4 ]
GLP Shanghe Chapu Logaties Fachhies Co, Lid Praperty inmisman PRO &6 21 b
GLP Baging Arport Logestics Dewlopmand Go, Lig Proparty mve S mgnt PRG 56,21 g 20
GLP Shanghas Minhang Lognsdics Faolibies Ca, Lid Prrospai ty irnva bl FRC &6 21 &8 21
GLP Wangng Logrtics Co, L1d Praparty irmdsment FRG 621 &6
GLF Xupng Logeshess Co, Lid Praparty i st mant PR &6.21 |
Kunshan GLP Danshanhu Logisics Ca, Lid Proparty irvestment FRG &6 2 ]
Timmygr Puys Logeshies Facilibes Co, Lid Praparty i simant PR &6.21 [ |
GLP Shangha Weigaeqas Logrsncs Faalines Go, Lid Pires party irmvest s ent PRG G521 8520
GLP Pugao Logestics Co, Led Froperty rvestment PRO &80 sa.
‘Wistlun Storage Senaces Co, Lid Foparty irve st ment FRT &5 21 621
GLP Feshan Logistics Co, Lid Firoparty imae st mant FRC &4 21 ATl
GLP Ivengzhou ILE Logestes Facilities Co, Lrd Property estment PFRO £6.21 Bid. 28
Bmjing Letdin Scence & Technology Ca, Lid. Froparty imaestmant FRC 5428 il
Suzhou Induisnal Pack Genway Factory Bullding Industrial Developmant G, Lid Proparty irestment PRO L5.35 B
GLP Sumou Deselopment Co., Lid Praperty irsestmnl FRE 5297 57
dempont City Developrnent o, Ltd Proparty irvestment FRO LA 518
Iheyang Transtar Logestics Base Co, Lid Proparty mastment FRG mn wn
[sdan GLF - J& Logistics Faciitios Co, Lid Proparty imestmanl FRG nn L
Fashian Pufeng Logistics Feolties Ge | Lid Property mastment FRG mn wnn
GLP |-Park X'An Scence & Technology Industral Developersent G, Lid Proparty imvestmant FRC nig EINT:
CLFFRmdl LP Proparty mestmal SnigaporaPRC 37.00 1]
Chara Logatees Hebding 1121 Fre. Led Frivestrmint holdeng Simgapone &6 ]
GLP Investrment |Shanghz] o, Lid Propérty mansgermen| PR &6.21 [ %]

Itermarty "ZLP Invastmiend Managemant [Ehiral Co, Lid 7]

CLHAZIHK] Limatied Irvesimant holdng Hang Kong &5.21 LLY
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Country of incorponilion 2m7 ]
Mo 6f company Prancipél sctrillas and flace ol buines: % !
CLH Limited a6 b3 sagnibcant subsdean = oorilinded]
leawa China Ddishare Holdings [Hang Kong] Limited 500 15 signibesn) subiadanes
lcontinued|
GLP Wipa Piyoon Techinglogy & Indusérial Doveloprmeant Co, Lid Propanly s stmant PRO 21 &4
GLP |Guangzhoul Baopy Devalopment Ca, Lid Propary mmasimen "RO b6 L%
BLP Shanghai Pugn Legistics Facities Co. Lid Propady mestmant PRG b6 21 L
Shangha Yuhang &ntng Logshics o, Lid Proparty swisiment == H &4 21 b, ]
Global Logistic Preperties Holdings Lintited and 15 subisdanes? Iivestrrans hildeg and prapesty Coryemaah Jebarads 100 I
rranagemen
Blchal Log#ic Proparies inc F"n:-purrprr-qnagurnlnl Japan 100 110
GLP Japan Adngors inc Froperty managoment Japan 100 10
GLP Investerent Mansgement Ple Lid, 20015 subsdizngs. Ivestrment hodding nd fund Singapors 100 0
rranagement
GLP Brasl Gestic de Recyrsos o Admmisirache imobiliéna Lide Property managamen| Brag) 100 10
Ileemerty "GLP Braul Emprosndimentos E Parmapacies Lida”|
GLP LS Maragament LLC Proparty mishagaimen| s il 1

KPMELLP 18 the auditor of all Singapore-incorporated subsidisres. Othar member firms of KPMEG International areaudiors of signdicant foreign-ingarparats

subsidiaries unless otharwise indicated
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3 WCorpotn i Ourng e e ruvced 30 Meareh 3017,

T K re) e A7 Do s By Groes F cToLn ry OF i o Pt

37 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to the year ended 31 Manch 2017, the follewing events sccurred

[} O 3Apnl 2017, the Group enterad into-agreement with 2 therd party wvestor [the "Additional Investor”), pursuant to which the Additional Invastor b
made a capital commitment of USELT 000 000 for approximately 7. 1% interest in GLP US Income Partrers [ [the "Fund™) An initial capital contributi
of approamately USE2E 000000 was contributed on 23 May 2017 Accordingly, approsimately £2% of the equity interast in the Fund remains und
contract te third party investors fo be syndwcated, subject to obtaining administrates and reguiaiory approvals.

[ir] On 7 April 2017 the Group redesmed 100% of the S$750,000.000 {equivalent to US$534 807 000) 550% capital secunties

[ On 19 May 2017, the Directors propoced 5 final dividend of spproximatety USE201, 282 000 a1 £.0 Singagare cants par shire [estimated based an {)
number afissued shares excluding treasury shares| in respect of the year ended 31 March 2017, which 15 subsect to spproval by sharsholders at 1f

Annual Genaral Meating of sharshaolders
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The Board of Directors

Global Logistic Properties Limited
501 Orchard Road

#16-02 Wheelock Place
Singapore 238880

12 September 2017
Dear Sirs
Consent of Independent Auditors

We hereby consent to the inclusion in the Annual Securities Report to be filed with Kanto Local Finance Bureau of
the Ministry of Finance of Japan of our report dated 26 May, 2017 in respect of the financial statements of Global
Logistic Properties Limited (the “Company” ) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) , which comprise the statements
of financial position of the Group and the Company as at 31 March 2017, the income statement, statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows of the Group for the year then
ended, and summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, as set out in the Group's 2017
annual report.

Y ours faithfully

KPMGLLP

Public Accountants and
Certified Public Accountants
Singapore
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
Members of the Company - Global Logistic Properties Limited

Report on the Audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Globa Logistic Properties Limited (the “Company™)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which comprise the statements of financial position of the Group and the
Company as at 31 March 2017, the income statement, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changesin

equity and statement of cash flows of the Group for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies as set out on pages 98 to 187.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the statement of financial position of the
Company are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act, Chapter 50
(the“Act”) and Financial Reporting Standards (“FRS’) to give atrue and fair view of the financial position of the
Group and of the Company as at 31 March 2017 and the financia performance, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Group for the year ended on that date.

Basisfor opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (“SSAS"). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the ‘Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate
Regulatory Authority Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities
(“ACRA Code") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statementsin
Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
ACRA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

Valuation of investment properties

[Refer to Note 4 — Investment properties|

Risk:

The Group has a significant portfolio of investment properties comprising logistic properties located in the People's

Republic of China (“PRC"), Japan, United States of America (“US’) and Brazil which are held through
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.

These investment properties are stated at their fair values based on independent external valuations, with changesin
fair value recognized in profit or loss.

The valuation process involves significant judgment in determining the appropriate valuation methodology to be
used, and in estimating the underlying assumptions to be applied. The valuations are highly sensitive to key
assumptions applied, particularly those relating to capitalization, discount and terminal yield rates.

Our response:
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We evaluated the qualifications and competency of the external valuers and made enquiries with the valuers to
understand their valuation methods and assumptions and basis used.

We considered the valuation methodologies used against those applied by other valuers for logistic facilities in
PRC, Japan, US and Brazil. We assessed the reasonableness of the projected cash flows used in the valuation to
supporting leases and externaly available industry and economic data. We also assessed the reasonableness of
capitalization rates, discount rates and termina yield rates used in the valuations by comparing these against
historical rates and available industry data, taking into consideration comparability and market factors. Where the
rates were outside our expected range, we undertook further procedures to understand the effect of additional
factors and, when necessary, held further discussions with the valuers. We tested a sample of key data inputs used
in the valuations.

We aso considered the adequacy of disclosures in the financial statements, in describing the inherent degree of
subjectivity and key assumptions in the estimates. These include the relationships between key unobservable inputs
and fair values, in conveying the uncertainties.

Our findings:

The valuers are members of recognized professiona bodies for valuers and have confirmed their independence.
The valuation methodologies used by the valuers are in line with generally accepted market practices and the key
assumptions used in the valuations are comparable to historical rates and industry data. From our sample test of key
datainputs, we found them to be supported by the evidence available.

We found the Group’s judgment as to the assumptions and resulting estimates to be fair, and the related disclosures
in the financia statements to be appropriate in their description of the degree of subjectivity and judgment inherent
in the key assumptions used in the valuations, including the interrelationship between the key unobservable inputs
and the fair values.

Recoverable amount of goodwill
[Refer to Note 9 — Intangible assets]
Risk:

The Group has goodwill of US$421.3 million in connection with the acquisitions of Global Logistic Properties
Holdings Limited and Airport City Development Co., Ltd during the financial year ended 31 March 2011.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually by estimating the recoverable amount of each identifiable cash-
generating unit (CGU) which goodwill has been alocated to. Management applies the value in use (discounted
cash flow) method to determine the recoverable amount of each CGU.

The measurement of value in use as the recoverable amount of each identifiable CGU for operations in China and
Japan involves significant judgment and estimation in determining the cash flow forecasts, and risk-free, discount
and terminal growth rates.

346/350



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 DO000DO00000OononOO(E24841)
oOoOooodn

Our response:

We evaluated management’s determination of CGU based on our knowledge of the initial business acquisitions
giving rise to the goodwill and our understanding of the current business of the Group.

We assessed the key assumptions underlying the cash flows by comparing them with historical performance, future
business plans and external economic data, taking into consideration comparability and market factors. This
included enquiry with management to understand their business plan, strategies around revenue growth and cost
initiatives.

We independently derived applicable discount rates from available industry data and compared these with those
used by management. We performed stress tests using plausible range of key assumptions and discount rates, and
analyzed the impact to the carrying amount.

We also considered the adequacy of the disclosuresin the financial statements, in describing the inherent degree of
subjectivity and key assumptions applied in deriving the recoverable amount.

Our findings:
The Group has a reasonable basis to determine the CGU for goodwill allocation purposes.

The assumptions and resulting estimations by management were in tandem with future business plans and external
economic data, and within range of reasonable expectations. The discount rates used in the cash flow forecasts
appropriately reflect the risks attributed to the respective CGU. The related disclosures in the financial statements
are also found to be appropriate.

Accounting for acquisitions

[Refer to Note 6, 10 and 30(a) — Associates and joint ventures, Other investments and Acquisition of subsidiaries]

Risk:

The Group makes acquisitions of investments as part of its business strategy. Such transactions can be complex and
judgment is involved in determining whether an acquisition of a controlling interest is a business combination or
the acquisition of an asset; and whether an acquisition of a non-controlling interest is an investment in available-
for-sale equity interest, associate or joint arrangement, each of which requires different accounting treatments. In
accounting for a business combination, there is further judgment involved and inherent uncertainty in the

estimation used in alocating the overall purchase price to the assets, liabilities and goodwill that make up the
acquisition.

Our response:

We assessed the Group’s process on classifying and accounting for each investment acquired. We also examined
legal and contractual documents to determine whether each acquisition is appropriately classified and accounted for
in accordance with the relevant accounting standards and faithfully presented the nature of the transaction.

For significant acquisition of controlling interest accounted for as a business combination during the year, we read
the valuation reports and checked the computations on the allocation of the purchase price to the assets, liabilities
and goodwill acquired. We compared the methodol ogies and key assumptions used in deriving the alocated values
to generally accepted market practices and market data relevant to the assets, liabilities and goodwill being
acquired. We also considered the adequacy of disclosures for significant acquisitions made during the financial
year.

347/350



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 DO000DO00000OononOO(E24841)
oOoOooodn

Our findings:

The Group has a policy in place to ensure that each investment acquired is identified, appropriately classified and
the relevant accounting treatments are consistently applied.

The judgment applied by the Group in determining whether significant acquisitions are business combinations,
acquisitions of assets, investment in available for-sale equity interest, associate or joint arrangement was fair.
Estimates used in allocating the purchase price to assets, liabilities and goodwill acquired in significant business
combination were appropriate. We also found the disclosures of significant acquisitions to be appropriate.

Other information

Management is responsible for the other information contained in the annual report. Other information is defined as
all information in the annual report other than the financial statements and our opinion thereon.

We have obtained al other information prior to the date of this auditors report.

Our opinion on the financia statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and directors for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give atrue and fair view in accordance
with the provisions of the Act and FRSs, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls
sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or
disposition; and transactions are properly authorized and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the
preparation of true and fair financia statements and to maintain accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors responsibilities include overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SSAswill always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individualy or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them al relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the financia statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditors report unless the law or regulations preclude public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company and by those
subsidiaries incorporated in Singapore of which we are the auditors have been properly kept in accordance with the
provisions of the Act.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors report is Tan Wah Y eow.

KPMGLLP

Public Accountants and Chartered Accountants

Singapore

26 May 2017
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